TRIMITY ‘.T.‘. METEC

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING AGENDA

MONDAY, AUGUST 18, 2025, 3:00 P.M. 801 GROVE STREET
Fort Worth, Texas 76102
CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC HEARING
1.  Proposed Service Changes for Fall 2025 Phil Dupler
a. Public Hearing Citizen Comments

PUBLIC HEARING ACTION ITEM
1.  BA2025-42 Proposed Service Changes for Fall 2025 Phil Dupler

CITIZEN COMMENTS

MEETING MINUTES
1. Approval of June 16, 2025 Board Meeting Minutes

INFORMATION ITEM & REPORTS
1. Commuter Rail
a. TEXRail & TRE Ridership & On-Time Performance Update Brad Beason
b. DART's Lease Agreement with Metropolitan Council (Northstar) Reed Lanham
for Commuter Rail Equipment
2. Operations

a. 2026 FIFA World Cup Planning Overview Reed Lanham

b. Bus Operator Barrier Doors Jeff Brown
3. Planning

a. General Planning Consultant Update Tara Crawford
4. Strategy

a. FY25 Ridership & Strategy Anette Landeros
5. Community Engagement Update Detra Whitmore
6. Marketing & Communications

a. Blue Line Launch Results Glenn Miller
7. Finance

a. Debt Offering Notes and Contractual Obligations Greg Jordan

b. FY26 Proposed Budget Greg Jordan
ACTION ITEMS
1. BA2025-36 Contract Modification for MasterMinds Leadership Training Kelli Shields
2. BA2025-37 Bus Operator Barrier Doors Jeff Brown
3. BA2025-38 Purchase of Fleet Air Conditioning Parts Reed Lanham
4. BA2025-39 Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Cost Reimbursement Reed Lanham

for Silver Line Positive Train Control (PTC) Services
5. BA2025-40 Regional Positive Train Control Hosting Service Contract Reed Lanham
Amendment

6. BA2025-41 Fort Worth Independent School District & Trinity Metro Anette Landeros

Memorandum of Understanding

THE NEXT MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 801 GROVE STREET, FORT WORTH, 76102
ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2025 AT 3:00 PM. Page 1 of 159



Trinity Metro Board of Directors Agenda
August 18, 2025

Page 2

RESOLUTION
1. R2025-08 $28,105,000 of Notes Tax Exempt Series 2025 Greg Jordan
2. R2025-09 $12,050,000 of Contractual Obligations Tax Exempt Series 2025 Greg Jordan
PRESIDENT’S REPORT
CHAIR’S REPORT
OTHER BUSINESS
EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. TEXRail Update Richey Thompson

Greg Jordan
2. Collective Bargaining Agreement Greg Jordan

The Board of Directors may convene in Executive Session under the Texas Open Meetings Act for the consultation with its Attorney pursuant
to Section 551.071; deliberation regarding real property pursuant to Section 551.072; deliberation regarding prospective gift pursuant to
Section 551.073; deliberation regarding personnel matters pursuant to Section 551.074; deliberation regarding security devices pursuant to
Section 551.076 and/or deliberations regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Section 551.087.

ADJOURN

TRINITY .l.ll RO
Page 2 of 159



BOARD ACTION ITEM

ITEM NUMEER MEETING DATE
BAZ0Z5-4.2 August 18, 2025
ITEM TITLE

Proposed Service Changes for Fall 2025

BACKGROUND
Staff have evaluated l]'lmrﬁ:nrmanna of Trinity Metro’s bus routes and recommend es o eliminate
undarperfoaming and in amnt sarvices, Elimenaton of Rowte 12, along with minos ons o saventean other routes

are recommended, Roule 12 ranks third lowest m passengers per bour and &lso has some redundancy as the Gmng&
Line sarves several of the same major destinations. As Roule 12 s lollows 8 circuitous route 10 avoid being delayed by
at-grade railmad crossings and long-term constrection detours, it's ridership is tz remain very low. Elimination of a
route qualifies a5 a major sarvice changse and Title V1 analysis has been pe indicating that 6% of the

within 1/ mile of Route 12 is minonly and thus there could be a disparale impact, However, a significant portion is also
covarad by the Mercantile On-Demand Zone therefore mast of the area still has acoess o iransit,

Another mingr change will improve service while reducing costa by interlining Routes 21 & 22. This will allow passengers
Te travied Ehrough from one route 1o the olher withoul ransfers and efiminale unnecessany layowers, Only @ minor
schedube adjustrent is required.

Cithver minor changes include efimination of only select inw—parfmrmg trips, mosily in the very early moming or late
evening hours, Reductions of rips on Roules 1, 5,6, 16, 21, 24, 25, 29, 33, 46, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 61X and 91 will help
ansure a batanced operabonal budged with minimal impact o riders.

The major service change eliminating Route 12 results in an annual savings of 51,443 700, The 1otal of all proposed
service changes results in a savings of 32 517 500 annually,

FINANCING
Funds are included in Trinity Metra's FY.2025 Operating Budget. Funds for fulure years will be considerned in the
raspiclive proposed budgels.

RECOMMENDATION

The Trinity Metro Board of Directors authorizes the Presadent & Chiel Executive Officer to implement the staff
racommeanded sarvice changes baginning September 28, 2025,

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD* DATE
Anetle Landeros QR 2S

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 3 of 159



Proposed Fall Service Change
Beginning September 28, 2025

Phil Dupler — Director of Planning

TFHNITYI‘ METRO

Page 4 of 159



Customer,
operator
feedback
and surveys

Ridership,
headways
and capacity

On-time Assess

rf Itipl
MethOdOlogy @ ?895(y:))rmance multiple

alternatives

Develop

$ Estimate
proposals

costs

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 5 of 159



September Service Change Summary

4 ) . . 1
On-Time Discontinue
Performance Route Route
' 2
Connectivity
9 5 Routes

19 'a...nl -
-Ci- . 16
T AM/ PM Trips
Routes w > Routes

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 6 of 159



Impacted
Routes

Fall 2025 Service Change:
Impacted Routes

TRINITY “‘ METRO

Page 7 of 159



Service Change Summary

Weekday Saturday Sunday Schedule
Headway Headway Headway Adjustment

Proposed Changes Impacted Fixed Route Ridership

Route

Discontinue as a low __ 6_9%
performing route
which has redundancy
with the Orange Line

12 X X X

Interlined with Route

21 X 22, schedule adjusted 93.1%

Interlined with Route

22 2 21, schedule adjusted Im pacted I

TFHNITY"‘ METRO

Page 8 of 159



Route 12: Major Service Change

-~ T~ \
- .
Findings: 1 ’ -;.-“ 1 \
Been on a detour for nearly 2 ! £ AR ! I}
ears, which has contributed to /4 i i
ow ridership ' /

Detour routing has much of the

same alignment as the Orange

Line, which contributed to

reduced rldershlp_(hl%;her

Lre uency, and bright Orange
us

Serves the North Side station
(Orange Line), and Mercantile
station (Routes 11,16

Routes 12 & Orange Routes 11, 12 & Orange 6

TRINITY I‘ METRO

Page 9 of 159



Route 12: Major Service Change

Minorities within % mile Low Income within ¥4 mile
Route 12 Service Area Route 12 Service Area
86.6% > +20 61% 23.5% > +20 12.4%
. % . %
Disparate Impact Liepprosorionate Brrcop
Mitigation Factors: Public Involvement:
* 40% also within %4 mile of » 20 people attended 3 public
TEXRail, Orange Line or meetings

Routes 11, 16, 54 & 91

« 2 comments received by email

* 69% also within the Mercantile
and North Side On-Demand

Zones * Mostly concerned about switching

to On-Demand

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 10 of 159



Routes 21 & 22 Interline

Findings:

» Criticality of pulse is
reduced

» Eliminates most of
the excess layover

* Interlines only at the
Walmart end

DDDTC

* No change to routing or bus bays at DDDTC
* Only slight adjustment to timepoints including Rt 22 at DDDTC

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 11 of 159



Service Change Summary cont.

Route

Proposed Changes — Low Performing AM/PM Trips cut due to Low

Ridership

Weekday
Daily Avg

Saturday
Daily Avg

Sunday
Daily Avg

Total Average
Daily Riders

1 getjg_ésst’t:r{/%gse:tc?;?;rgtgi&n on weekdays and Saturdays, departs La Gran Plaza at 11:15 PM, 27 25 0.0 52
5 ICut NB trip that leaves TCC South at 6:33 AM, cut last trip in both directions on weekdays, departs 7.0 0.0 0.0 7.0
TCC South at 10:18 PM, departs FWCS at 11:15 PM

6 iCut NB trip that leaves Sycamore School & McCart at 6:44 AM 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.5
16 Cut northbound trips at 8:41pm, 9:41pm, 10:41pm and southbound trips at 9:12pm and 10:12pm 7.0 5.0 4.8 16.8
24 ICut last westbound weekday trip (departs Stalcup & Fitzhugh 9:53 PM) 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.5
25 (Cut last westbound weekday trip (departs Dennis Dunkins 10:50 PM) 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.2
29 iCut eastbound trip that leaves at 10:04pm and westbound trip that leaves at 10:34pm 1.7 1.8 0.0 34
33 Cut eastbound trip that leaves at 10:17pm and westbound trip that leaves at 9:45pm 0.9 1.0 0.0 1.9
46 Cut southbound trip that leaves at 10:35pm and northbound trips that leaves at 9:20pm and 10:20pm 7.2 3.8 5.8 16.7
51 Cut northbound trip that leaves at 9:31pm and southbound trip that leaves at 10:30pm 41 3.0 0.0 71
52 Cut southbound trip that leave at 9:59pm and northbound trip that leaves at 10:56pm 2.6 1.8 0.8 5.1
53 iCut southbound trips at 8:36pm and 9:36pm and northbound trip at 9:30pm 4.1 1.5 2.0 7.6
54 iCut northbound trip at 10:09pm and southbound trip at 9:57pm 3.1 4.5 0.5 8.1
55 iCut southbound trips at 9:28pm and 10:28pm and northbound trip at 10:14pm 5.0 2.5 1.3 8.8
61 Cut westbound trip leaving FWCS at 5:45pm 2.0 0.0 0.0 2.0
91 iCut eastbound trip at 10:59pm and westbound trip at 9:57pm 3.5 3.8 1.8 9.0
Al 55 30 17 102.1

TRINITY ‘ METRO

Page 12 of 159



FY 2 6 RT FISCAL YEAR 2025 - Calculated| Daysof | Annual Service Service misc. | Annval | % Annual 0ZM
Existing | Proposed
Hours Hours .Hours - Frequency Daily
- # Summary of Route Improvements Service | Days Span Hours Hours Hours | oY  |Total Hours Costs
Rec o m m e n d at I o n s 1 [Remove last NB & SB trip 81 794 -1.6|Wkd 253[4:45 am to 11:20 pm |15 min (405.85)| (12.68)]  (418.54) 2% (36,961.93)
1 |Remove last NB & 5B trip 747] 731 “1.6[sat 52[5:45 am to 11:20 pm |15 min (82.68) (2.58)]  (85.27) 2% (7,530.11)
4—t5mimtoSemiatday—Extensiom 4] 4 - 53 A 123 PM— |30 mim—| 9881155885 3-oA 22— (o256
5 |Remove L morn NB trip, and last NB & SB trip 123 1199 Wkd 15 min (78819)] _(24.63)] (812.82) 3% (71,781.67)
6 |Remove 1 morning NB trip 1233] 1223 Wkd 2534:29 AM-11:47 PM_|15 min (253.42)]  (7.92)] (261.39) 1% (23,079.21)
12 |Eliminate route 487 0] Wkd 7am to 11:15 pm [30min__| (12,321.10)] (385.03)] (12,706.13)] -100%| (1,122,106.68)
12 [Eliminate route 326 0.0 sat 52[6:17am t0 10:15pm [60 min | (1,695.20)] (52.98)] (1,748.18) -100%|  (154,385.18))
12 |Eliminate route 30.6) 0] sun 60min | (1,836.00)] (57.38)] (1,893.38)] -100%|  (167,208.11)
16 |Remove last 3 NB, last 2 SB trips 275] 24 Wkd 30 min (72681) (2271)] (74952)]  -10%|  (66,191.60)
16 |Remove last 2 NB, last B trip 167 152 sat 60 min (7661)]  (239)]  (79.00) 9% (6,977.02)
° R.ecommend.ed fOr 16 |Remove last NB trip 158 153 Sun 60 min (2023) (091 (30.14) 3% (2,662.16)
DISCOntanathn: 21 |interline w/22, Remove last B trip 29.9) 29.1) Wkd 30 min (198.24)  (6.20)  (204.44) 2% (18,054.33)
24 [Remove last WB trip 506] 497 Wkd 20 min (23330)]  (7.29)]  (240.59) 2% (21,247.09)
o Route 12 25 [Remove last WB trip 926 918 Wkd 20 min (213.07)]__(6.66) _(219.73) 1% (19,404.50)
. . 29 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 181 170 Wkd am to 9:58 pm_|60 min (289.90)] _ (9.06)] (298.96) 6% (26,401.91)
. 29 [Remove trip - 1 each direction 194 179 sat 52[6:04 am to 9:58 pm_|60 min (7545)  (236)]  (77.81) 7% (6,871.71)
LOW Pe rfo rmin g AM/ P M tri pS 29 [Remove trip - 1 each direction 183 169 sun 60|6:04 am to 8:58 pm_|60 min (8675) (271)]  (89.47) -8% (7,900.87)
e | imi nated . 33 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 181 17.0 Wkd 8 am to 9:48 pm_|60 min (285.29)] _ (8.92)] (294.20) 6% (25981.82)
33 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 183 17.4] sat 52[5:48 am t0 9:48 pm_|60 min (6050)  (189)  (62.39) 6% (5,509.50)
o Routes 1 y 5, 6, 16, 24, 25, 29, 33, 33 [Remove trip - 1 each direction 173 16.1] “1.2[sun 60[5:48 am to 8:48 pm_|60 min (7037)]  (2.20) (72.57) 7% (6,408.73)
46, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 61X, 91 46 |Remove trip - 158, 2 NB 511 47.9 3.2|Wkd : 30 min (813.07) _(25.41) (838.47) 6% (74,047.49)
46 |Remove trip - 158, 2 NB 493 448 “4.5[sat 30 min (23154)]  (7.28)] (238.77) 0% (21,086.72)
46 |Remove trip - 158, 2 NB 493 448 ~4.5/sun : 30 min (267.16)]  (8.35)] (275.51) 0% (24,330.83)
° Re comme nded fOr 51 |Remove trip -1 each direction 363 33.98]  -2.32(Wkd 253[5:31 am to 10:24 pm |60 min (585, zﬁ (1831)[  (604.19) 6% (53,357.15)
Restru Ctu Il ng 51 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 33.9 3164 -2.26[sat 1 am to 10:24 pm |60 min (117.49)| (3.67)]  (121.17) 7% (10,700.39)|
. 51 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 297 27.44] _ 2.26[sun 60[6:31 am to 8:24 pm_|60 min (13532)]  (423)] (13955)] 8%  (12,324.13)
o Route 4 (S pring 2026) 52 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 389 3649  -2.41|Wkd 253]4:59 am to 10:52 pm |60 min (610.43)] _(19.08)] (629.51) 6% (55593.22)
52_|Remove trip - 1 each direction 375 3493]  2.57[sat 9 am to 10:52 pm |60 min (133.64)] __(4.18)] (137.81) 7% (12,170.59)
52 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 351 3259]  2.51[sun 60[5:59 am t0 9:52 pm_|60 min (150.33)]  (4.70)] (155.04) 7% (13,691.76)
° Reco.mmended for NeW 53 |Remove trip - 2 5B, INB 354 3212]  3.28/Wkd 253[5:36 am t0 9:36 pm_|60 min (830.18)] (25.94)] (856.13) 9%|  (75,06.39)
I nte rl Ine: 53 |Remove trip - 2B, 1NB 332 2994]  -376[sat 52[6:36 am t0 9:36 pm_|60 min (169.53)]  (5.30)] (174.83)] -10%|  (15439.66)
53 |Remove trip -2 5B, 1 NB 312 27.92] _ 3.28sun 60 min (197.00)  (6.16)] (203.16)] -11%|  (17,941.18)
o Routes 21 s 22 54 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 48.8 47.0) -1.8|Wkd 30 min (453.96)]  (14.19)]  (468.15)| -4%| (41,343.19)|
54 |Remove trip -1 each direction 336 315 2.1sat 30 min (109.47)]  (3.42)] (112.89) 6% (9,969.99)
Not |nc|uded in 0perationa| 54 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 318 29.7] 2.1[sun 30 min (128.36)  (4.01)] (132.37) -7%) (11,689.67)|
s . 55 |Remove trip - 2B, 1NB 441 403 3.8|Wkd 253[5:30am t0 9:54 pm_|30 min (961.13)] (30.04)] (991.17) 0% (87,532.23)
avings: 55 |Remove trip- 2B, 1NB 346 288 -5.8[sat 0am to 9:54 pm_|30 min (303.84)  (9.49) (31333)] -17%|  (27,671.29)
55 |Remove trip - 2 5B, 1NB 326 269 -5.7/sun 60[6:30 am to 8:54 pm_|30 min (34135) (1067)] (35202) -17%|  (31,087.34)
. ReCOmmended fOr ful'ther 61X |Remove trip - 1 evening 6.8 4.8 ~2.0|Wkd Express. (512.27)]  (16.01)]  (528.28)| -30%) (46,653.70)|
Marketi ng 91 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 534 510 2.4/Wkd 15 min (610.42)] (19.08)] (629.50) 5% (55592.30)
91 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 36 338 2.2[sat 52[6:30 am to 9:54 pm_|[15 min (1671 (3.65)] (120.35) 6% (10,628.70)
o Route 6 1 X 63)( 65X 91 |Remove trip - 1 each direction 34 31.7) -2.3[sun 60]6:30 am to 8:54 pm |15 min (135.52)| (4.24)]  (139.76) -7%| (12,342.43)|
! ’ TOTAL (208.03) (36,391.93)[(1,137.25)] (37,529.17) [—2#9355264
525175 1()
04)

TFHNITY“ METRO

Page 13 of 159



THANK YOU!

11

TRINITY “‘ METRO

Page 14 of 159



Public Meeting Notes/Comments
Proposed Service Changes for Fall 2026

July 14* @ 6:00pm, Diamond Hill Public Library, 1300 NE 35th St
One attendee, no comments

July 24" @ Noon, Fort Worth Central Station, 1001 Jones St
13 attendees

The following comments all concerned the major proposed service change discontinuation of Route 12
and subsequent reliance upon On-Demand

Attendee concerned about having to switch to On-Demand in the area around Route 12. He reports
that service wait times in the Northside zone are excessive and when it can’t confirm a trip within a half
hour, tells him to walk an excessive distance to the nearest fixed route.

Attendee concerned that On-Demand does not have adequate capacity to absorb the rides that will
result from the discontinuation of Route 12 as the wait times are already excessive.

Attendee reported that he believed the advertised On-Demand service hours are not being honored
because when he tries after 6pm to book trip, the algorithm will not confirm a trip for him. He believed

we should accept new rides beginning up to 6:59pm.

Attendee concerned that On-Demand service would not be extended on weekends or later evenings to
match the discontinued Route 12 hours.

Attendee suggested extending On-Demand service hours to align with the operating hours of nearby
fixed routes.

Attendee noted that he still purchases paper fare media in advance but in order to ride On-Demand, he
needs to access a fixed route bus first in order to validate it because the On-Demand vehicles don’t have
fareboxes. He requests the agency find and implement some sort of solution.

Attendee concerned about not having regular fixed route access to the JPS Diamond Hill Clinic.

The following comments concerned the minor proposed service changes.

Attendee would like to have service span extended later into the evenings. Suggested since interlining
Routes 21 & 22, to split the difference and the 22 run one later trip and the 21 run one fewer trip,
stopping earlier.

Attendee noted that the Orange Line was not recommended for cuts and still runs till after midnight. He
felt that by cutting later evening service on regular routes that the agency was favoring tourists who

could afford Uber over the local transit-dependent population.

The following comments were unrelated to the proposed service changes.

Page 15 of 159



Attendee complained about allowing unhoused passengers to bring an excess of belongings aboard
Route 89 using wheeled luggage/carts and that the odors were offensive.

Attendee would prefer Route 91 to traverse 25 Street instead of 28" Street between Main and
Ephriham.

July 24" @ 6:00pm, Fort Worth Central Station, 1001 Jones St
6 attendees, no comments

Email responses:

The following comments were related to the elimination of low-performing trips

Received an email from a rider asking not to eliminate trips on routes 2, 51, 52 and 53. Concerned that
the reduction of routes 52 and 53 will make sustaining employment difficult, and mentioned using On-
Demand paratransit when their work schedule falls outside of the operating hours for routes 51, 52, and
53.

Received an email that noted “A Better Connection” promised more options, more frequency, and more
direct routes. The rider noted that he waits 30 minutes between transfers from Route 51 to Route 2,

which does not align with the promises of “ABC”.

Hotline responses:
There were no messages on Planning Public Comment Hotline.

Page 16 of 159



TRINITY b‘b METRO

Public Meeting - July 14, 2025
Fort Worth Public Library Diamond Hillflarvis Branch
1300 NE 35th 5t Fort Worth,76016

Email

First

Last

Phone no.

Kochu)

Epﬁuf - _mi__,.:ﬁ

rachalnaveor @dimay { &

B -q94-Bo4®

Page 17 of 159

Trinity Metro Public Meeting

07/14/2025



0

TRINITY "b METRO"

Public Meeting - July 24, 2025 12:00 PM
Fort Worth Central Station

Name

1001 Jones 5t Ft. Worth 76102

Email

Trinity Metro Public Meeting

07/24/2025

Phone no, m
Last 3
ﬂwmﬁ%‘ _.WN.WIE?
z\%w\ LA - 720/
LJ (s ADba 1955 91762 (-G080
a Gusiavde 3\ qLg-IMe D)
s DL )2335 e [3v2 275 350Y
hat) Hague /] Dsthnerz Pt tile @D Guugf.com]
Erie Mot Red P _Depmen ajvys LOM
ieyin VLS le eV in eyt @my. berdoed | 81-5 @7-70®
\M_s_,n.ﬁ_mr g0 | P obis~ Croecsrndramyoeslech, con, |25 "251-5577
Naney Clu+en ncltton@ cedofnorg 682 - 111-"137
Sty #20%36 Pralsedsolor@ amai)Con. 682790 6124
B Falul | Zohasov d_ s ZI7-TdY 0kt



TRINITY b" METRO"

Public Meeting - July 24, 2025 6:00 PM
Fort Worth Central Station

1001 Jones St Ft. Worth 76102 i
Name Email Phone no. °
First Last o
| [dlel & __ﬁﬁmﬁmﬁ_ﬁm . m!ﬂ.ﬁfrﬁﬁgk&: (H82-552- 1222 |%
CHAST S RG2S |PrZES o0 G o p Rl (%2 95704~
I_.q._“_r..? ﬂ__.uuwh ' ean® trebe TL(F A WOy - §28 -07 0 ¢
. A ¢ mﬁm.___..____._.. Tru =i L] . e
Blaks ity it 1P g 37 245761y
\..Pm&\ EEE (bde)560-9073
Beaiomim oo chson, hrobe s o (@ Aeitongu) Ying |« conn [ B17) 3K~ YY5S
. J

Trinity Metro Public Meeting

07/24/2025



TRINITY ‘.T.l METRO

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, JUNE 16, 2025

ATTENDEES:

Board Members Present: Teresa Ayala, Jeff Davis — Chair, Isaac Manning, Rachel Navejar Phillips, Chris
Nettles, and Ben Robertson

Board Members Absent: Paul Alvarado, Will Churchill, Michael Crain, Sharla Horton — Secretary, and Jack
McCarty

Senior Leadership Team Present: Richard Andreski, Christine Black, Chad Edwards, Greg Jordan, Anette
Landeros, Reed Lanham, Kelli Shields, and Detra Whitmore

Senior Leadership Team Absent: Alicia Walker

Board Attorney: Joel Heydenburk

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 3:04 pm at 801 Grove Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CITIZEN COMMENTS
Two citizens addressed the board: Ashton Smith and Kim Oaks

PRESENTATION

1.

United Way Check Presentation — Detra Whitmore presented a check to Adam Powell, President and CEO
of United Way of Tarrant County. Powell thanked the Trinity Metro staff on behalf of the community and
requested that we continue to be involved with our Time, Talent and Treasure.

2025-2026 Scholarship Awards — Kelli Shields congratulated all the recipients of the 2025-2026 Fort Worth
Transportation Authority Annual Scholarship.

MEETING MINUTES

Motion: Ben Robertson motioned to approve the April 21, 2025 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes and the
May 9, 2025 Board Retreat Meeting Minutes as submitted. Teresa Ayala seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

INFORMATION ITEMS & REPORTS

1.

Commuter Rail — Reed Lanham provided an update on rail operations for April and May. TEXRail ridership
was up more than 11% year over year and the OTP was 99% for both months. TRE had strong ridership
during both months and the OTP exceeded 99%. Lanham also gave an overview and recommendation
regarding the Operations and Maintenance (O&M) contract for TEXRail, emphasizing the strong
partnership with Herzog.

Planning — Chad Edwards shared recent developments on the General Planning Consultant, upcoming
Fall Service Changes, and Fiscal Year 2025 Ridership.

Page 20 of 159



Trinity Metro

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2025

Page 2

3. Government Relations Update — Anette Landeros delivered a report on a recent trip to Washington, DC for
the APTA Legislative Conference and shared updates on federal and state legislative developments
affecting transit.

4. EASYRIDE - Nicole Adams presented a summary on the EASYRIDE program’s continued growth and
community impact and celebrated the Blue Line’s recent launch and ribbon-cutting event.

5. Community Engagement Update — Detra Whitmore gave a status report on Call Center Performance, past
and upcoming Community Outreach & Partnerships, and Employee Appreciation.

6. Finance — Greg Jordan presented the preliminary budget for fiscal year 2026.

ACTION ITEMS
1.  BA2025-34 TEXRail Operation and Maintenance Contract Extension

Motion: Ben Robertson motioned to approve the board action item as submitted. Rachel Navejar Phillips
seconded. Motion passed unanimously.

2.  BA2025-33 Metro Area Transit System Corporation

Motion: Ben Robertson motioned to approve the board action item as submitted. Chris Nettles seconded. Motion
passed unanimously.

3. BA2025-35 Bus Stop Improvement Program — Trinity Metro and City of Fort Worth Inter-Local
Agreement

Motion: Ben Robertson motioned to approve the board action item as submitted. Teresa Ayala seconded.
Motion passed unanimously.

RESOLUTION
1. R2025-07 Support Application to TxDOT for 2025 Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside (TA) Grant

Motion: Ben Robertson motioned to approve the resolution as submitted. Rachel Navejar Phillips seconded.
Motion passed unanimously.

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

President Andreski mentioned the recent Blue Line launch and indicated how it symbolizes Trinity Metro’s
commitment to economic development, regional integration, and shaping a more connected city and he teased
turning focus onto continuing the momentum and building what’s next.

CHAIR’S REPORT
No report today.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Personnel

At 5:02 pm the Board, Richard Andreski, Christine Black, Chad Edwards, Anette Landeros, Kelli Shields, and
attorney Joel Heydenburk exited for an Executive Session to discuss the executive session item. The Board,
staff, and attorney exited the Executive Session at 5:07 pm and returned to regular session.

TRIMITY fl METRO Page 21 of 159



Trinity Metro

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
June 16, 2025

Page 3

OTHER BUSINESS
No other business was discussed.

ADJOURN
Meeting adjourned at 5:07 pm.

TRIMITY fi METRO Page 22 of 159



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
TEXRad & TRE Ridership & On-Time Performance August 18, 2025
Upsdate — July 2025

BACKGROUND

Brad Beason, Manaaar of Rail Operations, will provide an update on July 2025 Ridership & On-Tims Pedformance for
TEXRai and Trinity Rallway Express (TRE)

RECOMMEMNDATION
There i no recommendadion as this is an information iem for the Board's feedback and discussion.

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD™ DATE
R Lanham QOENTES

Page 23 of 159



TEXRail and TRE Ridership
& On-Time Performance
Update

Brad Beason— Manager of Rail Operations
August 18, 2025

TFHNITY"‘ METRO



TEXRail Total Ridership by Station (in 1000s) July 2025

B, ——— o
1 Mot
" . e — .
" L.
flh & .
.I _' | —
TRS

W b JO0S [

TEXRAIL On-Time Performance TEXRail Monthly Ridership (in 1000s)

.
& B g "
FE¥TI ._":I'“ whop | khoarmiber ] Typis o Dl B |.|:1-
Fy20a2 420 604 i : . = g "
Fya0d EAT230 | - B O ; Fi bl oy j A
Py dida G405, 434
FY2025 T ..—i——I ' ' KRRy .lrl e rvias ey s

Page 25 of 159



TRE Total Ridership by Station (in 1000s)

e

I oty J008

July 2025

2 e
e M

TRE On-Time Performance

'TRE Mo

K

nthly Ridership (in 1000s)

14371 K

FY¥ T Fadiritg
FY 3033
Fy ]
P

Py s

fas 484
LR ]
1AW fod

i TH 5H 1

i . Flamnmber dnal |-|'~l"\- ol Dl en oy I '
1 A n - h . x
-- i i TRINITY T METRO _ L

Page 26 of 159



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

INFORMATION ITEM
ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
DART's Lease Agreament with Metropolitan Council August 18, 2025

(Morhstar) for Commuter Rail Equigment

BACKGROUND

Morth Texas will host nine 2026 FIFA World Cup games during the month of June 2026. Large crowds ane expected fo
utifize public franspodation in the Fort Waorth and Dallas ares. As a result, Word Cup ridership projections reguire the
Trinity Railway Express (TRE) commuter rail to supplemant s currant flee size 1o maintadn reliable service for World
Cup activities and dadly riders,

On May 22, 2025, the Trinity Raiba Ex;_:rmsa {TRE} Adviscry Commitiee approved staff’s recommendation to seek

approval from the Trinity Meiro and EIAR Board of ors 1o enter info a lease agreament with Meatropolitan Coumndil
MWarthStar) far the lease of ane (1) keomotive, ong (1) 2k car, and thaee (3) coach cars, For an amounl not 0 exceed

i;%;g;ﬁ plus a $737 480 contingency for additional fleet, for a iotal one-year authorized leasa amount not-io-axceed

Trinity Matno has no finandal obl'gam in the lease of these vehicles, as DART will be reimbursed 100% of the lease

tﬁ?ghvia a I:E'Eﬂl'ﬂ grant awarded to DART by the Norih Central Texas Councll of Governments in suppart of the 2026
Woald Cup games.

Tﬂnll; Fallway Express (TRE) identified that the Matropolitan Council (Morttvstar) has additional commasder rail vehickes

that T, on behalf of TRE. can lease fo support World Cup ridership needs.

Under the Terms and Conditicns. of the cument TRE Second Restated Interocal Cooperative Agreement for TRE
Cperation and Development of the TRE Commuter Rall Services, DART s Procurement Depariment conducted a
noncampetitive procwnemenl for 8 one-year lease with no aplicng, The procurgment was condected under DART &
Procurament reguilations and found 1o ba fair and reasonable.

This Information lbem is lo notify the Trinity Metro Board of Directors thal on June 24, 2025, the Dallas Area Rapid
Transil Baand of Direclors approvied Resolution 260070, awarding & oe- f b agnimenl wilh no apbons for the
lease of commuter radl wahicle equipment [Contract Mo, C-2 20-01] to Metropolitan Coundil l[r'-l!::-m‘lﬂ“lar:l. for an
amaount nod o excead 51,927 570, plus a 57374859 contingency for the lease of additional flaed, if idership demands, for
a lotal aulhorized amount nol-lo-exceed 52,665,059,

FINANCING

Trinity Metro has no financial uhrmm in the lsase of these vehicles, as DART will be relmbursed 100% of is lease
ot -'i?:a federal grant awarded thx Morth Central Texas Councl of Governments in suppor of the 2026 FIFA
Ward Cup games.

RECOMMENDATION
There i no recommendation as this is an information dem Tor the Board's feadback and discussion,

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD® DATE
Resd Lanham OF 2825

Page 27 of 159



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
2026 FIFA World Cup Planning Cvarview August 18, 2025
BACKGROUND

Reed Lanham, Chiel Oparaling Officer, will provide an overview of Trinity Metro's planning effors underway in
anticipation of the 2026 FIFA Weorld Cup gamas and the swrrounding activities in Morth Texas, June & July 2026,

RECOMMEMNDATION
There i no recommendation as this is an information item for the Board's feedback and discussion,

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD™ DATE
Resesd Lanham QBTG

Page 28 of 159



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
Bus Operator Bamier Docss August 18, 2025
BACKGROUND

Lasi yisdr, the Faderal Transit Administrabon gsued General Direclive 24-1: Requeted Actions Regarding Assaults on
Transit Workers. This direclive instructed transit agencias (o complete a safety nsk asseszment and identify mitigations
to reduce the risks associated with assaults on transd workers. During this process, Trinity Metro Staff identified
Operator Barrier Doors as an essential mitigation 1o resirct the ursanted entry of individuals and objects ino the
workstations of bus operators,

in May of 2025, Trinity Metro released an invitation for Bid and received thvee responses. The bid from The Aftermarket
Farts Company, LLC dbla NF| Pars was delermined (o be the best maltch for the needs of Trinity Metro.

RECOMMEMNDATION
There B no recommendation as this i an indormation fem for the Board's feedback and discussion,

STAFF DISPOSITION

EXECUTIVE LEAD™ DATE
Richard Andreski DB/11/25

Page 29 of 159



Bus Operator Barrier Doors

Jeff Brown
Chief Safety Officer

TRINITY"‘ METRO



Bus Operator Barrier Doors

Our priority is to provide a safe workplace for employees and
safe transportation for passengers

Existing barrier shields were installed during Covid to provide
separation for health reasons

Industry research and collaboration with our frontline
employees has shown stronger barrier doors to be crucial to
achieve a safer environment

Assaults on Bus Operators fiscal year-to-date trend:

= 22% - 1 year increase from 2024 to 2025
= 75% - 2 year increase from 2023 to 2025

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 31 of 159



Bus Operator Barrier Doors

= ArowGuard Driver Protection System

= Protection in routine service or during an
emergency

= Sliding polycarbonate glass offering the
Operator protection if needed

= Top panel providing additional protection
= Attaches securely to the bus chassis
= ADA compliant

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 32 of 159



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
Ganaral Planning Consultant {GPC) Update August 18, 2025
BACKGROUND

On Novermber 28, 2022, the Trinity Metro Board of Directors approved the General Planning Consultant (GPC) Contract
(BAZ2023-11) that parmitted staff to complate negotiations and anter into a contract for a vanaty of planning aclivities that
address ongoing &nd emerging issues related to planning, designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, and improving
the Trinity Metro iransportation system. There was some discussion about how the Board would be informed on the
status and progriss of tasks assigned o the GPG

DETAILS
Ire an efort o keep the Board informed, the following is a brief update of the GPC,

= Current GPC consultant contract will end in December 2025,

The following tasks are curmint and will extend Mﬁnd thai dabe:

* FTA TEXRai Transit Orianded Development (TOD) Planning Grant — Cosi | TBD
* TEXRail MU viehicle Commissioning Support — Tofal Contract Amount i 5T60,24% .41

« MEW GPC will be advertised and procured in FY 26

RECOMMEMNDATION
There B no recommendation as this is an information iem for the Board's feedback and discussion,

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD™ DATE
Anatbe Landeros DRDTZR

Page 33 of 159



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
FY 2025 Ridership Update & Sirategy August 18, 2025
BACKGROUND

Trinify Muebra has conlineed o make meaningful strides @ mbulhm?l fidarship Across ils systam in the years following the
COVID-19 pandemic. System-wide trends show steady growth savaral servicas expenencing notable momentum
a5 riders return o public fransit. Ths upward trajectony ra-ﬂan:ta the impact of ongoing service enhancemeants, community
engagement efforts, and a renswed regional focus on mulimodal connectnty,

For FY 2025, Trinity Metro has sed an ambitious ridership goal of B.4 millicn. This agenda item will provide the Trinity
Metro Board of Directors an update of current ridership metrics,

DETAILS

At the end of July 2025, FY2025 year-io-dale ridership was 6,645, 53T - a shght increase from FY2024 year-over-yaar.
Riderahdp in June and July ahowed Increases from last year, Additional monthly ridesship detalls will also e providesd by
s,

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD® DATE
Anette Landeros OBMDES

Page 34 of 159



FY25 Ridership & Strategy

Anette Landeros, Chief Strategy Officer
August 18, 2025

TFHNITYI‘ METRO



System-Wide Annual Ridership e mhrough suy

Fy2025 Goal 8400000

- S I G S . S S A S S O A S G . S

W T R

W TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 36 of 159



System-wide Monthly Ridership

B0 -y : TEQ B
o 5

T BT 756
B4E 474
670 400 —— . &
a4 &0 #3772 A58, 775 B0 D42 f_-.:.j‘sx,
[ b -~ 635, 5 - £ l————=
T, e L —— o
ey ; ) 150 - — — o
~ 4 580,520 - -
o = ; I
o, G e —— - 2 — G — -
—— e T
= oy - "l __r".-.

{00

" ]
-

Ol M Lz 1 “poh [ H) Ay iy un Tl Al
Humber and Types of Days for Jufy Fracal Year Hadershp o Daile

LEs (5]

|'"|':'-:'I.'.‘ l"’.ﬂfl'.:'_'l |""5.’-! Fyas Fraoae 4 T i

Pk ol
13 b
Fi 2023 5 o 181
' Fy2024 5 535 07
ll—--—;; TRINITY ‘ ‘ METRO Fy2025 8,485,507

Page 37 of 159



BUS Monthly Ridership

453 1y

£41 1£%

357 GiE

" TR0 26 7
i S 353 883 —
T T i L i
. A — e W, = el
L R - I = R - L —
- '\-\.__H_- '--\_\_\_“___d" __r'i-:.
- -
g -~
T e
— P
~r”
¥
ct P Dot Jan Fot Wn A May
Hamber and Types of Days for Jufy
Ak - G 1 4 i - m LI
Fy 2033 Y2023 Fy 2024 AL

3 n
ll : - . . I 1
—— —

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Ain ul AuKg L
Fracal Year Hudershep o Caie
Feands AR
Fy2023 Iz
FY2024 3800 007
F20d5 3 852 5D

Page 38 of 159



TEXRAIL Monthly Ridership

1002

Jo Micri Lo ol rub Felir L Miny Jun I g Sap
Hamber and Types of Days for Jufy Fracal Year Hudershep o Caie

o . - Py Py 0o erH I 1.!.-‘.5 Frages 41 604

FY20a3 LAT X

' FY2024 B RS
ll‘—ﬁﬁﬁ;; VRINETY, } '} METRO s

Page 39 of 159



TRE Monthly Ridership

T2
1308
100 ) = = |
107 o £ .
00 378
o, ﬂ_ij'ﬂ
— i — =
0
bl
et
- Ty . = Euk Nlar Ay Koy Jun I i s | Sap
Hamber and Types o Days Sor Jufy Fracal Year Halershep o Caie
pE, - n ' |r“": I f:-t'uzu l'*':"'l.’-! =*!"='3'~ derrwos Gl
P00 Lo TR LG
' FY2024 T0TETE
i , TFtINIT"f" ‘ METRO s 1,065 581

Page 40 of 159



ON-DEMAND PARA Monthly Ridership

ik By I lan
Hamber and Types of Days for Jufy

Tk ¥ Lerw 1%

3 n
l. : - : . . I
—— —

T ik L] A

i
P23 Fy 2024 P Azs

TRINITY "‘ METRO

o G

e ._.
Fracal Year Hudershep o Caie
Foinds
Fea0ad
Y2024
Fera0ash

L

Page 41 of 159

FLIERS
AT AT
0, TT
2T3.TH



ON-DEMAND MICRO Monthly Ridership

Fil N
15 .o
e Yo
- -"-2-: — x -
=i 1 - £ —— —-_'-H-"_-_
K
it Py [ lan Tk Kor Pt ]
Hamber and Types of Days for Jufy
= ¥ o - ) i L | LI
Py 032 2023 Fy 024 P22

l. NSREY o NPT TRINIT?"‘ METRO
E—

Fracal Year Hudershep o Caie
Foinds
Fea0ad
Y2024
Fera0ash

L i

L]
131.8rr
FRLLOR
250 i

Page 42 of 159



VANPOOL Monthly Ridership

& #OT 1 3

LI N

1 ] o lan i o g LT Jun Il [Ty Sop
Hamber and Types of Days for Jufy Fracal Year Hudershep o Caie

- L I 'H-EI‘.': i | I "nEli.:'J |'.-"|'|‘J_! I '-}:ll‘l:-' Frandd bE-ER- ]

- - Fi 2023 1a.FT
' FY2034 XEIETS
ll—-——_; TRINITY ‘ ‘ METRO Fy2025 349,372

Page 43 of 159



BIKES Monthly Ridership

Lt FOw i Jdan 111 R A ooy Jun »

Hamber and Types of Days for Jufy Fracal Year Hudershep o Caie

E
&8

= I i | |

Y2033 F -:5:1;:1_1 I"-'gg.e FyYas FYanes T 2&
Gamar

3 % n . s
' FY2024 57 B i
ll‘—ﬁﬁﬁ;; VRINETY, } '} METRO s

Page 44 of 159



Other Services Monthly Ridership

17, Tty

Mo

Hamber and Types of Days for Jufy

Y] ol
e, x
.. : v - -
T T —

i | |
a3 2023 Fy 024 s

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Jun i L
Fracal Year Hudershep o Caie
Feands
Fy2023
Y2024
F20d5

Page 45 of 159

Sap

]
41 548
ar 40k
73,050



Building Momentum for the Future

The Trinity Metro Team is actively investing in strategic partnerships and innovative services
to stimulate future growth, strengthen community engagement, and expand access.

We have launched several impactful initiatives:
o Storytime Train — a family-friendly experience that introduces young riders to transit in a fun and
educational way.
o FWISD Partnership — Collaborating with Fort Worth ISD to support student mobility and transit
education.
o Transit Tours & Travel Trainings — Increasing outreach with organizations to promote transit
literacy and confidence.

o Fare-Free Campaigns —
a) Freehaw: Atargeted initiative to remove barriers and encourage trial ridership.

b) National No Car Day: Promoting sustainable travel with free rides and community engagement.

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 46 of 159



Looking Ahead

These efforts reflect Trinity Metro’s commitment to cultivating long-term ridership
growth, enhancing accessibility, and deepening our connection with the Fort Worth

Community.

' ) i 1 ¥ y

" 1 II. - a
;rmnr_r& RAILWAY
EXPRESS t

TRINITY 1} METRO
A

Page 47 of 159



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
Community Engagement Report August 18, 2025
BACKGROUND

Ddra Whilmone, WViee Prasident of Community Engagament and Customer Sandcs will givi an update on cusion
sanvice and community engagemeant activities.

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD™ DATE
Dedra Whilmnone QRADEZS

Page 48 of 159



Community Engagement
August 2025

Detra Whitmore, PMP
Vice President of Community Engagement & Customer Service

TRINITY"‘ METRO

Page 49 of 159



Average Wait Time (Minutes) Customer Calls
All Modes

Gaoal 1.5

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 50 of 159



CSS Rep Score Card

100%
97%
96%
95%
94%
Goal: 90%
90% oa v/
85% 87%
83%
80%
75%
November December January February March April May June July

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 51 of 159



First Call Resolution

Percent of Resolution in First Call

A100%

al: 85%

% Firal Time Sl Resohibans %

Sepitembar JOJd Ccicbs 1074  Nospember 3004 Cecembes JOJd  Jarmmry JUJS  Febnsary Z13E March 235 April TS Wy OIS Jumay JOAS

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 52 of 159



Call Back Satisfaction

Call Satisfaction Summary

Total Calls Calls Retiermsed L Calls Refurmssd Basiafled Callers % Satisfed of Returned Calls
TR 123 e 1% i L] i
LR " 45 48% i B,
L] Bl X5 5% 2T T
Friders 53 11 i id 1%

% Cally. Hefmad
Peicenl of Sabiled from Retirned Calld i 5 Baviafied of @ eourned Calis

1o b,

o mr///‘\_n{/ i

T,
A1
]
Y
21%
Y
(oo,
o]
Jusrsi 250 baly HelE

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Caln Beamsd &
-
s
£
e Labuimd of Betrmed Calis 3

Page 53 of 159



Valid Complaints by Mode

Valid Complaints per 1k Boardings

OMN-DEMAND PARA

PARA
Type of Complaints / Issues

Late

BUS

BUS
Type of Complaints [ Issues

Mo show
Fassed By
Driver Refusal
Rude Driver

Valid Complaints per 100k Boardings

— Targe

Heeds ngrieemen =

Exceeds Eipesc s - =
7

TRIN!TY“‘ METRO

Page 54 of 159



Valid Complaints by Mode

Valid Complaints per 100k Boardings
TEXRAIL

TRE
Type of Complaints / Issues

TEXRAIL
Type of Complaints / Issues

Al

— Targe

Meeds mgrireemem

Exceeds Eipesc s

Valid Complaints per 100k Boardings
TRE

Gcll 15 A

TRINITY “‘ METRO

Page 55 of 159




Valid Complaints by Mode

MICRO
Type of Complaints / Issues

Valid Complaints per 1k Boardings
OMN-DEMAND MICRO

g E{ﬂiibm

S Emraw Ea

TRINiTY“‘ METRO

Page 56 of 159



PUNCTUALITY
PAYS OFF!

BENEFITS ARE:
REDUCED STRESS
INCREASED TRUST
BETTER RELATIONSHIPS

TRINITY "‘ METRO




ity

V)
Jud
<
Q
>
LLl

Commun

T
=
S

L
O
3
0
i

)
3

©



What we’ve been up to ) 228
- MHMR -
* Faith Groups

 DASH Network

« City Hall

« FWISD Career Days

« Community Tabling Events

Who Did We Reach?
« 38 Career Days- 23 visited, 10 waitlisted,
5 canceled(by school)
« 132 Special Events/Presentations
« 89 Travel Trainings,
818 individuals

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 59 of 159



sjuedioied Jo JaquinN

o
OO OO0 0O00O0O0O OO
TOOMNOWOSTONTO

mmm Trainings =———Participants

N O O © < (N O
A

~

sBulures] Jo JaquinN

Travel Training Growth

Gz-bny
gz-Ine
gz-une
Gz-Ae
Gg-idy
Gz-len
Gz-ged
Gg-uer
yZ-990d
Z-NON
2100
yg-des
yg-bny
ye-Ine
pz-une
yz-RelN
yg-1dy
yz-1ei
¥Z-go4
yg-uer
£z-99Q
€Z-NON
€210

Fiscal Year
FY24 and FY25 YTD

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 60 of 159



TRINITY “‘ METRO



TRINiTY“ METRO

Page 62 of 159



Upcoming Events

TRINITY i" METRO

B AL

CLERNOR DAY
T

TF D momn. - TEI pom.

SAVE THE

DATE

Rockwood Park Golf Course

Wt b T o Wi
il Bevikon Comanunizy Focm

Annual Scholarship Benefit
Golf Tournament

Monday, Oct. 27, 2025 b

Jobn us o a friendly and fun golf sowmnament benefiting
livr Fart Warth Transportation Authority Schaolarsbio Fund

DATE: Saturday, September 20, 2025 DATE: Monday, October 27, 2025
TIME: 7:30 a.m. — FWCS Community Room TIME: 8:00 a.m. — Rockwood Park Golf
Course

TRINITY I‘ METRO

Page 63 of 159



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
Blue Line Launch Resulls August 18, 2025
BACKGROUND

Glenn Miller, Dirgctor of Markeling, will provide an update on results from the Blug Line Séride launch,

RECOMMENDATION
There is no recommaendation as this is an information fem for the Board's feedback and discussion,

STAFF DISPOSITION

EXECUTIVE LEAD" DATE
Anetle Landeros OBOT2E

Page 64 of 159



el’y
Lide!
The Blue Line Launch Results

Glenn Miller, Director of Marketing
August 18, 2025

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 65 of 159



SPECIAL EVENTS

Blue Line Launch Event
Wednesday, June 4, 2025

=g 5E

o
I NEEE )

LRI e

- :';'.l-rl.::. oo
Wiy I'_a-- LA
M Ban

DOWNTOWN

e

i

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 66 of 159



SPECIAL EVENTS

TRINITY I‘ METRO

Page 67 of 159



SPECIAL EVENTS

Blue Line Transit Mixer

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 68 of 159



i i Sew s line bonches in Downiown Fort
Trll'lltf Metro bE‘ﬂll’lS passenger Worth, replacing Molly the Trolley

EARNED MEDIA service on Blue Line

TV, radio, online and print

 Media stories: 42

« Publicity value: $836,191

L IRt
&

D OWNTOWN £ 1/

8 AP i IO

SHEAK PREVIEW OF NEW BLUE LINE

TREETT HETRD

TRINiTY“ METRO

Page 69 of 159



EARNED MEDIA |
Trinkty Metra laanehes dowatoan Blue Line on June 8

=, e L

* Fort Worth Report

- ABCS8 * The Business Press

« CBS 11 * Fort Worth Star-Telegram
* Fox4 * CultureMap Fort Worth

* NBC5 * Mass Transit

* Telemundo 39
« KRLD news radio

* Informed Infrastructure
e MSN Canada

A ¥ FIPRIFELCNY 'CHEC BT . O | Lol

Fort Worth's new downtown bus service prepares for launch ey X
Trinity Metro retires The Mally Trolley line. Here's

wrhat riders can expect

e Skt

Forl Wicr®'s new Blua Line downicwn mals fo
P ai o Bhin ol GG

TRINITY ‘ ‘ METRO

Page 70 of 159



SOCIAL MEDIA

Organic Social Media

» Total Content KPlIs
« Reach -79,889
* Impressions — 85,882
« Engagements — 4,626

* Additional social
platforms
« 4,505 additional views
* Tik Tok
* Linkedln
* YouTube Shorts

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 71 of 159



SOCIAL MEDIA BUZZ

Additional Social Media
Mentions

« Mayor Mattie Parker
* Sundance Square Plaza

 The Cliburn
 Downtown Fort Worth, Inc.

« Total additional
engagements = 1,600

a theciiburm ard 2 othors

Viesw ingights

W (2 T [-]

@R Luea by trinstymetrobikes and others
rasrhburn Trirery ddaira’s 1ree demnlows Bl Line radla
o Jurse B A lmanch proview oocurmed carleer Ehis
bk i Sufedlsnce Sousne That Mahsid remais from
ClEsan Brandect & CEQ Jasguens Marpum and a whow-
o] periormance of “Amenca® wilh Greg
Anserion & Ehrassh Sey foa

Pz tured, L8 Visit Foet Wiorts Praldent & CEQ Bolb
Jav=min, Trirly Watns Braudect & CE O Sech Arsiramiki
Gresg Andarsan, Elrabseth Joy Roe, Chbarn President &
CED lacvpnn Maigln

TRINITY "‘ METRO

war 1:]1'?:3 M

BBE Liked by danlpiiiradriguer 30000 and ifers
mayormallicparker Doentosm Fort Worth, Let’s Ride
Sredotrindymatio MEW Blue Line g

THi% fvinie FREE Bird idnibée b 1hrdugh doramilonm
wery § minules, T days & week, fram T am. 1o Fpom

For locals and visiiors, Tha Blus Lins Qhes avefyona

Page 72 of 159



PAID MEDIA

Out of Home « Locations
- Clear Channel Outdoor * Spur 280 west of I-35W
. Billboards » Lancaster Ave. west of Taylor St.

« July 14-Sept. 7

EASY-TO-
GET-TO

17 Pian your FREE trip ab 1.
& Hi ETREITYMETRD :'n,:"_ulf.JFI'.lllLJE :

%, FREE
-i-'l""‘ HAPP’I" HOUR

+ FREN g o
TR TVET VI LTLINE
'l :

SR e

TR

- g g |

! '171—__ ; L3 = I .-
L FTE I a | 8

986,776 total views 958,192 total views

TRINITY 1} METRO
Ak

Page 73 of 159



PAID MEDIA

Out of Home

* Fort Worth Weekly
» Wrapped distribution boxes

* Locations
 3rd & Houston SE Corner
* 9th & Houston SW Corner
 11th & Houston W
* Lancaster & Throckmorton
 5th & Commerce E
* 3rd & Commerce E

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 74 of 159



PAID MEDIA

Out of Home

TO EATS

[ Plonoyour FREE brip ot
L CHDETHIMTYMETRD BELAELNE

W .
THINITY 1. WETRO
il

» Digital Out of Home
« June 8-July 29

Downtown rideshare vehicle NO-SEARCHING-
screens A- SHOPPING
* Movie theater lobby and screens ol ey

« Select downtown hotels | ewary [V, weRe

e Entertainment venues downtown
Cowtown Brewing Company

Jake’s Burgers Brms
B
. . Dirandcram Fort Waorlh Ceculaior - Mew Blug Ling Bas
Search Engine Marketing iy

« June 8-July 29
* Click-through rate of 12.83%

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 75 of 159



PAID MEDIA
Digital — Social Media

 Paid Social Media Teasers

* June 1-7
* Very low cost per
thousand

* High click-through rate

* Paid Social Media Launch

* June 8-July 29

» Incredible click-through

rate of 2.45%
* High engagement

« 5 versions (Dining was

top performer)

@ - x

s rar, I8 b, ITs corming o Diowmiosm For

= ._}1'.-_. =

- 1
S /DOWNTOWN

"N NEW BLUE LINE

COMIMG JUNE B!
TREBHETY lTi WETRO

rchpirmripmetn myg

FREE Bus Circulsting Joe Laam more
&

008 14 12 commaits 12 ghaiss

r:l L I:. CeATaTaiT] I_*I‘:. Shu

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Tirinity M s
- Rk X

Diftees less, dife mode! Explare Dewmawn Fart
Wearth for FREE on the new easy-io-spot Trindty
hdstr Biue Line, Fam=7pm.

ridetnnehmastng, oog)

Mo Valet Needod Leam more
Mew downiown circulator

D0 & =0 T comments

[[r_l:' Like |:_| Coenmeni l.r-_-:: Share

Page 76 of 159




PAID MEDIA

Digital — Social Media

« Paid Social Media Video
featuring Blue Line,
Orange Line and Trinity
Metro TEXRail

. July 21-29
» Link click-through rate
of 1.69%

°r|.v.-r3u+m:.n -

Gl oy T B Wiordh epain. e e 53
of ladid Bde Trindy Kalio TEXEE Onigs Lind
o tha FRET Bl Lins

TRINITY "‘ METRO

O

VIDEO

Page 77 of 159






PAID MEDIA

Digital - Video
e« ConnectedTV

* June 8-July 29

* Video Completion Rate of
99.65%

Pre-Roll Video
* June 8-July 29

* Video Completion Rate of
51.26%

* Telemundo
* June 8-July 29

* Video Completion Rate of
99.03%

TRINITY

‘V

METRO

VIDEO

Page 78 of 159






PAID MEDIA
Digital — Display

« Telemundo « 817 Biz daily e-newsletter
+  June 8-July 29 + June?9, 13, 16, 20, 23, 27
. July7,11, 14

, B
=P
f '_LM 4] N T T
| | ] | &
= ;

R 5 T I WA S ST Bl I, oS8 S At By

¥ 10 g ' -t — e e ™S
o = SAEMDOTELLAMIENTOS il =y i e o e ek e R 1S
W LT M T R T 2 | W W e e
—---—' S J ©EeaBi ey B B By fms = Gmem e e ey
e R 2 1 0 0 i e O g 8 i e 5 2
— . f o g e v b g —— —y

-
R v
il il i i 8 iy iy, Wil i el ole bl T, kil

G e A m amemn e B B T i e i

et S, G — K R s 18 Ay e P ——
e e e T e Tl B
L P B e L
————— —— — —— e — e -

— R D R S B . ) Sl i . B

FREE
COMVENTHIOMNS

PN ety - G T N B e e

e i 1 g ) ity Pepuiis] Ty -y byl i gy b= Py

R

D L

- F oL B TEEE Feeama T cmre mas
— = L i Y e I ] S e m mes y p p e ey g orem Cmee T
| I Ty S [ " Y SR —" e —
Pericdista hapara sgus bag cndzda f B S —
e 0T B ar

e ICE pats 3 habar ks pasata sn - = e S el 1 ol TRL N Gl [ T 0 B
[0 PO RO (R R e e - T T, B b g e Bt e e o oy g e e
= - : - e e ey s i e e o e e 10 e —
e B i e T S

TRINITY “‘ METRO

Page 79 of 159



SOCIAL MEDIA

Social Media Influencer

* Instagram
June 20
1 in-feed
« 2 Stories

. My Curly Adventures
Reach: 88,270
Impressions: 284,100
Video Views: 58,200
Engagements: 3,470
Engagement rate: 1.6%

RITNE TRISTTY MITE TERRAL

() mycurtyaaventures_

(2] myeimtysdvantures,

I WRISTTY MIETRO

(5] mycunysdventures_

brgrmssans: I BEK Lt g d R il e i s koS Th23K
Enfagemaiils: 31 47TE En{jagissanis ERfagvditls
Haache 00 00K Haptfy 10 0NkK Hepcst: LLOHEK
Audinncs Breakdown
S gy
1] G

AHIw

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 80 of 159




PAID MEDIA

Fort Worth Weekly
* June 1-July 30

Homepage feature
Website ads
E-newsletter ads

Dedicated
newsletter

Social media post
Print ads

FREE

‘!"’? el

HAPPY HOUR g

SOCIAL POST
INSTAGRAM
TIED TS FB

PELE T T
BT e IMFRESSIOENS & LIKES

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 81 of 159




PAID MEDIA
CultureMap Fort Worth

=

— =g

Wis b ! it Fof L 'Worth rightl farw. B hew

« June 8-July 27 g iy
« Website ads R
« Daily Digest
emails

* Versions of the Daily
Digest emails in which
all of the Blue Line e o
ads appeared A el 7R A A oo
collectively
experienced a click-
through rate that was
3X the average!

Generated 952 clicks :
— an outstanding — - 5

Daily Digest S e
engagement. e

TRINITY I‘ METRO

Page 82 of 159



PAID MEDIA

Print Advertising

e Fort Worth KEY
* Inside front cover - June
» Back cover - July

* Front cover and feature
story - August

Dot
' & nR‘uuﬂd:'
- | DOWNTOWN

Bibiaanr»

FOR FRLE!

(2 LLL LY

Cl]-'r'l."[{l'l'r'l'l o I}ﬂ“'ﬂlﬂ-ﬁ'n

| . = 9
on Lrimity Metro

Wig & we g shes ==
[y
i, aladeddy,
T L ]

e e
v | e
el Pkt L b o cossmedt

s L e B e §

Trmiti Haiei g i
s derr a by e 1
s PTG P Y
[T RS Ty
Tharr and Thasma For
Ptk Lryamape m [ F 1283
B e
Lol Mieem el B
T S—— —

R T

|

T Chrumgyr Liow s om
g iy rrd e e
Ll T kgt = Faems
P s, ML el
. ] g bt iy
o By gy el ey
al h e, spEmering
e - daily e Aty
e wwik e e
| S .
e R T
el il B, e
g e e —
g el v s b

Wil i gy Lo ol
BE, o pranchsar 4 B Wi
Lemad ULy Tabisd o B4

el o e ik b e
e |
ol dar by [Beedescd
[ gy S
(ST * ey W
N
st Uhid ey bt B b
| Sy A
ik L e el

Faart

ey kg s, [

Morvh mdenaris b

e I i e
s Ao Nt . el Pt
o ol el ) by o
o oo [l L g ot B i

b romm
i e L sl B Liss
ey, v sl
i o e o o f el e e
Lam i [ hmrsesr P Pl = g s Ty ke
[t —_— »
R [Ty Py e

s | o & & ook TR

e e e e T

e T
iy e i, i [
Ve Fllar | 0 e
e br i, o w—
el rumen me gl woew
Doy [ Do b

e e e

am, A [Fen Vhavs Wi

[ e

« Srma

TRINITY "‘ METRO

Page 83 of 159




PAID MEDIA

Radio Advertising

 The Ranch 95.9FM
» :30 recorded spot
* 117 spots aired
« 702,000 impressions

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 84 of 159



PAID MEDIA

Results

June-July Paid Media
* 6,476,838 impressions
« 34,818 clicks N, sl o B
» 1.06% click-through R« A

G, TRy AT, were
w

rate

NEW BLUE LINE
RIDE TODAY!

TRIN!TY"‘ METRO

Page 85 of 159



BLUE LINE RIDERSHIP

WEEK 1

BLUE LINE 1.785

MOLLY muauss 2020 1,278

WEEK 3

BLUE LINE 058

+TT%

MOLLY prsuss 302m 1,163

BLUE LIMNE

WEEK 2

BLUE LIME 2,2TE

MOLLY mvusen 2020 1,084

WEEK 4

BLUE LINE £, 207

MOLLY s 202 1,001

WEEK 6

BLUE LINE

MOLLY poussann 20z 1174

WEEK 7

BLUE LINE 1,393

MOLLY jmasn 1,264

MOLLY muweme 108 1,124

WEEK &

BLUE LINE 1,951

§

MOLLY s 1056 1.4086

TRINITY “‘ METRO

Page 86 of 159



TRINITY "‘ METRO



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE
Dt ORering Mobes and Contraciual Obligations August 18, 2025
BACKGROUND

Greg Jordan, CFO, will prgvide an update on the 2025 Debt offefing of Tax-Exempt Nobes, with a Prncpal amount of
528,105,000, and Tax-Exempl Contractual Obligations, with a Principal amount of 512,050,000,

f&ﬁmﬂiaragalums for the Noles and Confractual obligations will be presanted for review, consideration, and approval
¥ f

RECOMMENDATION
There is no recommendation as this is an information fem for the Board's feedback and discussion,

STAFF DISPOSITION

EXECUTIVE LEAD™ DATE
Greg Jordan QBO25

Page 88 of 159



2025 Debt Offering

Greg Jordan, Chief Financial Officer
August 18, 2025

TFHNITYI‘ METRO

Page 89 of 159



Notes - Tax Exempt Series 2025

= Principal - $28,105,000 as a private placement

= Purpose - the acquisition, construction, repair, equipment improvements,
or extension of transportation systems

= Credit Rating - the notes are not rated

» |nterest Rate - banks are submitting fixed-rate bids on August 15, 2025,
with interest payable 3/15 and 9/15 of each year

= Maturity - not longer than 5 years from issuance date, not subject to call
or early redemption

» Closing and Funding - anticipated as September 17, 2025

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 90 of 159



Contractual Obligations (KOs) - Tax
Exempt Series 2025

= Principal - $12,050,000, as a private placement

= Purpose - personal property items, rolling stock, commuter rail
trains, or buses

= Credit Rating - the KOs are not rated

* |nterest Rate - banks are submitting fixed-rate bids on August 15,
2025, with Interest payable 3/15 and 9/15 each year

= Maturity - greater than 5 years from issuance date - not subject to
call or early redemption, expected maturity dates, 9/15/2028 through
9/15/2035

= Closing and Funding - anticipated as September 17, 2025

TRINiTY"‘ METRO

Page 91 of 159



Final Debt Schedule

= 8/15/2025 - Bids due from Banks

= 8/18/2025 - Board of Directors approval of Resolutions & Financing
Terms

= 8/19/2025 - 9/13/2025 - Legal & Financial transaction work for
closing

= 9/17/2025 - Closing and Funding

TRINITY 1} METRO
A

Page 92 of 159



Questions and Answers

TFHNITYI‘ METRO



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INFORMATION ITEM

ITEM TITLE MEETING DATE

Fy2026 Proposed Budged August 18, 2025

BACKGROUND

The FY 2026 Proposed Budgel is attached for consideration, Stall will returm in Seplember for final budgel adoption
RECOMMENDATION

There is no recommendation as this is an information fem for the Board's feedback and discussion,

STAFF DISPOSITION

EXECUTIVE LEAD" DATE
Greg Jordan OBDE25

Page 94 of 159



BOARD ACTION ITEM

ITEM NUMBER MEETING DATE
BA2025-36 August 18, 2025

ITEM TITLE

Contract Modification for MasterMinds Leadership
Training

BACKGROUND

On September 2023, the Board of Directors approved a contract with MasterMinds Leadership, LLC for three
comprehensive leadership training programs and executive coaching. These programs were for the Executive
Leadership Team, Managers/Directors and Supervisors. This board action is to extend our leadership training through
April 2027.

Leadership training is a Trinity Metro goal and objective and has been a significant theme in our 2024 and 2025
Employee Engagement Surveys.

FINANCING

Funds are available in Trinity Metro’s FY2025 Operational Budget. Funds for future contract years will be considered in
the respective proposed budgets.

RECOMMENDATION

The Trinity Metro Board of Directors authorizes the President & Chief Executive Officer to modify the contract with
MasterMinds Leadership, LLC. for an additional $238,796 for leadership training through April 2027.

STAFF DISPOSITION

EXECUTIVE LEAD* DATE
Kelli Shields 07/23/25

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 95 of 159



BOARD ACTION ITEM

ITEM NUMBER MEETING DATE
BAZ025-3T August 18, 2025
ITEM TITLE

Bus Operator Bamier Doors

BACKGROUND

Lasl year, the Federal Transit Adminkstration issued Genaral Directive 24-1: Reﬁuiad Actions Regarding Assaulis on
Transit Workers. This directive instructed transit agencies 1o complete a safaty nask assesament and identify mitigations
o reduce the nsks associated with assaulls on transa workers, During this process, Trinity Metro Stall identified
Dparalor Barrier Doors as an essantial mitigation 1o rasinct the unwanled enlry of individuals and objeds into the
workstations of bus cperators.

I May of 2025, Trinity Metro released an Invitation for Bid and received thres responses, The bid Trom The Alermmgarked
Parts Company, LLE dbda NF| Parts was delarminad o be the best maich tor the neads of Trinity Meiro.

PROCUREMENT

Trinity Metro's Procurament Depadment has followed procursment policy with the Request for Proposal and i in
compliance with all applicable Fedaral, Statle and Trinity Matro procurement requirements.

FINANCING
Furvds are available in Trinity Matro's FY 2025 Capital Budgat. Funds for fulure contract years will be considerad in the
ragpeclive proposed budgats.

RECOMMENDATION

The Trinity Meiro Board of Directors authorizes the President & Chief Executive Officer o enter inio 8 coniract with The
Aftermarket Parts Company, LLC to install Bus Operator Barrier Doors on our existing bus fleet for an amaount of
51,065,018,26 plus a 10% contingency of $106,501.83 for a tolal not to exceed $1,171,520.09. Trinity Metro's portion
through the Bus & Bus Facilities grant is 20% which is 5234, 30402,

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD* DATE
Alicia Walker OrMa2s

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 96 of 159



BOARD ACTION ITEM

ITEM NUMBER MEETING DATE
BAZ025-38 August 18, 2025
ITEM TITLE

Purchase of Fleet Air Conditioning Parts

BﬁEHGHﬂUHD

Air conditi rts remain critical to the reliabée operation of Trinity Metro's bus fleet, paricularly during the prolonged
summer heat. componeants are assential for malntaining pas er comiort and enauring unintermupted sandice
delivery, The majority of the bus air condiioning unis m use ane manﬁcturad by Therma King Corporation, and Trinity

Misdro conlinuas o sourca Thesma King pars for ongoing maintenance and rapaurs widar an annual contract that
ensures timely access to necessary parns.

Thermo Hlnﬁlns a leading global manufacturer of HVAC systems for the ransportation industry, Triniy Metro acquires
these parts through Convoy Servicing Company, an avthorized and independent Thesmao King distibutor based in
Drallas, Texas. Comvoy Servicing has sup Trinity Metro for over 8 decade and remains sole responsive bidder
from the procuremeant issued under IFH-— TOBT on ust 17, 2022, BA2023-10 Purchase of Fleet Alr itizning
Farts was approved by Trinity Metro Board of Directors on November 28, 3022, This reques! vwill increase the Boand
approved Conlract

The reguested Increase in contract value is due 1o an increase in the scope of repairs and price Increases on pars,
Origingl cost projections were developed a few years ago before recent markelplace increases

PROCUREMENT

Trinity Metro's Procurement Depanment has followed precurement policy and is in compliance with all applicabile
Fosheral, State and Trnity Melro procurement reguinerments.,

FINANCING

Funds are available in Trinity Mebro's FY 2025 Capital Budgel, Funds for fulure confract years will be considered in the
respeciive proposed budgets.

RECOMMEMNDATION

The Trnily Meirg Board of Directors authorizes the President & Chief Execulive Officer 1o increase the amount of the

E!-uarl:l agmm-d contract, BAZ023-10 Purchase of Fleet Air Conditioning Parts approvaed November 28, 2022, with
c-l:er'rpEI'Ij' fo purchase Thermo King air conditioning parts for buses by $260,000 with a 10%

mﬂlngeru:v of 526,000 for a tolal revised nol to excesd contract amount of $661,000.

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD" DATE
Alicia Walkar DBRMD12E

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 97 of 159



BOARD ACTION ITEM

Iterm Mumber: BA2023-10 Meeating Date: Movember 28, 2022
Item Title: Purchase of Fleat Air Conditioning Parts

BACKGROUMND

Air conditioning parts are critical to bus operations. They are a vital component of the day-to-day
operations of our bus system due to the heat during our extendad summer months. Most of Trinity
Metro's bus air conditioning units are manufactured by Thermo King Corporation. Trinity Matro
purchases Thermeo King Parls as required for mainftenance and repair, An annual contract secures the
provision of meeling demands for parts as needed.

Thermo King is a global manufacturer of HVAC equipment for the transportation industry, and multiple
independent distributors provide the services and parts for the Thermo King line. Convoy Servicing
Company is an independent distributor located in Dallas, Texas, and has been providing this service to
Trinity Metro for the past ten (10) years. Trinity Metro issued IFB-22-T087 on August 17, 2022, to
purchase Air Conditioner Pars for Buses. Convoy Servicing company was the single responder {o the
bid.

PROCUREMENT
The Trinity Metro Procurement Depariment has followed procurement policy with this request for
proposal and complies with all applicable Federal, State, and Trinity Metro procurement requirements.

FINANCING
Funding for the first year of the contract is included Trinity Metro's FY2023 Operating Budget. Funds for
future confract years will be considered in their respective proposed budgets.

RECOMMEMNDATION
The Planning, Operations & Marketing Committea recommaends that the Trinity Metro’s Board of Directors

authorize the President & Chief Executive Officer to enter into a five-year coniract with Convoy Servicing
Company to purchase Thermo King air conditioner parts for buses. Based upon the projected usage of
products, the estimated cost of the agreement for one year with Convoy Servicing Company is $75,000
for a total five-year cost not to exceed $375,000.

STAFF DISPOSITION
Wayne Gensler MNovember 10, 2022

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE

DISPOSITION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

fref ML b}u% égf Miigeclssr 25 2032

SECRETARY APPR DATE

(old page number) Fage 10 of 83
Page 98 of 159



v King of Dulas Expenditenes 7/ 550214 ¢
| Purchass {Irvobce Dalal G Date | Oue Dais
TON0S£04 | 005/ 2004 | 08,26/ 1024] 090453074
Tongsend | osis/poxd] ca/eeiioal 090452004
FOIDSL04 J7024| 082620245 09/04/2024
TOIRas03 Jro2a) oafoafaoza) oo e
ToRasis | aafan/poad | cav1aiioal 09/15/520204
Tounas s | aefan/pana| car1iinas] 091552024 105302 | THERMAD KING 0F DALLAS LLE
[Toanaets | oevnae/moa) cayzi/a02a] 10/oRi2024 FEIT.GS - IP.:Idllf_'u_h 1Ce302  TRIERRED) KING OF DALLAS LLC  [FO1008K1
FORCATLG | TR0 A0NI02A0 LT TR0R) & 4137 | 5 - Ti"l-dlniu._l 1CEbE P TRIERMACH KING OF DAL LLE  [FOI006A5S
ﬂ'ﬂlH!l? a5 ha2A IIHIJ.I'II}zll L/ rfa0z4) & 5207 | % - |Eaid in Full 10502 | THERMC KING OF DALLAS LLE  |RO1006219
TORDRGRS | S EIh0da | A0V0R 3026 ] 10/ 1 02004) & G500 | 5 = |Paid in Full 10002 TRERMD KING OF DALLAS LLE  [FODOOSGED
TORDNGRT | ORI | I0M0RAI0EE] PO/ LI2024) & 14.00 | 5 - |Paid in Full 10002 [ THER M) KING OF DALAS LLE  [FOID0S6L)
rotoardl | o0 mand)] tovissaeza] 10| & TREITGS |5 - |Paid in Full 102 | THERMD KING OF BAILAS LLE  [Faddored ESJJ‘I%
TOiaT1d | Iovionadd) iovissoza] 1] § 5107 | 5 = |Paid in Full 10902 | THERMD KING 0F DAILAS LLE  [FOIO0GTES A5EFI001
rosoarTr | aovorspoaa] anvisiaoza) 1oz s SRR |5 - |Paid in Full 10002 [THER MG KING OF DALLAS LLE  [FOI0LOTEE IATES6T
Taioarry | aovorsrand] iovikioza] 1108000 6 1708 | 5 - |Paid in Full 102 [ THERRED KING OF DAILAS LLE  [FOIBM07R F5ALR56T
ronaRe? | 10v22/p004| sovzeaors] 1204 & RO |5 - |Paid in Ful 1032 [ THERMAD KING OF DALLAS LIC  [FOI0L30RS P |
137837p024] s11a2024) 11 19200e] & - % - [raidin Fun 10902 [ THERMD KING OF DALLAS LLC  [FRODO2456Y 26051675
ronto0ds | aaie/ma] snesones] 12800z4) 5 47z sa |5 - |Paid in Full 10502 [ THERMAD KING OF DalLAS L [Foonazsy 26177987
TOLROOE | 1370R/mpd] 1aeya0ns] 12180004) 5 2esD [ 3 - |Paid in Ful 10602 | THERMSD KING OF DSLLAS LLC  [FOIDLG06E 2E453401
Tont0036 | 137187004 12/maa004] 12/1502024] & 53.55 [ 5 - |Paid in Ful 10902 | THERMID KING OF DALLAS LIC  [FO100909s 26453401
rortmos [ 12708/mna] 131500048 p/o3anzs] 5 155753 |8 - |Paid in Fun 10502 | THERMAD KING OF D81LAS LIC  [Fo10ez053 2655572
TouLDOsd | 17i0a/ma) 12716/ 004] DL anzs] 5 47o2sa |5 [Faid in Full 10502 [THERMAD KING OF D8LLAS LLC  [Folou9agy 2538574
rorioos4 | 17/03/004] 137160024 D1z a0zs] 5 290 [ 3 [Faid in Ful 10502 | THERMID KING OF DALLAS L [FOI0L50E7 26558574
TORLDOSS | 13/03/3004] 42/16/1004F O ozs| 5 1062 |5 [Pakd in Full 10502 | THERMID KING OF D8LLAS L. [Fololoasy 2653570
!il'l:lll[l]il'l 1126 7024] 12/16/024] 1 opdl 5 242850 | % [Faid in Full ]EH}EEEHMHIHEI]FMELLC FOL0Z0EI 26611645
Tonio14E | 17/ia/p0ea| 12726/ mes] ;1Efanzs| 5 242350 | - |Paid in Full 10902 [ THEAMD KING OF D8ILAS LIC  [Fol022E1S 26E15536
{rontoi4e | 12/00/m004] 12/26002a8) 00/18/0025] 5 2.408.50 | 5 [Faid in Full 10502 | THERMID KING OF D8LLAS L. [Fo10geE1s 2EB15536
TORLO13T | 1319700 ] 1226024 ] O ozs| 5 zagmsn |4 [Faid in Full Jmﬁznmmmwmmm FO1024630 2BEIONAT
ronlozls | onfiafeoes| onenimaes] nansfanzs] 5 455308 | 4 - |Paid in Full 10502 | THERMIG KING OF D8ILAS LI [FoingeoaEs 27375183
OL/32/ 305 s zfrizozs| 5 155620 | % - |Paid in Full 27617925
onfeabas] cafnainest naE0s] & 10034 |5 - |Faid in Full 27HITILS
01731505 | G2 /LEAI0as ) 01 Maaf2028] & 4,702.59 | - |Paid in Full 2FRIETRG
Q3FL0/2005) CAFLEAIAS]E 0A/1252028) & A0 | 5 - |Paid in Full 1002 I THERMG KING OF DALAS LLE  |FO10017 3 2FELAG
QI H0I0RS | CRFIRAIGRS] 0R/1352085] & .08 | 5 - |Paid in Full 1002 | THERMD KING OF DRULAS LLE  |FO1001 73 TR
O3/ i 0% | GASIRAINRSE 0R1a20kE] & el | 5 - |Paid in Full Az miERRED KinG OF BalLAs e [Fois0iFes arean|
QI I0h0aS | GaFLEAINSE 0/ 122025] & 150,27 | % - |Paid in Full 1002 | THERMID KING OF (AALAS LLE  [FOI001 TS 2ronasi|
QLIS | G2 LEAIGRSE 03/ 12720F5] & L.E85.5T | 5 - |Paid in Full 10002 [ THER M KING OF DAILAS LLE  [FOIDIITES arusaaa6]
O3/ 0TS | GAFLRAI0ESE 0R/IF20F5] & E3R | 5 = |Paidin Full A0z THERRED KinG OF DalLAS LLE  [FOII1TH PR |
QUSROS | DOSLRAIDSE DRIF20F5] & 133.00 | & - |Paid in Full 1002 | THERMD KING OF DAILAS LLE  [FOIBALTED FE |
QLD OAS | CQLEAIDRSE D3/ 1020FE] & 515073 | 5 - |Paid in Full 1002 | THERMID KING OF DALLAS LLC  [FOID31THY 2ras454E|
D305 | 02/ LEAI0ZSE D31 20F5] & SO0.00 | 5 - |Paid in Full 10AE | THERKAD KING OF DAILAS LLE  [FOIB91T7H Froucisan)
oz ey pes| oafissanesh 0afoes] & 4,60 | 5 - |waid in Full 1907 | THERMD KING OF DeiLas e [Foicaizes 2rs454R]
of21a00s] oagrsianes) 0aaanaozs| & [ E - |PaidinFun 10| THERMSD KING OF DaLLAS LLE  [FOI0362SS 2r100258]
02725/3025] 03/04/2035] 03/272005] & 178.86 [ 3 - |Paid in Fubl 10902 [THERMSD KING OF DellAs LiC  [Folasond 28235478
0225/ p025 | oa/oasa0es] 0azrieoes] & 45384 | 5 - |Paid in Full 10907 THERMAD KING OF DaLLAS LLE  [Foloassad 2B235478]
TOILOATE | 02/25/m005 | 03/04/2005] D3/37/2085 500 |3 - |Paid in Ful 10502 | THERMAD KING OF DALLAS LLC  [Fol0asosd 28235478
Tortozss | o1/2z/m00s | oafoesnas] Dz a0z 245651 [ [Faid in Ful 10502 | THERMAD KING OF D8LLAS LLC  [FolneRssY 2EZ45 706
TOLLOSED | 03/26/M005 | 04/01/202s] D435 a0zs] 5 4 7o2sa |5 |Faid in Fu 10502 [THERMID KING OF DMLLAS L. [FOI092745
ToLL0507 | 03/h1/p00s | od/01/200s ] 04/100 2025 172.86 | 5 |Paid in Full ERMD KING OF DALLAS LI [Fo10387i0
TOnL0s07 | o3/11/a00s | oa/o1202s] 041053025 100,04 | 3 [Faid in Ful ERRAD KING OF DALLAS LLC  [Fo103s7m
[ronnsss | o4/02/2005] 0a/1400025 5|5 pEERa7 |f [Faid in Full ERMO KING OF DALLAS L. [FO1041484
TOLLOT44 2025 05 /052025 iFD] 4,700.59 | £ [Faid in Full THERMC KING OF DALLAS LI [FOI051017
TO110733 B/7025] 05/05/ 2025 05/727202s 357.72 - |Faid in Full THERMO KING OF DALLAS LE  [FO10S0ZE4
2/7025| 05091025 (F] 4540 - |Faid in Full THERMAC KING OF DALLAS LI [FO10MBE7E
2270035 | 06092005 05/ 222085 24551 | 4 - |Faid in Full HERMC KING GOF DALAS LLC  [FO10489 7
19/7025 | 06/21000a5] D6/125207% .370.68 | 8 - |Paid in Full THERMO KING OF DALLAS LLE  |FO1048 255
0519/ 2025 | 05/21/2025] 06/18/207% 16,09 | 3 - |Faidin full THERMO KING OF DALLAS LLE__ [FO10529%
51900025 O5/21/3025] 06/18/2025 500,00 | % - |Paidin Full 16502 [ THERMD KING OF DALLAS LLC__ [FO105299%
IR0 | OAS21/0005 ) D6/ 185205 1608 | % - |eakd n full 12 THERMC KING OF DRLLAS LLE  [FO105 2054
OSSN PORS | AR INES) MUTT20FS] & Tinah | % - |Paid in Full 102 [ THERMC KING OF DALLAS LLE  |FQI0SGATT
E_J'DII.IIIB:II QR IRT0RS | 6N I0R5) DITTAA0FS] & S.146.82 | 5 - |*aid in Full 102 [ THERAC) KING OF DRILAS LLE  |FOIGS45TO
TOR106ES | 05 30005 | GG 0EAI005E DESYT20RE] & 4,702.50 |4 - |Paid in Full 10002 | THERRSD KING OF DALAS LLE  [FI057 36T
FOLLDESS | OS/IRN0AS | D6 N0E5] D6/TT2025] & 470350 | 5 = |Paid in Full 1002 [ THERMD KING OF DALLAS LLE  [FOIDST36T
TOULOEDS | OS2/ P05 ) D60 I025] D6/TT20T5E] & 436 | § - |Paid in Full 10002 [THERMID KING OF DALAS LLE  [FOIDS54TS
[OC0G0EAE | DN RIS | 07070258 0732085 ] & ¥O.10 | 5 = |Paid in Full 102 | THERRAD KING OF DALLAS LLE  [FOIDGSR1S
[o6azed | orion/mgs| orporaoes] 0naa0es] 5 £52 |5 - |aid in Fun 1002 [ THERMAD KING OF DAILAS LIC  [FOI0GSE1S
rontoead | orjonsags| ormoeoes] orssanzs] 5 saviea [ s - |Paitin Fun 10902 | THERKAD KING OF DAlLAS LLC  [FOI06SRRD 31112371
rorioead | oriosmos | ovmesoes] 0730202 & Lo | 5 - |Paid in Fun 10502 | THERMD KING OF DelLAS LIC  [FolnesER: 31113271
TOuL0a4T | o7ioe/ogs | onoesoes] oeo20rs] & 15880 |5 LOE &0 |Appioeed for Fayd 10902 [THERMD KING OF DALLAS LLC  [FOI062743 31174383
TorLra47 | o7/oesmas | ovfoesaoes] oesol20zs] & 42200 | 5 4BE 00 [Approved for Payd 10902 [THERMD KING OF DaLLAS LLC  [FO1062743 31124333
routiod | o7/oe/mes| ov/oeines] oe/onfanzs] & 47oese |5 4,702 50 [Approved Tor Pay]  10902|THERMO KING OF DALLAS LLE  [FOI06655E 311243092
0515/ P025] 07/ LE/I025] 07152025 [ B Faid in Full |  1cs02|THERMD KING OF DALLAS LLC  [woo09ssa3s ETECT L |
TORL106E | O7/21/3005 | 07252005 DA/T0/2025 627012 [ &,270.12 [Approved for Payd 10502 THEAMO KING OF DALLAS L [FO1070723 31512352
TOLL106E | O7f2L/00s | o7 zs/mas] oa/of0zs] 5 a7onse (5 4,707 55 [Approved for Pap]  10S02|THERMIO KING OF DALLAS LLC__ [FO1070723 315183537]
Annua Expersitues § 12691855 % 16,362.10 Page 99 of 159
Vear Espendtures ¥ I (ears)s 5 253,8300 roinded wp bo $260,000 phes DI contingency £ 2BEOODO.D0



BOARD ACTION ITEM

ITEM NUMEER MEETING DATE
BAZ0Z5-30 August 18, 2025
ITEM TITLE

Memorandum of Undarstanding Regarding Cost
Reimbursement for Silver Line Positive Train Control
(PTC) Barvices

BACKGROUND

On April 13, 2021, Trinily Mebro and DART entered into an Interocal Positive Train Conirol (PTC) renit for thie
sharing of pasl, currenl, and future PTC costs and services, as well as an Operaling Agreement for the shared use of
TEXRa# faciitias at OFWY International Ai . wheare Trinity Meftro constructed, operates, and maintains passenger rail
ganvices known a5 TEXRad between the Fort Worth TEP Station in downbown Fort 'Worth and the DFW International
Adrport (DFWIA) Terminal B,

DART da@ugm-d buili, and will mainiain and operals the Sikver Line pasim;gar rail service easi of DFWIA. DART intends
Tor the Silver Line to conmect fo DFWIA Terminal B Station, for which DAR ed from Trinity Metro access and
hits to (a) a portion of Trinity Metro Easement narth and west of DFWILA North Elﬂnm () the Trindly Metro TEXRail
i, and 5{:] ather portons of the Trinity Matro TEXRail DFWIA Property situaked on the Easement. Beginning in late
21]25':0- mid-2028, DART will commance aparating the Silver Lina commuter rail service betweaan Plano and O .

This Board Aclion seeks approval for Trinlt? Metro and DART 1o enter inlo a Memorandum of Linderstanding (MOLU)
regarding DART I'Eil‘l"lhurt-inE Trinity Matra for all of II:E coslks related 1o the opera . maintaining and other corridor
requirad services for Silver Line commuter rail services oparating along the DFW easament Trinity Meiro pays
directty 1o its Contractors on behalf of DART Sikver Line commuter rall service.

FINANCING
Funds are included in Trinity Metro's FY2025 Operating Budged. Funda for future years will be considered in tha
respective proposed budgets,

RECOMMEMNDATION

The Trinity Metro Board of Directors authorizes the Pressdent & Chiel Executive Officer o enter inlo a Memorandum of
Understanding betweean Trinity Metro and Dallas Area Rapid Transit for reimbursement of Trin n? Metro's costs
associated with DART operating the Silver Line commatar rail system at the DFWIA station and DFWIA Terminal B.

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD* DATE
Resd Lanham QRG2S

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 100 of 159



BOARD ACTION ITEM

ITEM NUMEER MEETING DATE
BAZ0Z5-40 August 18, 2025

ITEM TITLE

Regional Positive Train Control Hosting Service Contract
Amendrment

BACKGROUMND

I My 2017, the Trinity Metro Board of Directors aﬁlgrwad implamentaticn of Reghsnal Positive Train Control (PTC) 1o
support the Rail Salety Improvement Act of 2008 (R31A), which mandabed that all railroads thal provide regutarly
scheduled commuler passenger senvicas must develop a plan for implementing PTC.

Cin June 240, 2023, the Trinity Matro Board of Déreciors approved BA2023-37, Euthufizir? Trinity betro o enter inte a
Twe-year, 57,092,063 42 software and hardware hosting solulion agreement No, 23-033 for TEXRail and Trimily
Radway Express (TRE} wilh Herzog Technologies, Inc. (HTI). The PTC ustin%surﬁm includad, but wire ol limibed
to, Hosted Infrastruchure, Intercperable Train rol Messaging (ITCM), PTC Back Office System/Maobile Device
Manager/Chent Admin/Database, and Computer-Alded Dispa rain Management Di%palmi Software Applications
al a significant cosl savings. TEXRail and TRE, with Trinity Melro paying its share for TRE and TEXRail, equally share
i cost for these PTG senvices.

Craflas Area Rapid Transit's (DART) new Sitver Line ts a 26 mile commuter rail aystem stretchimg frorm Flano o DEW
Airport and covernng seven North Texas cibes (Grapeving, Coppell, Dallas, Carrolllon, Addison, Richardson, and Plano),
The Silvar Line commuter rail system is solety owned and operated by DART.

To efficiently deliver PTC across the regicn and continue fulfilling the RS1A PTC mandate, Trnity Metro and DART plan
i armnend the HTI Condract Mo, 23-033 fo include PTC Hosting services required under REIA for the Silver Ling
Commuter Rail system, al a cosl of $1,844,330.97. This amendment will also add 532, 400 for ongoing ATET and
‘erizon Wireless connection services for TEXRail and TRE. makjrégrﬂm total amended contract amount 51,876, 730,97,
with & mew maximum contract authorization of 58,968, 704 30, DART will reimburse Tri Metro 100% for all Silver Line
FT?S'FW?_W costs under the lerms and conditions of a Memorandum of Understanding rding Cost Resmbursemant
o aliver Ling.

PROCUREMENT

Trinify Mabro's Procurament Deparment has Tollowed procurgment policy and is in compliance wilh all applcabie
Fedearal, Siate and Trinity Metro procurament reguiremeants.

FINANCING

Funds are availabla in Trinity Mabra's FY 2025 Oparating Budgel. Funds for future contract years will be considarad in tha
respective proposed budgets.

RECOMMEMNDATION

The Trinity Meiro Board of Directors authorizes the President & Chief Execulive Officer io amend Contract Mo, 23-033
with Herzog Technologies, Inc. for Foaitive Train Control Hosting services, 1o include the DART-owned and operated
Silver Line commuler rail gystem, for an amount nol 1o exceed 51,844,330.97; add 332 400 for ongoing ATAT and
Verizon Wirgless connechon services for TEXRail and TRE for a lolal overall contract amended amound of

1,876, 730,97 for a mew tolal authorized contract amount of 58,968, T84 35,

STAFF DISPOSITION
EXECUTIVE LEAD™ DATE
Resd Lanham QRD42G

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 101 of 159



BOARD ACTION ITEM

ITEM NUMBER MEETING DATE
BAZ025-41 August 18, 2025
ITEM TITLE

Forl Worth | ndent School District & Trinity Metro

Memorandum of Understanding

BACKGROUND

Forl Worth [5D and Trinity Metro ane proposing a new partnership 1o provide free transportation oo all Trinity Meatro
sarvices for high school studests during the school year. This is 8 one-year pilod program Tor the FY 2025-2026 school
yiraw that aims lo remave a significant barrier for students, anabling them to access educalional and axiracusricular
apportunities bayond the school campus.

This partnership aligng with both the distnic's mission 1o support student success and Trinity Metro®s goal o serve the
community. By addressing transportation challenges, this prograrm has the polential to enhance student independence,
expand their horzons, and contribute to the overall well-being of tha community. & successful pilot could lead to a long-
tenm partnership thatl benefits thousands of students for years to come.

DETAILS
All Fort Worth 15D high school students would be E@;-ibla to ride select Trinity Metro sendices for free, cally fixed
route basses, Trinity Metro TEXRad, Trinity Rallway Express (TRE) within Tarrant County, and paratransit services, This

initsnlive mdr.srgnud o Im!‘ student acoess o a wide range of opporumlies, including afler-schodl and sports
activities, tubori resources, part-time jobs, inlemships, community engagement and social events. This
[program is supp EIr'I'I-EII'IH!| does nod replace the district's yellow bus serdices. it provides an addiicnal, flexible
transportation option for siudents, The specific mechanism for students 1o ride for free will be primarily GoPass, with
FWISD sludent identification badges as a secondary option

RECOMMEMNDATION

The Trinity Meiro Board of Direclors authorizes the Pregsident & Chiel Execulive Dfficer 1o enter inlo a Memorandum of
Understanding betwean The Ford Worth Trans tian Authority, dba Trinity Maire, and Forl Worth Indepandent School
Ciitrict io initiut? EleEIEt program for the FY 5-2038 school year with S high school studands to access Trimity
Matro gericas for

STAFF DISPOSITION

EXECUTIVE LEAD™ DATE
Anatte Landeros QBRNTI2E

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 102 of 159



Memorandum of Understanding
between the Fort Worth Independent School District
and Trinity Metro

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU” or “Agreement”) is made between the Fort Worth Independent
School District, a political subdivision of the state of Texas and a legally constituted independent school
district located in Tarrant County, Texas (“FWISD” or “District”) and Fort Worth Transportation Authority
d/b/a Trinity Metro, a regional transportation authority existing and operating under Chapter 452 of the Texas
Transportation Code (“Trinity Metro” or “Organization”). Organization and District may be collectively
referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.”

WHEREAS, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code authorizes local governments to contract with each other
to provide governmental functions and services; and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into this Agreement to provide local governments with greater efficiency
and economy in purchasing products and services; and

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the Parties, individually and together, do hereby adopt and find the foregoing
promises and findings of said governing bodies; and

WHEREAS, each Party paying for the performance of governmental functions or services will make those
payments from current revenues available to the paying Party.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of and conditioned upon the mutual covenants and agreements, herein, the
Parties hereto mutually agree, as follows.

A. Collaborative Goals/Purpose:

This MOU is intended to outline the terms and responsibilities between the Parties for a one-year pilot program
(“Pilot Program”) to provide free transit passes to students enrolled within the District in the 2025-2026 school
year.

B. Organization Responsibilities/Obligations:

1. Trinity Metro intends to design and implement a transit pass program for all District students (‘“Pass
Program”), with the primary audience being high school students in grade nine (9) and above. This
Pass Program will be app-based with an online portal for students to apply for and manage their transit
passes. The app-based, online portal will be owned, operated, maintained, and managed by Trinity
Metro, and Trinity Metro will retain all legal right to any such online application or portal.

2. Trinity Metro will provide the District with a backup system for students without smartphones using
physical transit cards or visual student badge validation as an alternative. The District will be
responsible for managing and distributing the alternative methods for the backup system.

3. Once active, Trinity Metro will provide free fares on board local buses and TEXRail transit 24 hours
a day, 7 days a week through the Pass Program, until the conclusion of the Pilot Program.

4. Trinity Metro will provide available ridership data to the District to be used for ongoing evaluation
of the program as requested. Trinity Metro will not modify routes and schedules based upon capacity
issues related to this program without discussion and agreement between the Parties.

C. District Responsibilities/Obligations:

1. The District intends to collaborate with Trinity Metro to develop and disseminate materials promoting

Page 1 of 6

Page 103 of 159



the program directly to students and families.

2. The District will collaborate with Trinity Metro to verify student eligibility for the Pilot Program.

D. Joint Responsibilities/Obligations:

1.

Trinity Metro and the District intend to mutually support each other in providing the Pilot Program
offering free fares on board local buses and TEXRail transit to students who are enrolled in the District
and who also enroll in the Pilot Program. The goal of this Pilot Program is to enhance student mobility
and access to extracurricular activities, tutoring outside of the regular school day, community resources,
and job opportunities. Additionally, the program will promote sustainable transportation options to the
region and its residents and foster further collaboration between Trinity Metro and the District.

At the conclusion of the Pilot Program for District students during the 2025- 2026 school year, Trinity
Metro and the District will evaluate its success using a combination of ridership data analysis,
community feedback, and program impact assessments.  To the extent allowed by applicable law,
Trinity Metro will provide detailed ridership data to FWISD that are directly related to the Pilot
Program, which will include metrics such as the number of trips taken, peak usage times, and
geographic distribution of pass utilization.

E. Term:

This Agreement will be effective from the date of signing and shall terminate on July 31, 2026 (“Initial Term”)
unless earlier terminated under the terms of this MOU. This Agreement may be modified or extended at any time
by mutual written consent of both Parties. Any modifications or extensions will be negotiated and documented
in writing at least 30 days prior to the intended change. This Agreement may also be terminated for
convenience by either party by providing at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party.

F. Compensation

The Parties hereby agree that, except for funds required to fulfill their respective duties and obligations as outlined
in this MOU, neither Party shall have any financial commitment, liability, or obligation to the other. Each Party
shall bear its own costs and expenses incurred in the performance of its responsibilities under this Agreement, and
no additional financial obligations shall arise unless explicitly agreed upon in writing by both Parties in a separate
agreement. Furthermore, the governing bodies of the Parties, in paying for the performance of the government
functions, will make payments from current revenues legally available to each Party.

G. General Provisions

L.

Confidentiality. Except to the extent required by Section 552 of the Texas Local Government Code, or any
other applicable law, the Parties hereby agree not to divulge any proprietary or confidential information to
any person without written authorization from the other Party. Trinity Metro does not intend to collect any
information about District students that would invoke the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(“FERPA”). However, if applicable, for purposes of FERPA, the Parties agree to comply with all relevant
confidentiality requirements regarding a student’s personally identifiable information, including entering
into any additional agreements related to the care and confidentiality of such information.

Limitations of Authority. No Party has authority for and on behalf of the other except as provided in this
MOU. This MOU shall not be deemed to create any relationship of agency, partnership, or joint venture
between the parties, and neither of the parties will make such representation.

Nothing in this MOU waives or relinquishes the Parties’ rights to claim any exemptions, privileges, or
immunities as may be provided by law. Neither the District nor Trinity Metro or their officers, agents,

Page 2 of 6

Page 104 of 159



10.

1.

12.

13.

representatives, board of directors, or employees agree to hold each other harmless nor agree to indemnify
the other, and any contracts or provisions to the contrary are void.

Notices. All notices, consents, approvals, demands, requests, or other communications provided for or
permitted to be given under any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed
to have been duly given or served when delivered by delivery or when deposited in the U.S. mail by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

To District: With Copies to:
Fort Worth Independent School District Fort Worth Independent School District
Attn: Kellie Spencer Office of Legal Services
7060 Camp Bowie Blvd. Attn: Chief Legal Counsel
Fort Worth, Texas 76116 7060 Camp Bowie Blvd.

Fort Worth, Texas 76116

To Organization:
Trinity Metro
Attn: President/CEO
801 Grove Street
Fort Worth, Texas 76102

Entire Agreement. This MOU represents the entire agreement by and between the Parties and supersedes
any and all prior oral or written agreements, arrangements, or understandings between the District and
Organization that relate to the subject matter of this MOU. Any representations, promises, or guarantees
made but not stated in the body of this MOU are null and void and of no effect.

Assignment. Neither Party may assign its interest in this MOU except upon the written consent of the other
Party.

Severability. If any portion of this MOU shall be, for any reason, held invalid or unenforceable, the
remaining portion or portions shall nevertheless be valid, enforceable, and carried into effect.

Amendments. Any change to this MOU must be in writing and signed by both Parties.
Waiver. The failure of any Party hereto to exercise the rights granted them herein upon the occurrence of
any of the contingencies set forth in this MOU shall not in any event constitute a waiver of any such rights

upon the occurrence of any such contingencies.

Applicable Law. This MOU and all materials and/or issues collateral thereto shall be governed by the laws
of the State of Texas applicable to contracts made and performed entirely therein.

Public Records. The Organization understands and agrees that the District is subject to the Texas Public
Information Act (“TPIA”) and its limited exceptions. Upon a valid request under the TPIA for information
covered under this MOU, District will provide third-party notice to Organization but assumes no other
responsibility.

Force Majeure. Neither Party will be liable to the other Party hereunder or in default under this MOU for
failures of performance resulting from acts or events beyond the reasonable control of such Party, including,
by way of example and not limitation, acts of God, civil disturbances, war, and strikes.

Venue. The venue to enforce this MOU shall lie exclusively in Tarrant County, Texas.

Page 3 of 6

Page 105 of 159



14.

20.

21.

22.

No Third-Party Beneficiary. This agreement is made solely between the Organization and the District and
is intended solely for their benefit. No other person or entity shall be deemed a beneficiary of this
Agreement, whether directly or indirectly, and no third party shall have any rights, claims, or interests in
this Agreement or its enforcement. The rights and obligations contained herein are personal to the
Organization and the District and may not be assigned or transferred to any third party without the prior
written consent of both Parties.

Alternative Dispute Resolution. Claims and disputes associated with this Agreement will not be resolved
by arbitration or other alternative dispute resolution processes unless court-ordered or otherwise mutually
agreed to in writing by both Parties.

Interlocal Cooperation Act. The Interlocal Cooperation Act set forth in Chapter 791 of the Texas
Government Code provides legal authority for the Parties to enter into this Agreement because it provides
a government function or service that each party is authorized to perform individually and it serves the
common interest of both Parties.

Non-Appropriation of Funds. The Parties will use best efforts to appropriate sufficient funds to support
each of their obligations under this Agreement. However, in the event that sufficient funds are not
appropriated by either Party’s governing body and, as a result, that Party is unable to fulfill its obligations

under this Agreement, the Party (i) shall promptly notify the other party in writing and (ii) may terminate
this Agreement, effective as of the last day for which sufficient funds have been appropriated.

[Signature Page Follows]

Page 4 of 6

Page 106 of 159



ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

The Parties here agree to execute this Agreement either in writing or by electronic signature. Pursuant to the Texas
Business & Commerce Code Ann., §322.007, an electronic signature of this Agreement satisfies the legal
requirements of signatures by the Parties.

In witness of the Agreement above, the Board of Education of the Fort Worth Independent School District and the
Organization, acting by their duly assigned and authorized representatives, have executed this Agreement to be
effective as of the latest date on which it is signed by the authorized representatives of the Parties.

BY SIGNING, THE PARTIES AGREE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF TEXAS
THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

FOR DISTRICT: FOR TRINITY METRO:
Signed: Signed:
Name:  Kellie J. Spencer Name:
Title: Deputy Superintendent Title:
Date: ~ Date:
Req. #:
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL Business Organization: (Check one)

(Required over $25,000)
] Corporation

Signed: [] Partnership
[] Individual/Sole Proprietor
Dr. Karen C. Molinar [] Limited Liability Company (LLC)
Superintendent of Schools
Date: [] Other Entity Type:
APPROVED AS TO FORM: Organization Employer ID #:
Signed:

Legal Counsel for District
Date:

Page 5 of 6

Page 107 of 159



TRINITY METRO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESOLUTION

$28,105,000 of Notes Tax Exempt Series 2025
(R2025-08)

A RESOLUTION ADDPTED BY THE SLBREGIOMAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FORT WORTH
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE FORT WORTH
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY MOTE, SERIES A025; ESTABLISHING THE SECLIRITY THEREFOR; AKD
PRESLCRIBING OTHER MATTERS WITH RESPECT THERETO

Jeff Davis Richard Andreski
Chair President & CED

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 108 of 159



RESOLUTION NO. R2025-08

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED BY THE SUBREGIONAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FORT
WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF
THE FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY NOTE, SERIES 2025; ESTABLISHING
THE SECURITY THEREFOR; AND PRESCRIBING OTHER MATTERS WITH RESPECT
THERETO

Page 109 of 159



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1. DEFINITIONS .......ooiiiiiiiieiteciee ettt etee ettt e et e et e e s e e e tbeesabaeessaeesssaeessaeessseesssaeessseesssesensns 1
Section 2. RECITALS, AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE OBLIGATION..........cccoceeviiieieeeiee e 2
Section 3. DESIGNATION, DATE, DENOMINATIONS, NUMBERS, AND MATURITIES AND
INTEREST RATES OF OBLIGATION .....cootiiitiiiiiiiicteete ettt ettt et eveestaesneseveesveevaestaesanessneenveenns 3
Section 4. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE OBLIGATION. ......oooiiiiiriiiieeieeieesiee e sve e sve e snees 3
Section 5. REDEMPTION ........ooooiiiiiiiiieiee ettt ettt te e ve e e ebeesabaeetaeesssaeesbaeessseesssaeensseesnseeensns 5
Section 6. FORM OF OBLIGATION .......coootiiieiieriesieete ettt eieesteestesstesseesseessaesseesssesssesnsesssessseesssesnnes 5
Section 7. PLEDGE OF REVENUES AND FUNDS ...ttt sveesree e 5
Section 8. COVENANTS. ..ottt ettt st e ettt e ta e st e sss e e s e et aessaessaessseasseanseenseenseessnennnes 7
Section 9. DEFEASANCE OF OBLIGATION. ......ooiiiiiiiiiieiieie ettt tee e e vee e ve et eeevaesaveeenes 7
Section 10. DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED OBLIGATION. ............. 8
Section 11. CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF OBLIGATION; BOND COUNSEL'S
OPINION; ENGAGEMENT OF BOND COUNSEL......ccoiiiiiiitieiieciesiieete ettt sveestreeveeveeveeveesvnesenas 9
Section 12. COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON THE OBLIGATION.
...................................................................................................................................................................... 9
Section 13. SALE OF OBLIGATION; FURTHER PROCEDURES. ........cccooeiiiiiiiieiiieeieeciee e 12
Section 14. INVESTMENT AND SECURITY OF FUNDS. .....oooiiiieieieierie ettt 12
Section 15. CONSTRUCTION FUND .....ccooiiiiiitiiiieeiieerieeecteeesieeesveeeteeesaeesteaeseaeessbeeessseesssasssssessssennns 12
Section 16. NO RULE 15¢2-12 UNDERTAKING. ....cc.coiitiiiiiieeieeiteieesitesee e eere e esseeieessaessnessnesnneenns 13
Section 17. METHOD OF AMENDMENT .......ooiiiiiiiiriiie ettt et et e e e sbaeeseaeessseeeseveesnneaens 13
Section 18. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ........ccoiooiiieie ettt sae e s snre e 14
Section 19. EFFECTIVE DATE ..ottt ettt s e e st e e eve e ssvaeestaeesssaesnssaessseaans 14
Section 20. SEVERABILITY .....ccuiiiiiiiieriecieeie ettt ettt e stestesvesteesbeessaesseesssessseensasnsaessaesseessnesssesnsennns 15

EXHIBIT A: Form of Note

il

Page 110 of 159



RESOLUTION NO. R2025-08

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED BY THE SUBREGIONAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING
THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY NOTE, SERIES 2025; ESTABLISHING THE SECURITY
THEREFOR; AND PRESCRIBING OTHER MATTERS WITH RESPECT
THERETO

WHEREAS, the Fort Worth Transportation Authority (the “Issuer”) is authorized by Chapter 452,
Texas Transportation Code (the “Act”), to impose and collect within its boundaries a sales and use tax (the
“Sales Tax”), the revenues from which are defined herein as the “Sales Tax Revenues™);

WHEREAS, the Act, pursuant to Section 452.352, authorizes the issuance of notes for the
purposes set forth in Section 1 herein (the “Project”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 452.352(b) of the Act, an election is not required to authorize the
approval of obligations issued by the Authority to finance the Project described in Section 1 herein provided
that the maturity of such obligations do not exceed five (5) years;

WHEREAS, the governing subregional Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Fort Worth
Transportation Authority has found and deems it necessary to issue the notes herein authorized (the
"Obligation") to pay the costs of the Project and to pledge the Sales Tax Revenues for the security and
payment of the Obligation;

WHEREAS, it is considered to be to the best interest of the Issuer that the notes be issued;

WHEREAS, [concurrently herewith/on , 2025], the Issuer issued its , Series 2025,
which is an Obligation Similarly Secured (as such term is defined below); and

WHEREAS, it is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this
Resolution has been adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place and subject matter
of the public business to be considered and acted upon at said meeting, including this Resolution, was given,
all as required by the applicable provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF THE FORT WORTH
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY:

Section 1.DEFINITIONS. For all purposes of this Resolution, the following terms shall have the meanings
set forth below.

“Act” means Chapter 452 of the Texas Transportation Code.

“Additional Obligations” means any bonds, notes, or other forms of indebtedness issued by the
Issuer on a parity with the Obligation, secured by and payable from a lien on and pledge of the Pledged
Revenues.

“Board” means the Subregional Board of Directors of the Issuer.

“Bond Fund” means the special fund created for the payment of principal and interest on the
Obligations Similarly Secured, as described in Section 6(c) hereof.

Page 111 of 159



“Closing Date” means the date of physical delivery of the initial Obligation to the Purchaser in
exchange for payment in full.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Construction Fund” means the “Series 2025 Obligation Construction Fund” established pursuant
to Section 14 of this Resolution.

“Debt Service Requirements” means, for any period, the aggregate amount to be paid or set aside
for the payment of principal of and interest on all Obligations Similarly Secured.

“Defeasance Securities” means securities and obligations now or hereafter authorized by Texas law
that are eligible to refund or discharge obligations such as the Obligation.

“Defeased Obligation” means any Obligation and the interest thereon which is deemed to be paid,
retired and no longer outstanding within the meaning of Section 8 of this Resolution.

“Fiscal Year” means the twelve-month financial accounting period used by the Issuer, currently
ending on September 30 of each year.

“Holder” or “Registered Owner” means the person in whose name an Obligation is registered on
the Registration Books.

“Issuer” means the Fort Worth Transportation Authority.

“Obligation” means the “Fort Worth Transportation Authority Note, Series 2025 authorized by
this Resolution, and shall mean and include collectively the note initially issued and delivered and all
substitute notes exchanged therefor.

“Obligations Similarly Secured” means the Obligation, any Previously Issued Obligations,
including the , Series 2025, and any Additional Obligations hereafter issued.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means the institution appointed by the Issuer to serve as paying agent
and registrar for the Obligation.

“Pledged Revenues” means the Sales Tax Revenues.
“Previously Issued Obligations” means [“None.”].

“Project” or “Property” means the purposes for which the Obligation is being issued, as described
in Section 2 hereof.

“Purchaser” means the initial purchaser of the Obligation named in Section 13 of this Resolution.

“Registration Books” means the books or records kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
registration, transfer, and exchange of the Obligation.

“Revenue Fund” means the fund established in Section 5.2 hereof for the deposit of all Pledged
Revenues.

“Sales Tax Revenues” means all revenues received by or on behalf of the Issuer from the local sales
and use tax authorized, imposed, and collected by the Issuer within its boundaries.

Section 2. RECITALS, AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE OBLIGATION. The recitals set forth in
the preamble hereof are incorporated herein and shall have the same force and effect as if set forth in this
Section. The note of the Issuer described herein is hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in the
principal amount of $ for the purpose of providing funds for (1) the acquisition, construction,

2

Page 112 of 159



repair, equipping, improvement, or extension of its public transportation system, and (2) the costs and fees
of professional services of attorneys and other professionals rendered in connection with such projects and
the issuance of the Obligation (collectively, the “Projects™).

Section 3. DESIGNATION, DATE, DENOMINATIONS, NUMBERS, AND MATURITIES AND
INTEREST RATES OF OBLIGATION.

(a) Each note issued pursuant to this Resolution shall be designated: “FORT WORTH
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, NOTE, SERIES 2025,” and initially there shall be issued, sold,
and delivered hereunder one fully-registered note, without interest coupons, dated , 2025, in the
denomination and principal amount of § , numbered R-l, with any Obligation issued in
replacement thereof being in the denomination of the full principal amount of the series of which the
Obligation is issued, and numbered consecutively from R-2 upward, payable to the respective Registered
Owner thereof, or to the registered assignee of said Obligation (in each case, the “Registered Owner”).
Principal of said Obligation shall mature and be payable in installments on the dates and in the amounts
stated in the FORM OF OBLIGATION attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “FORM OF OBLIGATION”).
The Obligation shall bear interest on the unpaid balance of the principal amount thereof from the date of
delivery to the scheduled due date of the principal installments of the Obligation at the rate of interest stated
in the FORM OF OBLIGATION.

Section 4.CHARACTERISTICS OF THE OBLIGATION.

(a) Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer hereby appoints , to serve as
paying agent and registrar for the Obligation (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”). The Chief Executive Officer
and/or the Chief Financial Officer are authorized and directed to execute and deliver in the name and on
behalf of the Issuer a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement with the Paying Agent/Registrar in substantially
the form presented at this meeting.

(b) Registration, Transfer and Exchange. The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept at the
corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar books or records for the registration of the transfer and
exchange of the Obligation (the “Registration Books”), and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying
Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such registrations
of transfers and exchanges under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and Paying Agent/Registrar may
prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such registrations, transfers and exchanges as herein
provided within three days of presentation in due and proper form. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain
and record in the Registration Books the address of the Registered Owner of the Obligation to which
payments with respect to the Obligation shall be mailed, as herein provided; but it shall be the duty of each
Registered Owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to which payments shall
be mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice has been given. The Issuer
shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular business hours of the Paying
Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration Books confidential
and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any other entity. The Issuer shall
pay the Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or customary fees and charges for making such registration,
transfer, exchange and delivery of a substitute Obligation. Registration of assignments, transfers and
exchanges of the Obligation shall be made in the manner provided and with the effect stated in the FORM
OF OBLIGATION. Each substitute Obligation shall bear a letter and/or number to distinguish it from each
other Obligation.

(c) Authentication. Except as provided in subsection (i) of this Section, an authorized
representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Obligation, date and
manually sign said Obligation, and no such Obligation shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding unless

3

Page 113 of 159



such Obligation is so executed. The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall cancel an Obligation
surrendered for exchange or upon the final payment thereof. No additional ordinances, orders or resolutions
need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body or person so as to
accomplish the foregoing exchange of any Obligation, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the
printing, execution and delivery of the substitute Obligation in the manner prescribed herein. Pursuant to
Subchapter D, Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, the duty of conversion and exchange of the
Obligation as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and, upon the execution of said
Obligation, the converted and exchanged Obligation shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the
same manner and with the same effect as the Obligation which initially was issued and delivered pursuant
to this Resolution, approved by the Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts.

(d) Payment of Principal and Interest. The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying
Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Obligation, all as
provided in this Resolution. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper records of all payments made
by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Obligation, and of all exchanges of
Obligations, and all replacements of Obligations, as provided in this Resolution. However, in the event of
a nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date
for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if
and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the Issuer. Notice of the Special
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the
Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by United
States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each Registered Owner appearing on the
Registration Books at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of
such notice.

(e) Payment to Registered Owner. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to
the contrary, the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in
whose name each Obligation is registered in the Registration Books as the absolute owner of such
Obligation for the purpose of payment of principal and interest with respect to such Obligation, for the
purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Obligation, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The
Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on the Obligation only to or upon the order of
the Registered Owners, as shown in the Registration Books as provided in this Resolution, or their
respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully
satisfy and discharge the Issuer's obligations with respect to payment of principal of and interest on the
Obligation to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than a Registered Owner, as shown in
the Registration Books, shall receive an Obligation evidencing the obligation of the Issuer to make
payments of principal and interest pursuant to this Resolution.

) Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer covenants with the Registered Owner of the Obligation
that at all times while the Obligation is outstanding the Issuer will provide a competent and legally qualified
bank, trust company, financial institution or other agency to act as and perform the services of Paying
Agent/Registrar for the Obligation under this Resolution, and that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one
entity. By accepting the position and performing as such, each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to
have agreed to the provisions of this Resolution, and a certified copy of this Resolution shall be delivered
to each Paying Agent/Registrar.

(2) Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer reserves the right to, and may, at its option,
change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 45 days written notice to the Paying Agent/Registrar,
to be effective not later than 30 days prior to the next principal or interest payment date after such notice.
In the event that the entity at any time acting as Paying Agent/Registrar (or its successor by merger,
acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the Issuer covenants that

4

Page 114 of 159



promptly it will appoint a competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or
other agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar under this Resolution. Upon any change in the Paying
Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall transfer and deliver the Registration
Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books and records relating to the Obligation, to the
new Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the Issuer. Upon any change in the Paying
Agent/Registrar, the Issuer promptly will cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Paying
Agent/Registrar to the Registered Owner of the Obligation, by United States mail, first-class postage
prepaid, which notice also shall give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.

(h) General Characteristics of the Obligation. The Obligation (i) shall be issued in fully-
registered form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Obligation to be payable
only to the Registered Owner thereof, (ii) may and shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturities, (iii)
may be transferred and assigned, (iv) may be exchanged for another Obligation, (v) shall have the
characteristics, (vi) shall be signed, sealed, executed and authenticated, (vii) the principal of and interest on
the Obligation shall be payable, and (viii) shall be administered and the Paying Agent/Registrar and the
Issuer shall have certain duties and responsibilities with respect to the Obligation, all as provided, and in
the manner and to the effect as required or indicated, in the FORM OF OBLIGATION. The Obligation
initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution is not required to be, and shall not be, authenticated
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each substitute Obligation issued in exchange for any Obligation
issued under this Resolution the Paying Agent/Registrar shall execute the Paying Agent/registrar's
Authentication Certificate, in the FORM OF OBLIGATION.

(1) Delivery of Initial Obligation. On the closing date, one initial Obligation representing the
entire principal amount of the Obligation, payable in stated installments to the order of the initial purchaser
of the Obligation or its designee, executed by manual or facsimile signature of the Chief Executive Officer
and Secretary of the Board of the Issuer, approved by the Attorney General of Texas, and registered and
manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, will be delivered to such
purchaser.

Section 5. REDEMPTION. [TBD].

Section 6. FORM OF OBLIGATION. The form of the Obligation, including the form of Paying
Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certification, the form of Assignment and the form of the Registration
Obligation of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas to be attached to the Obligation
initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution, shall be substantially in the form provided in
Exhibit A, with such appropriate variations, omissions or insertions as are permitted or required by this
Resolution. Exhibit A is incorporated in this Resolution for all purposes.

Section 7. PLEDGE OF REVENUES AND FUNDS

(a) Pledge of Revenues.

(D Pledge. the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that the Pledged Revenues are
hereby irrevocably pledged and a lien thereon is hereby granted to the payment and security
of the Obligations Similarly Secured including the establishment and maintenance of the
special funds or accounts created and established for the payment and security thereof, all
as hereinafter provided; and it is hereby resolved that the Obligations Similarly Secured,
and the interest thereon, shall constitute a lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues that
is valid and binding without any physical delivery thereof or further act by the Issuer, and
the lien created hereby on the Pledged Revenues for the payment and security of the

5

Page 115 of 159



Obligations Similarly Secured shall be prior in right and claim as to any other indebtedness,
liability, or obligation of the Issuer.

) Perfection. Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, applies to the issuance of the
Obligations and the pledge of and lien on Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under
this Resolution, and such pledge is therefore valid, effective, and perfected. If State law is
amended at anytime while any Obligations are outstanding and unpaid such that the
applicable revenue pledge granted by the Issuer as security therefor is to be subject to the
filing requirements of Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, then in order to
preserve to the registered owners of such Obligations the perfection of the security interest
in the Pledged Revenues, the Issuer agrees to take such measures as it determines are
reasonable and necessary under State law to comply with the applicable provisions of
Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, and enable a filing to perfect the security
interest in the Pledged Revenues to occur.

3) Special Obligations. The Obligation is a special obligation of the Issuer payable
solely from the Pledged Revenues. The Registered Owner shall never have the right to
demand payment out of any funds raised or to be raised by ad valorem taxation.

(b) Revenue Fund. The Issuer shall maintain a fund known as the "Fort Worth Transportation
Authority Revenue Fund" (the "Revenue Fund"). All Pledged Revenues shall be deposited to the credit of
the Revenue Fund and shall be accounted for separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer. Moneys
in the Revenue Fund shall be appropriated and used for the following purposes and in the following order
of priority:

First: To the payment of the amounts required to be deposited into the Bond Fund for the
payment of Debt Service Requirements on the Obligations Similarly Secured as the same becomes
due and payable;

Second: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited into any reserve fund
established to provide security for any Obligations Similarly Secured;

Third: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited into any other fund or account
required by a resolution authorizing the issuance of any Obligations Similarly Secured; and

Fourth: To any fund or account held by the Issuer having a lien on the Pledged Revenues
subordinate to the lien created herein.

Any Pledged Revenues remaining in the Revenue Fund after satisfying the foregoing
payments may be used for any lawful purpose of the Issuer.

(c) Bond Fund. For the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Obligation, a
special fund is hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the Issuer as a separate fund or
account known as the “Fort Worth Transportation Authority Series 2025 Bond Fund” (the “Bond Fund”).
The funds therein shall be deposited into and held in an account at an official depository bank of said Issuer.
Said Bond Fund shall be accounted for separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of said Issuer,
and shall be used only for paying the interest on and principal of said Obligation. The Issuer shall transfer
from the Revenue Fund and deposit into the Bond Fund, prior to each principal and interest payment date,
an amount equal to 100% of the interest and principal falling due on such date. Such deposits shall continue
until the Obligation is no longer outstanding.

Page 116 of 159



(d) Reserve Fund. The Issuer will not establish a debt service reserve fund for the Obligation
but reserves the right to create and fund a Reserve Fund in connection with the issuance of any Additional
Obligations.

Section 8. COVENANTS.

(a) Additional Obligations. The Issuer reserves the right to issue Additional Obligations
payable from and secured by a lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues on a parity with the Obligation,
provided that: (1) The Issuer is not then in default of any covenant in this Resolution; (2) An authorized
financial officer of the Issuer certifies that the Pledged Revenues for the preceding Fiscal Year (or any 12
consecutive months out of the previous 18 months) were at least equal to 175% of the maximum annual
Debt Service Requirements for all Obligations Similarly Secured that will be outstanding after the issuance
of the proposed Additional Obligations; (3) The resolution authorizing such Additional Obligations
provides for deposits to the Bond Fund sufficient to pay principal and interest thereon.

The Issuer reserves the right to issue obligations secured by an inferior and subordinate lien on the
Pledged Revenues for any lawful purpose.

(b) Special Covenants and Representations. The Issuer further warrants and covenants that: (a)
Lawful Pledge. It has the lawful power to pledge the Pledged Revenues as provided herein. (b) No
Inconsistent Liens. Other than for the payment of the Obligations Similarly Secured, the Pledged Revenues
are not and will not be pledged to the payment of any other debt or obligation of the Issuer, except for
obligations secured by a subordinate and inferior lien. (c) The Sales Tax Revenues. While any Obligation
is outstanding, the Issuer covenants to take all permissible actions to cause the Sales Tax Revenues to be
imposed and collected continuously at the maximum rate permitted by law and will not cause or permit any
reduction or abatement of such tax. The Issuer will take required action to apply the Sales Tax to any new
items or transactions that may become legally taxable in the future. (d) Defense of Lien. The Issuer shall,
to the extent permitted by law, defend and protect the pledge of the Pledged Revenues and the rights of the
Registered Owner against all claims.

Section 9.DEFEASANCE OF OBLIGATION.

(a) When no Obligations remain Outstanding, then the lien on and pledge of Pledged Revenues
made under this Resolution as security for the Obligations and all covenants, agreements, and other
obligations of the Issuer to the Holders of such series of Obligations shall thereupon cease, terminate, and
be discharged and satisfied. Any Obligation and the interest thereon shall be deemed to be paid, retired and
no longer outstanding (a “Defeased Obligation”) within the meaning of this Resolution, except to the extent
provided in subsection (d) of this Section, when payment of the principal of such Obligation, plus interest
thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by reason of maturity or otherwise) either (i) shall have
been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided for
on or before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to the Paying Agent/Registrar
in accordance with an escrow agreement or other instrument (the “Future Escrow Agreement”) for such
payment (1) lawful money of the United States of America sufficient to make such payment or (2)
Defeasance Securities that mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will
insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment, and when
proper arrangements have been made by the Issuer with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of its
services until a Defeased Obligation shall have become due and payable. At such time as an Obligation
shall be deemed to be a Defeased Obligation hereunder, as aforesaid, such Obligation and the interest
thereon shall no longer be secured by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of, the Pledged Revenues,
and such principal and interest shall be payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities.

7

Page 117 of 159



(b) Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written direction of
the Issuer be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth,
and all income from such Defeasance Securities received by the Paying Agent/Registrar that is not required
for the payment of the Obligation and interest thereon, with respect to which such money has been so
deposited, shall be turned over to the Issuer, or deposited as directed in writing by the Issuer. Any Future
Escrow Agreement pursuant to which the money and/or Defeasance Securities are held for the payment of
a Defeased Obligation may contain provisions permitting the investment or reinvestment of such moneys
in Defeasance Securities or the substitution of other Defeasance Securities upon the satisfaction of the
requirements specified in subsection 7(a)(i) or (ii). All income from such Defeasance Securities received
by the Paying Agent/Registrar which is not required for the payment of the Defeased Obligation, with
respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be remitted to the Issuer or deposited as directed
in writing by the Issuer.

(©) The term “Defeasance Securities” means any securities and obligations now or hereafter
authorized by the law of the State of Texas that are eligible to refund, retire or otherwise discharge
obligations such as the Obligation.

(d) Until a Defeased Obligation shall have become due and payable, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Obligation the
same as if they had not been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper arrangements to provide and pay
for such services as required by this Resolution.

Section 10. DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED OBLIGATION.

(a) Replacement Obligation. In the event any outstanding Obligation is damaged, mutilated,
lost, stolen or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause to be printed, executed and delivered, a
new note of the same principal amount, maturity and interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen
or destroyed Obligation, in replacement for such Obligation in the manner hereinafter provided.

(b) Application for Replacement Obligation. Application for replacement of a damaged,
mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Obligation shall be made by the Registered Owner thereof to the Paying
Agent/Registrar. In every case of loss, theft or destruction of an Obligation, the Registered Owner applying
for a replacement note shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar such security or
indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or damage with respect
thereto. Also, in every case of loss, theft or destruction of an Obligation, the Registered Owner shall furnish
to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft or destruction
of such Obligation, as the case may be. In every case of damage or mutilation of an Obligation, the
Registered Owner shall surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation the Obligation so damaged
or mutilated.

(©) No Default Occurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the
event any such Obligation shall have matured, and no default has occurred that is then continuing in the
payment of the principal of, or interest on the Obligation, the Issuer may authorize the payment of the same
(without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated Obligation) instead of issuing a
replacement Obligation, provided security or indemnity is furnished as above provided in this Section.

(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Obligation. Prior to the issuance of any replacement note,
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the Registered Owner of such Obligation with all legal, printing,
and other expenses in connection therewith. Every replacement note issued pursuant to the provisions of
this Section by virtue of the fact that any Obligation is lost, stolen or destroyed shall constitute an Obligation

Page 118 of 159



of the Issuer whether or not the lost, stolen or destroyed Obligation shall be found at any time, or be
enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution.

(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Obligation. In accordance with Sec. 1206.022,
Government Code, this Section 10 of this Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such
replacement note without necessity of further action by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body
or person, and the duty of the replacement of such Obligation is hereby authorized and imposed upon the
Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such Obligation in
the form and manner and with the effect, as provided in Section 3 of this Resolution for an Obligation issued
in exchange for another Obligation.

Section 11. CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF OBLIGATION; BOND
COUNSEL'S OPINION; ENGAGEMENT OF BOND COUNSEL.

(a) The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer are hereby
authorized to have control of the Obligation initially issued and delivered hereunder and all necessary
records and proceedings pertaining to the Obligation pending its delivery and its investigation, examination,
and approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and its registration by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas. Upon registration of the Obligation, said Comptroller of Public Accounts
(or a deputy designated in writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s
Registration Certificate attached to such Obligation, and the seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed or
placed in facsimile on such Obligation. The approving legal opinion of the Issuer’s Bond Counsel may, at
the option of the Issuer, be printed on the Obligation issued and delivered under this Resolution, but neither
shall have any legal effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the Registered Owners
of the Obligation.

(b) The obligation of the initial purchaser to accept delivery of the Obligation is subject to the
initial purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Kelly Hart & Hallman LLP, bond
counsel to the Issuer, which opinion shall be dated as of and delivered on the date of initial delivery of the
Obligation to the Purchaser (as defined below). The engagement of such firm as bond counsel to the Issuer
in connection with issuance, sale and delivery of the Obligation is hereby approved and confirmed.

Section 12. COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON THE
OBLIGATION.

(a) Covenants. The Issuer covenants to take any action necessary to assure, or refrain from any
action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Obligation as an obligation described in section
103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the interest on which is not includable
in the “gross income” of the holder for purposes of federal income taxation. In furtherance thereof, the
Issuer covenants as follows:

(D) to take any action to assure that no more than ten percent (10%) of the proceeds of
the Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited to a reserve fund,
if any) are used for any “private business use,” as defined in section 141(b)(6) of the Code
or, if more than ten percent (10%) of the proceeds or the projects financed therewith are so
used, such amounts, whether or not received by the Issuer, with respect to such private
business use, do not, under the terms of this Resolution or any underlying arrangement,
directly or indirectly, secure or provide for the payment of more than ten percent (10%) of
the debt service on the Obligation, in contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code;

Page 119 of 159



2) to take any action to assure that in the event that the “private business use”
described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the
Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund,
if any) then the amount in excess of five percent (5%) is used for a “private business use”
which is “related” and not “disproportionate,” within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of
the Code, to the governmental use;

3) to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of
$5,000,000, or five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Obligation (less amounts deposited
into a reserve fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to persons, other
than state or local governmental units, in contravention of section 141 (c) of the Code;

4 to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the Obligation
being treated as “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code;

(5) to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Obligation being
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code;

(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Obligation, directly or
indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to acquire
investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a
materially higher yield over the term of the Obligation, other than investment property
acquired with:

6)) proceeds of the Obligation invested for a reasonable temporary period of
three (3) years or less or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a period of
30 days or less, until such proceeds are needed for the purpose for which
the Obligation is issued,

(i1) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning of
section 1.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and

(iii) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement fund
to the extent such amounts do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the proceeds
of the Obligation;

(7 to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Obligation or amounts treated
as proceeds of the Obligation, as may be necessary, so that the Obligation does not
otherwise contravene the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage)
and, to the extent applicable, section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings);

() to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year period
(beginning on the date of delivery of the Obligation) an amount that is at least equal to 90
percent of the “Excess Earnings,” within the meaning of section 148(f) of the Code and to
pay to the United States of America, not later than 60 days after the Obligation has been
paid in full, 100 percent of the amount then required to be paid as a result of Excess
Earnings under section 148(f) of the Code; and

9 to assure that the proceeds of the Obligation will be used for new money purposes.

10

Page 120 of 159



(b) Rebate Fund. In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (8), a “Rebate
Fund” is hereby established by the Issuer for the sole benefit of the United States of America, and such
fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other person, including without limitation the holders of the
Obligation. The Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of compliance with section 148 of
the Code.

(©) Proceeds. The Issuer understands that the term “proceeds” includes “disposition proceeds”
as defined in the Treasury Regulations. It is the understanding of the Issuer that the covenants contained
herein are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings promulgated by the
U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant thereto. In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter
promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code, as applicable to the Obligation, the Issuer
will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein to the extent that such failure to comply,
in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, will not adversely affect the exemption from federal
income taxation of interest on the Obligation under section 103 of the Code. In the event that regulations
or rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose additional requirements which are applicable to the
Obligation, the Issuer agrees to comply with the additional requirements to the extent necessary, in the
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, to preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of
interest on the Obligation under section 103 of the Code.

(d) Further Procedures. The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, and Secretary of the Board to execute any documents, certificates or reports
required by the Code and to make such elections, on behalf of the Issuer, which may be permitted by the
Code as are consistent with the purpose for the issuance of the Obligation

(e) Allocation Of and Limitation On, Expenditures for the Project. The Issuer covenants to
account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the Projects on its books
and records in accordance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code. The Issuer recognizes that
in order for the proceeds to be considered used for the reimbursement of costs, the proceeds must be
allocated to expenditures within 18 months of the later of the date that (1) the expenditure is made, or (2)
the Projects are completed; but in no event later than three years after the date on which the original
expenditure is paid. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Issuer recognizes that in order for proceeds to be
expended under the Internal Revenue Code, the sale proceeds or investment earnings must be expended no
more than 60 days after the earlier of (1) the fifth anniversary of the delivery of the Obligation, or (2) the
date the Obligation is retired. The Issuer agrees to obtain the advice of nationally-recognized bond counsel
if such expenditure fails to comply with the foregoing to assure that such expenditure will not adversely
affect the tax-exempt status of the Obligation. For purposes hereof, the issuer shall not be obligated to
comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the
excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.

) Disposition of Projects. The Issuer covenants that the property constituting the Projects
will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the Issuer of cash or other
compensation, unless any action taken in connection with such disposition will not adversely affect the tax-
exempt status of the Obligation. For purpose of the foregoing, the Issuer may rely on an opinion of
nationally-recognized bond counsel that the action taken in connection with such sale or other disposition
will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Obligation. For purposes of the foregoing, the portion
of the property comprising personal property and disposed in the ordinary course shall not be treated as a
transaction resulting in the receipt of cash or other compensation. For purposes hereof, the Issuer shall not
be obligated to comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not
adversely affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.

11

Page 121 of 159



Section 13.SALE OF OBLIGATION; FURTHER PROCEDURES.

(a) The Obligation is hereby sold and shall be delivered to (the “Purchaser”) for cash
for the par value thereof, pursuant to the purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated the date of
the final passage of this Resolution which the Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to execute and
deliver. The Obligation shall be initially registered in the name of the Purchaser. It is hereby officially
found, determined and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous reasonably available.

(b) The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Board shall be
and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do
and perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and on behalf of
the Issuer such documents, certificates and other instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be
necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Resolution, the Obligation, the
sale of the Obligation. In case any officer whose signature shall appear on any Obligation shall cease to be
such officer before the delivery of such Obligation, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient
for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. In addition, prior to
the initial delivery of the Obligation, the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary of the
Board and Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to approve any technical changes or corrections
to this Resolution or to any of the instruments authorized and approved by this Resolution necessary in
order to (i) correct any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more completely document the transactions
contemplated and approved by this Resolution and described in the private placement letter, or (ii) obtain
the approval of the Obligation by the Texas Attorney General's office.

Section 14. INVESTMENT AND SECURITY OF FUNDS.

(a) Interest earnings derived from the investment of proceeds from the sale of the Obligation
shall be used along with other Obligation proceeds for the Projects; provided that after completion of such
purpose, if any of such interest earnings remain on hand, such interest earnings shall be deposited in the
Bond Fund. It is further provided, however, that any interest earnings on note proceeds that are required to
be rebated to the United States of America pursuant to Section 12 hereof in order to prevent the Obligation
from being an arbitrage bond shall be so rebated and not considered as interest earnings for the purposes of
this Section.

(b) The Issuer may place proceeds of the Obligation (including investment earnings thereon)
and amounts deposited into the Bond Fund and in investments authorized by the Public Funds Investment
Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as amended; provided, however, that the Issuer hereby
covenants that the proceeds of the sale of the Obligation will be used as soon as practicable for the purposes
for which the Obligation is issued.

(©) All deposits authorized or required by this Resolution shall be secured to the fullest extent
required by law for the security of public funds.

Section 15. CONSTRUCTION FUND. The Issuer hereby creates and establishes and shall maintain on
the books of the Issuer a separate fund to be entitled the “Series 2025 Obligation Construction Fund”
(referred to herein as the “Construction Fund” or “Project Fund”) for use by the Issuer for payment of all
lawful costs associated with the acquisition and construction of the Projects as hereinbefore provided.
Proceeds of the Obligation, less amounts to be paid at closing for issuance costs, shall be deposited into the
Construction Fund. Upon payment of all such costs, any moneys remaining on deposit in said Fund shall
be transferred to the Bond Fund. Amounts so deposited to the Bond Fund shall be used in the manner
described in Section 8 of this Resolution. Proceeds of the Obligation may be invested pursuant to Section
14.

12

Page 122 of 159



Section 16. NO RULE 15¢2-12 UNDERTAKING. The Issuer has not made an undertaking in accordance
with Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission with respect to the Obligation. The Issuer
is not, therefore, obligated pursuant to the Rule to provide any ongoing disclosure relating to the Issuer or
the Obligation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer may agree to provide in the Purchase Agreement
to provide such disclosure to the Purchaser as it deems appropriate.

Section 17. METHOD OF AMENDMENT. The Issuer hereby reserves the right to amend this Resolution
subject to the following terms and conditions, to-wit:

(a) The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the Registered Owner, except as
otherwise required by paragraph (b) below, amend or supplement this Resolution to (i) cure any ambiguity,
defect or omission in this Resolution that does not materially adversely affect the interests of the Registered
Owner, (ii) grant additional rights or security for the benefit of the Registered Owner, (iii) add events of
default as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution and that shall not materially
adversely affect the interests of the Registered Owner, (v) qualify this Resolution under the Trust Indenture
Act of 1939, as amended, or corresponding provisions of federal laws from time to time in effect, or (iv)
make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under this Resolution as shall not be
materially inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution and that shall not, in the opinion of nationally-
recognized bond counsel, materially adversely affect the interests of the holders.

(b) Except as provided in paragraph (a) above, the Registered Owner shall have the right from
time to time to approve any amendment hereto that may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer;
provided, however, that without the consent of the Registered Owner, nothing herein contained shall permit
or be construed to permit amendment of the terms and conditions of this Resolution or the Obligation so as
to:

(1) Reduce the rate of interest borne by the Obligation;

) Reduce the amount of the principal of payable on the Obligation;

3) Modify the terms of payment of principal or of interest on the Obligation or impose
any condition with respect to such payment; or

@) Change the requirement with respect to Registered Owner consent to such
amendment.

(©) If at any time the Issuer shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Issuer
shall send by U.S. mail to the Registered Owner of the Obligation a copy of the proposed amendment.

(d) Whenever at any time within one year from the date of mailing of such notice the Issuer
shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Registered Owner, which instrument or
instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment and which shall specifically consent to and approve such
amendment, the Issuer may adopt the amendment in substantially the same form.

(e) Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section,
this Resolution shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance with such amendatory
Resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations of the Issuer and the Registered Owner of the
Obligation shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced, subject in all respects to such
amendment.

) Any consent given by the Registered Owner of the Obligation pursuant to the provisions

of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of such consent and shall be
conclusive and binding upon all future Registered Owner of the Obligation during such period. Such

13

Page 123 of 159



consent may be revoked at any time after six months from the date of said consent by the Registered Owner
who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice with the Issuer.

(2) For the purposes of establishing ownership of the Obligation, the Issuer shall rely solely
upon the registration of the ownership of such Obligation on the Registration Books kept by the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

Section 18. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

(a) Events of Default. Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this
Resolution is hereby declared to be an Event of Default:

(1) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Obligation
when the same becomes due and payable; or

2) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement or
obligation of the Issuer, the failure to perform which materially, adversely affects the rights
of the Registered Owners of the Obligation, including, but not limited to, their prospect or
ability to be repaid in accordance with this Resolution, and the continuation thereof for a
period of 30 days after notice of such default is given by any Registered Owner to the
Issuer.

(b) Remedies for Default. Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then and in every case,
any Registered Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including, but not limited to, a trustee or
trustees therefor, may proceed against the Issuer for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of
the Registered Owners under this Resolution, by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in
equity or at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction, for any relief permitted by law, including the
specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Registered Owners hereunder or any combination
of such remedies.

(c) Remedies Not Exclusive.

(D No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and
shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the Obligation or now
or hereafter existing at law or in equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other
provision of this Resolution, the right to accelerate the debt evidenced by the Obligation
shall not be available as a remedy under this Resolution.

2) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other available remedy.

3) By accepting the delivery of an Obligation authorized under this Resolution, such
Registered Owner agrees that the certifications required to effectuate any covenants or
representations contained in this Resolution do not and shall never constitute or give rise
to a personal or pecuniary liability or charge against the officers, employees or trustees of
the Issuer or the Board.

Section 19.EFFECTIVE DATE. In accordance with the provisions of Section 1201.028 of the Texas
Government Code, this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Board.

14

Page 124 of 159



Section 20. SEVERABILITY. If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in this
Resolution, or application thereof to any persons or circumstances is held invalid or unconstitutional by a
court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this
Resolution, despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect.

(Execution Page Follows)

15

Page 125 of 159



DULY PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE by the Board of the Fort Worth Transportation
Authority, onthe  day of , 2025.

Chief  Executive  Officer, Fort Worth
Transportation Authority

Secretary of the Board, Fort Worth Transportation Authority
(SEAL)

{Signature Page to Resolution}

Page 126 of 159



EXHIBIT A
FORM OF OBLIGATION

The form of the Obligation, including the form of Paying Agent/Registrar's Authentication
Certificate, the form of Assignment and the form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas to be attached to the Obligation initially issued and delivered pursuant to
the Resolution to which this FORM OF OBLIGATION is attached, shall be, respectively, substantially as
follows, with such appropriate variations, omissions or insertions as are permitted or required by the
Resolution (including insurance legends in the event the Obligations, or any stated maturities thereof, are
insured).

(a) Form of Note.
NO. R- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA PRINCIPAL
STATE OF TEXAS AMOUNT
FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY S
NOTE
SERIES 2025
Interest Rate Delivery Date Maturity Date
% , 2025 , 20
REGISTERED OWNER:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above, the Fort Worth Transportation Authority(the
“Issuer”), being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to the Registered
Owner specified above, or registered assigns (hereinafter called the “Registered Owner”™), the principal
amount specified above, and to pay interest thereon, from the date of delivery set forth above, on the
balance of said principal amount from time to time remaining unpaid. This Obligation shall finally mature
on the maturity date set forth above, but shall be payable in installments on the dates and in the principal
installment amounts, and shall bear interest at the rate set forth above, calculated on the basis of basis of a
360-day year of twelve 30-day months, as set forth in the following schedule:

Payment Date Principal Amount

(G $)

A-1

Page 127 of 159



THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THIS OBLIGATION are payable in lawful money
of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The Issuer shall pay interest on
this Obligation on , 202 and on each and thereafter to the date of the final maturity
hereof. The last principal 1nstallment of this Obhgatlon shall be paid to the Registered Owner hereof upon
presentation and surrender of this Obligation at final maturity, at the corporate trust office of , in

, Texas, which is the “Paying Agent/Registrar” for this Obligation. The payment of all other
principal installments of and interest on this Obligation shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the
Registered Owner hereof, without the requirement of presentation or surrender of this Obligation, on each
principal and interest payment date by check or draft, dated as of such principal and interest payment date,
drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required by the
Resolution (as defined below) to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as
hereinafter provided; and such check or draft shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States
mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such interest payment date, to the Registered Owner hereof, at its
address as it appeared at the close of business on the last business day of the month next preceding each
such date (the “Record Date) on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as hereinafter
described. In addition, principal and interest may be paid by such other method, acceptable to the Paying
Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the Registered Owner.

THIS OBLIGATION is dated _ , 2025, is authorized in accordance with the Constitution and
laws of the State of Texas, and an authorizing resolution of the Issuer dated as of |, 2025 (the
“Resolution”), and is initially issued in the principal amount of $ for the purpose of paying the
costs associated with all or a portion of the Projects (as defined in the Resolution). Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Resolution. This Obligation is
not subject to prepayment or optional redemption prior to its the maturity date set forth above.

ANY ACCRUED INTEREST due at maturity of this Obligation prior to maturity as provided
herein shall be paid to the Registered Owner upon presentation and surrender of this Obligation for payment
at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer covenants with the
Registered Owner of this Obligation that on or before each principal payment date, interest payment date,
and accrued interest payment date for this Obligation it will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar,
from the “Bond Fund” created by the Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Obligation, when due.

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal or interest on this Obligation shall be a Saturday,
Sunday, a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal corporate
trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then
the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day that is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday
or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same
force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due.

THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR shall also record such information in the Registration
Books, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall also record in the Registration Books all payments of principal
installments on this Obligation when made on their respective due dates.

THIS OBLIGATION is issuable solely as a single fully registered Obligation, without interest
coupons, in the denomination of $ or the remaining principal amount of the outstanding Obligation
if an exchange of the Obligation is made after a reduction in the principal amount by a payment of a
scheduled installment of principal (the “Authorized Denomination”). This Obligation may be transferred
or exchanged in whole, but not in part, as provided in the Resolution, and only upon the Registration Books
kept for that purpose at the abovementioned office of the Paying Agent/Registrar upon surrender of the
Obligation together with a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange satisfactory to the
Paying Agent/Registrar and duly executed by the Registered Owner or his duly authorized attorney, and

A-2

Page 128 of 159



thereupon a new Obligation of the same maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be
issued by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Resolution,
and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed. The Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar may deem
and treat the person in whose name the Obligation is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose
of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal hereof and interest due hereon and for all other
purposes. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such transfer or exchange during
the period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of
business on the next following principal or interest payment date.

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Obligation is changed by the Issuer, resigns,
or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Resolution that it promptly will appoint
a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the
Registered Owners of the Obligation.

THIS OBLIGATION shall not become valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled
to any security or benefit under the Resolution until the Authentication Certificate shall have been executed
by the Paying Agent/Registrar or the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate hereon shall have been
executed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts.

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited and covenanted that this Obligation has been duly and
validly authorized, issued and delivered; that all acts, conditions and things required or proper to
be performed, exist and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance and delivery of this
Obligation have been performed, existed and been done in accordance with law; and that this
Obligation constitutes a special obligation of the Issuer, payable solely from and secured by a pledge
of the Pledged Revenues, all as provided in the Resolution. The Registered Owner hereof shall never
have the right to demand payment of this Obligation out of any property taxes raised or to be raised
by the Issuer.

THE ISSUER HAS RESERVED THE RIGHT to amend the Resolution as provided therein, and
under some (but not all) circumstances amendments thereto must be approved by the Registered Owners
of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Obligation.

BY BECOMING the Registered Owner of this Obligation, the Registered Owner thereby
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms and
provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in the official
minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this
Obligation and the Resolution constitute a contract between each Registered Owner hereof and the Issuer.

[Rest of Page Left Intentionally Blank]

A-3

Page 129 of 159



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Obligation to be signed with the manual or
facsimile signature of the Chief Executive Officer and countersigned with the manual or facsimile
signature of the Secretary of the Board of said Issuer, and has caused the official seal of the Issuer to be
duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Obligation.

FORT WORTH  TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY

By:

Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board
(SEAL)

[Rest of Page Left Intentionally Blank]

A4

Page 130 of 159



PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE (To be executed if this
Obligation is not accompanied by an executed Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas)

It is hereby certified that this Obligation has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution
described in the text of this Obligation; and that this Obligation has been issued in conversion or
replacement of, or in exchange for, a note, notes, or a portion of a note or notes of a series that originally
was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas.

Dated:

Paying Agent/Registrar

By:
Authorized Representative

[Rest of Page Left Intentionally Blank]

A-5

Page 131 of 159



(b) Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

(Please type or print clearly)

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto:

Transferee's Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number:

Transferee's name, and address, including zip code:

the within Obligation and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints

attorney, to register the transfer of the within Obligation
on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

NOTICE; Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an NOTICE: The signature above must correspond

eligible guarantor institution participating in a with the name of the Registered Owner as it pears

securities transfer association recognized signature upon the front of this Obligation in every

guarantee program. particular, without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatsoever.

[Rest of Page Left Intentionally Blank]

A-6

Page 132 of 159



(c) Form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts.

COMPTROLLER'S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: REGISTER
NO.

I hereby certify that this Note has been examined, certified as to validity and approved by the
Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Note has been registered by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas.

Witness my signature and seal this

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas

(COMPTROLLER'S SEAL)

A-7

Page 133 of 159



TRINITY METRO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESOLUTION

512,050,000 of Contractual Obligations Tax Exempt
Series 2025

(R2025-08)

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED BY THE SUBREGIONAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FORT WORTH
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORLZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE FORT WORTH
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION, SERIES 2025;
ESTABLISHING THE SECURITY THEREFOR; AND PRESCRIBING OTHER MATTERS WITH RESPECT THERETO

Jaff Davis Richard Andreski
Chailr President & CEO

DISPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECRETARY APPROVAL

Page 134 of 159



RESOLUTION NO. R2025-09

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED BY THE SUBREGIONAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FORT
WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF
THE FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION, SERIES 2025; ESTABLISHING THE SECURITY
THEREFOR; AND PRESCRIBING OTHER MATTERS WITH RESPECT THERETO

Page 135 of 159



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1. DEFINITIONS .......ooiiiiiiiieiteciee ettt etee ettt e et e et e e s e e e tbeesabaeessaeesssaeessaeessseesssaeessseesssesensns 1
Section 2. RECITALS, AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE OBLIGATION..........cccoceeviiieieeeiee e 2
Section 3. DESIGNATION, DATE, DENOMINATIONS, NUMBERS, AND MATURITIES AND
INTEREST RATES OF OBLIGATION .....cootiiitiiiiiiiicteete ettt ettt et eveestaesneseveesveevaestaesanessneenveenns 3
Section 4. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE OBLIGATION. ......oooiiiiiriieiieieeieesiee e sne e eve e seees 3
Section 5. REDEMPTION ........ooooiiiiiiiiieciee ettt et te e ve e e ebeesabeeetaeessbaeessaeessseesssaeessseessseeansns 5
Section 6. FORM OF OBLIGATION .......coociiiiieiieriesieste ettt eieesttessesssesseesseessaesseessnesssesssesssessseesssesnns 5
Section 7. PLEDGE OF REVENUES AND FUNDS ...ttt sveesree e 5
Section 8. COVENANTS. ..ottt ettt st e ettt e ta e st e sss e e s e et aessaessaessseasseanseenseenseessnennnes 7
Section 9. DEFEASANCE OF OBLIGATION. ......ooiiiiiiiiiieiieie ettt tee e e vee e ve et eeevaesaveeenes 7
Section 10. DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED OBLIGATION. ............. 8
Section 11. CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF OBLIGATION; BOND COUNSEL'S
OPINION; ENGAGEMENT OF BOND COUNSEL......ccoiiiiiiitieiieciesiieete ettt sveestreeveeveeveeveesvnesenas 9
Section 12. COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON THE OBLIGATION.
...................................................................................................................................................................... 9
Section 13. SALE OF OBLIGATION; FURTHER PROCEDURES. ........cccociiiiiiriiieiecieecree e 12
Section 14. INVESTMENT AND SECURITY OF FUNDS. .....oooiiiieieieierie ettt 12
Section 15. CONSTRUCTION FUND .....ccooiiiiiitiiiieeiieerieeecteeesieeesveeeteeesaeesteaeseaeessbeeessseesssasssssessssennns 12
Section 16. NO RULE 15¢2-12 UNDERTAKING. ....cc.coiitiiiiiieeieeiteieesitesee e eere e esseeieessaessnessnesnneenns 13
Section 17. METHOD OF AMENDMENT .......ooiiiiiiiiriiie ettt et et e e e sbaeeseaeessseeeseveesnneaens 13
Section 18. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ........ccoiooiiieie ettt sae e s snre e 14
Section 19. EFFECTIVE DATE ..ottt ettt s e e st e e eve e ssvaeestaeesssaesnssaessseaans 14
Section 20. SEVERABILITY .....ccuiiiiiiiieriecieeie ettt ettt e stestesvesteesbeessaesseesssessseensasnsaessaesseessnesssesnsennns 15

EXHIBIT A:  Form of Contractual Obligation

il

Page 136 of 159



RESOLUTION NO. R2025-09

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED BY THE SUBREGIONAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING
THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION,
SERIES 2025; ESTABLISHING THE SECURITY THEREFOR; AND
PRESCRIBING OTHER MATTERS WITH RESPECT THERETO

WHEREAS, the Public Property Finance Act, Texas Local Government Code, Sections 271.001
through 271.009, inclusive (the “Act), authorizes political subdivisions of the State of Texas to execute,
perform, and make payments under contracts with any person for the use, acquisition or purchase of
personal property or the financing thereof as described in the Act;

WHEREAS, the Fort Worth Transportation Authority (the “Issuer”) is authorized by Chapter 452,
Texas Transportation Code, to impose and collect within its boundaries a sales and use tax (the “Sales
Tax”), the revenues from which are defined herein as the “Sales Tax Revenues”);

WHEREAS, the governing subregional Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Fort Worth
Transportation Authority has found and determined that it is necessary, useful and appropriate for its public
purposes to acquire and purchase all right, title and interest in the personal property described in Section 1
hereto (the “Property” or “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Board has found and deems it necessary to issue the contractual obligations herein
authorized (the "Obligation") to pay the costs of the Project and to pledge the Sales Tax Revenues for the
security and payment of the Obligation;

WHEREAS, it is considered to be to the best interest of the Issuer that the contractual obligations
be issued;

WHEREAS, [concurrently herewith/on , 2025], the Issuer issued its , Series 2025,
which is an Obligation Similarly Secured (as such term is defined below); and

WHEREAS, it is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this
Resolution has been adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place and subject matter
of the public business to be considered and acted upon at said meeting, including this Resolution, was given,
all as required by the applicable provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF THE FORT WORTH
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY:

Section 1.DEFINITIONS. For all purposes of this Resolution, the following terms shall have the meanings
set forth below.

“Act” means the Public Property Finance Act, Texas Local Government Code, Sections 271.001
through 271.009.

“Additional Obligations” means any bonds, notes, or other forms of indebtedness issued by the
Issuer on a parity with the Obligation, secured by and payable from a lien on and pledge of the Pledged
Revenues.

“Board” means the Subregional Board of Directors of the Issuer.
1

Page 137 of 159



“Bond Fund” means the special fund created for the payment of principal and interest on the
Obligations Similarly Secured, as described in Section 6(c) hereof.

“Closing Date” means the date of physical delivery of the initial Obligation to the Purchaser in
exchange for payment in full.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Construction Fund” means the “Series 2025 Obligation Construction Fund” established pursuant
to Section 14 of this Resolution.

“Debt Service Requirements” means, for any period, the aggregate amount to be paid or set aside
for the payment of principal of and interest on all Obligations Similarly Secured.

“Defeasance Securities” means securities and obligations now or hereafter authorized by Texas law
that are eligible to refund or discharge obligations such as the Obligation.

“Defeased Obligation” means any Obligation and the interest thereon which is deemed to be paid,
retired and no longer outstanding within the meaning of Section 8 of this Resolution.

“Fiscal Year” means the twelve-month financial accounting period used by the Issuer, currently
ending on September 30 of each year.

“Holder” or “Registered Owner” means the person in whose name an Obligation is registered on
the Registration Books.

“Issuer” means the Fort Worth Transportation Authority.

“Obligation” means the “Fort Worth Transportation Authority Public Property Finance Contractual
Obligation, Series 2025 authorized by this Resolution, and shall mean and include collectively the note
initially issued and delivered and all substitute notes exchanged therefor.

“Obligations Similarly Secured” means the Obligation, any Previously Issued Obligations,
including the , Series 2025, and any Additional Obligations hereafter issued.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means the institution appointed by the Issuer to serve as paying agent
and registrar for the Obligation.

“Pledged Revenues” means the Sales Tax Revenues.
“Previously Issued Obligations” means [“None.”].

“Project” or “Property”” means the purposes for which the Obligation is being issued, as described
in Section 2 hereof.

“Purchaser” means the initial purchaser of the Obligation named in Section 13 of this Resolution.

“Registration Books” means the books or records kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
registration, transfer, and exchange of the Obligation.

“Revenue Fund” means the fund established in Section 5.2 hereof for the deposit of all Pledged
Revenues.

“Sales Tax Revenues” means all revenues received by or on behalf of the Issuer from the local sales
and use tax authorized, imposed, and collected by the Issuer within its boundaries.

Section 2. RECITALS, AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE OBLIGATION. The recitals set forth in
the preamble hereof are incorporated herein and shall have the same force and effect as if set forth in this

2

Page 138 of 159



Section. The Public Property Finance Contractual Obligation of the Issuer described herein is hereby
authorized to be issued and delivered in the principal amount of $ for the purpose of providing
funds for (1) various personal property items including rail cars, trains and buses, and (2) the costs and fees
of professional services of attorneys and other professionals rendered in connection with such projects and
the issuance of the Obligation (collectively, the “Projects”).

Section 3. DESIGNATION, DATE, DENOMINATIONS, NUMBERS, AND MATURITIES AND
INTEREST RATES OF OBLIGATION.

(a) Each note issued pursuant to this Resolution shall be designated: “FORT WORTH
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATION, SERIES 2025,” and initially there shall be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder one
fully-registered note, without interest coupons, dated , 2025, in the denomination and principal
amount of § , numbered R-l, with any Obligation issued in replacement thereof being in the
denomination of the full principal amount of the series of which the Obligation is issued, and numbered
consecutively from R-2 upward, payable to the respective Registered Owner thereof, or to the registered
assignee of said Obligation (in each case, the “Registered Owner”). Principal of said Obligation shall mature
and be payable in installments on the dates and in the amounts stated in the FORM OF OBLIGATION
attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “FORM OF OBLIGATION”). The Obligation shall bear interest on the
unpaid balance of the principal amount thereof from the date of delivery to the scheduled due date of the
principal installments of the Obligation at the rate of interest stated in the FORM OF OBLIGATION.

Section 4. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE OBLIGATION.

(a) Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer hereby appoints , to serve as
paying agent and registrar for the Obligation (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”). The Chief Executive Officer
and/or the Chief Financial Officer are authorized and directed to execute and deliver in the name and on
behalf of the Issuer a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement with the Paying Agent/Registrar in substantially
the form presented at this meeting.

(b) Registration, Transfer and Exchange. The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept at the
corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar books or records for the registration of the transfer and
exchange of the Obligation (the “Registration Books”), and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying
Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such registrations
of transfers and exchanges under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and Paying Agent/Registrar may
prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such registrations, transfers and exchanges as herein
provided within three days of presentation in due and proper form. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain
and record in the Registration Books the address of the Registered Owner of the Obligation to which
payments with respect to the Obligation shall be mailed, as herein provided; but it shall be the duty of each
Registered Owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to which payments shall
be mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice has been given. The Issuer
shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular business hours of the Paying
Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration Books confidential
and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any other entity. The Issuer shall
pay the Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or customary fees and charges for making such registration,
transfer, exchange and delivery of a substitute Obligation. Registration of assignments, transfers and
exchanges of the Obligation shall be made in the manner provided and with the effect stated in the FORM
OF OBLIGATION. Each substitute Obligation shall bear a letter and/or number to distinguish it from each
other Obligation.

Page 139 of 159



(©) Authentication. Except as provided in subsection (i) of this Section, an authorized
representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Obligation, date and
manually sign said Obligation, and no such Obligation shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding unless
such Obligation is so executed. The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall cancel an Obligation
surrendered for exchange or upon the final payment thereof. No additional ordinances, orders or resolutions
need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body or person so as to
accomplish the foregoing exchange of any Obligation, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the
printing, execution and delivery of the substitute Obligation in the manner prescribed herein. Pursuant to
Subchapter D, Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, the duty of conversion and exchange of the
Obligation as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and, upon the execution of said
Obligation, the converted and exchanged Obligation shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the
same manner and with the same effect as the Obligation which initially was issued and delivered pursuant
to this Resolution, approved by the Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts.

(d) Payment of Principal and Interest. The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying
Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Obligation, all as
provided in this Resolution. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper records of all payments made
by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Obligation, and of all exchanges of
Obligations, and all replacements of Obligations, as provided in this Resolution. However, in the event of
a nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date
for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if
and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the Issuer. Notice of the Special
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the
Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by United
States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each Registered Owner appearing on the
Registration Books at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of
such notice.

(e) Payment to Registered Owner. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to
the contrary, the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in
whose name each Obligation is registered in the Registration Books as the absolute owner of such
Obligation for the purpose of payment of principal and interest with respect to such Obligation, for the
purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Obligation, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The
Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on the Obligation only to or upon the order of
the Registered Owners, as shown in the Registration Books as provided in this Resolution, or their
respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully
satisfy and discharge the Issuer's obligations with respect to payment of principal of and interest on the
Obligation to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than a Registered Owner, as shown in
the Registration Books, shall receive an Obligation evidencing the obligation of the Issuer to make
payments of principal and interest pursuant to this Resolution.

) Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer covenants with the Registered Owner of the Obligation
that at all times while the Obligation is outstanding the Issuer will provide a competent and legally qualified
bank, trust company, financial institution or other agency to act as and perform the services of Paying
Agent/Registrar for the Obligation under this Resolution, and that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one
entity. By accepting the position and performing as such, each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to
have agreed to the provisions of this Resolution, and a certified copy of this Resolution shall be delivered
to each Paying Agent/Registrar.

(2) Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer reserves the right to, and may, at its option,
change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 45 days written notice to the Paying Agent/Registrar,
4

Page 140 of 159



to be effective not later than 30 days prior to the next principal or interest payment date after such notice.
In the event that the entity at any time acting as Paying Agent/Registrar (or its successor by merger,
acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the Issuer covenants that
promptly it will appoint a competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or
other agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar under this Resolution. Upon any change in the Paying
Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall transfer and deliver the Registration
Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books and records relating to the Obligation, to the
new Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the Issuer. Upon any change in the Paying
Agent/Registrar, the Issuer promptly will cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Paying
Agent/Registrar to the Registered Owner of the Obligation, by United States mail, first-class postage
prepaid, which notice also shall give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.

(h) General Characteristics of the Obligation. The Obligation (i) shall be issued in fully-
registered form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Obligation to be payable
only to the Registered Owner thereof, (ii) may and shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturities, (iii)
may be transferred and assigned, (iv) may be exchanged for another Obligation, (v) shall have the
characteristics, (vi) shall be signed, sealed, executed and authenticated, (vii) the principal of and interest on
the Obligation shall be payable, and (viii) shall be administered and the Paying Agent/Registrar and the
Issuer shall have certain duties and responsibilities with respect to the Obligation, all as provided, and in
the manner and to the effect as required or indicated, in the FORM OF OBLIGATION. The Obligation
initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution is not required to be, and shall not be, authenticated
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each substitute Obligation issued in exchange for any Obligation
issued under this Resolution the Paying Agent/Registrar shall execute the Paying Agent/registrar's
Authentication Certificate, in the FORM OF OBLIGATION.

(1) Delivery of Initial Obligation. On the closing date, one initial Obligation representing the
entire principal amount of the Obligation, payable in stated installments to the order of the initial purchaser
of the Obligation or its designee, executed by manual or facsimile signature of the Chief Executive Officer
and Secretary of the Board of the Issuer, approved by the Attorney General of Texas, and registered and
manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, will be delivered to such
purchaser.

Section 5. REDEMPTION. [TBD].

Section 6. FORM OF OBLIGATION. The form of the Obligation, including the form of Paying
Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certification, the form of Assignment and the form of the Registration
Obligation of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas to be attached to the Obligation
initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution, shall be substantially in the form provided in
Exhibit A, with such appropriate variations, omissions or insertions as are permitted or required by this
Resolution. Exhibit A is incorporated in this Resolution for all purposes.

Section 7. PLEDGE OF REVENUES AND FUNDS

(a) Pledge of Revenues.

(D Pledge. the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that the Pledged Revenues are
hereby irrevocably pledged and a lien thereon is hereby granted to the payment and security
of the Obligations Similarly Secured including the establishment and maintenance of the
special funds or accounts created and established for the payment and security thereof, all
as hereinafter provided; and it is hereby resolved that the Obligations Similarly Secured,
and the interest thereon, shall constitute a lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues that

5

Page 141 of 159



is valid and binding without any physical delivery thereof or further act by the Issuer, and
the lien created hereby on the Pledged Revenues for the payment and security of the
Obligations Similarly Secured shall be prior in right and claim as to any other indebtedness,
liability, or obligation of the Issuer.

2) Perfection. Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, applies to the issuance of the
Obligations and the pledge of and lien on Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under
this Resolution, and such pledge is therefore valid, effective, and perfected. If State law is
amended at anytime while any Obligations are outstanding and unpaid such that the
applicable revenue pledge granted by the Issuer as security therefor is to be subject to the
filing requirements of Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, then in order to
preserve to the registered owners of such Obligations the perfection of the security interest
in the Pledged Revenues, the Issuer agrees to take such measures as it determines are
reasonable and necessary under State law to comply with the applicable provisions of
Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, and enable a filing to perfect the security
interest in the Pledged Revenues to occur.

3) Special Obligations. The Obligation is a special obligation of the Issuer payable
solely from the Pledged Revenues. The Registered Owner shall never have the right to
demand payment out of any funds raised or to be raised by ad valorem taxation.

(b) Revenue Fund. The Issuer shall maintain a fund known as the "Fort Worth Transportation
Authority Revenue Fund" (the "Revenue Fund"). All Pledged Revenues shall be deposited to the credit of
the Revenue Fund and shall be accounted for separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer. Moneys
in the Revenue Fund shall be appropriated and used for the following purposes and in the following order
of priority:

First: To the payment of the amounts required to be deposited into the Bond Fund for the
payment of Debt Service Requirements on the Obligations Similarly Secured as the same becomes
due and payable;

Second: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited into any reserve fund
established to provide security for any Obligations Similarly Secured;

Third: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited into any other fund or account
required by a resolution authorizing the issuance of any Obligations Similarly Secured; and

Fourth: To any fund or account held by the Issuer having a lien on the Pledged Revenues
subordinate to the lien created herein.

Any Pledged Revenues remaining in the Revenue Fund after satisfying the foregoing
payments may be used for any lawful purpose of the Issuer.

(©) Bond Fund. For the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Obligation, a
special fund is hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the Issuer as a separate fund or
account known as the “Fort Worth Transportation Authority Series 2025 Bond Fund” (the “Bond Fund”).
The funds therein shall be deposited into and held in an account at an official depository bank of said Issuer.
Said Bond Fund shall be accounted for separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of said Issuer,
and shall be used only for paying the interest on and principal of said Obligation. The Issuer shall transfer
from the Revenue Fund and deposit into the Bond Fund, prior to each principal and interest payment date,

Page 142 of 159



an amount equal to 100% of the interest and principal falling due on such date. Such deposits shall continue
until the Obligation is no longer outstanding.

(d) Reserve Fund. The Issuer will not establish a debt service reserve fund for the Obligation
but reserves the right to create and fund a Reserve Fund in connection with the issuance of any Additional
Obligations.

Section 8. COVENANTS.

(a) Additional Obligations. The Issuer reserves the right to issue Additional Obligations
payable from and secured by a lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues on a parity with the Obligation,
provided that: (1) The Issuer is not then in default of any covenant in this Resolution; (2) An authorized
financial officer of the Issuer certifies that the Pledged Revenues for the preceding Fiscal Year (or any 12
consecutive months out of the previous 18 months) were at least equal to 175% of the maximum annual
Debt Service Requirements for all Obligations Similarly Secured that will be outstanding after the issuance
of the proposed Additional Obligations; (3) The resolution authorizing such Additional Obligations
provides for deposits to the Bond Fund sufficient to pay principal and interest thereon.

The Issuer reserves the right to issue obligations secured by an inferior and subordinate lien on the
Pledged Revenues for any lawful purpose.

(b) Special Covenants and Representations. The Issuer further warrants and covenants that: (a)
Lawful Pledge. It has the lawful power to pledge the Pledged Revenues as provided herein. (b) No
Inconsistent Liens. Other than for the payment of the Obligations Similarly Secured, the Pledged Revenues
are not and will not be pledged to the payment of any other debt or obligation of the Issuer, except for
obligations secured by a subordinate and inferior lien. (¢) The Sales Tax Revenues. While any Obligation
is outstanding, the Issuer covenants to take all permissible actions to cause the Sales Tax Revenues to be
imposed and collected continuously at the maximum rate permitted by law and will not cause or permit any
reduction or abatement of such tax. The Issuer will take required action to apply the Sales Tax to any new
items or transactions that may become legally taxable in the future. (d) Defense of Lien. The Issuer shall,
to the extent permitted by law, defend and protect the pledge of the Pledged Revenues and the rights of the
Registered Owner against all claims.

Section 9.DEFEASANCE OF OBLIGATION.

(a) When no Obligations remain Outstanding, then the lien on and pledge of Pledged Revenues
made under this Resolution as security for the Obligations and all covenants, agreements, and other
obligations of the Issuer to the Holders of such series of Obligations shall thereupon cease, terminate, and
be discharged and satisfied. Any Obligation and the interest thereon shall be deemed to be paid, retired and
no longer outstanding (a “Defeased Obligation”) within the meaning of this Resolution, except to the extent
provided in subsection (d) of this Section, when payment of the principal of such Obligation, plus interest
thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by reason of maturity or otherwise) either (i) shall have
been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided for
on or before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to the Paying Agent/Registrar
in accordance with an escrow agreement or other instrument (the “Future Escrow Agreement”) for such
payment (1) lawful money of the United States of America sufficient to make such payment or (2)
Defeasance Securities that mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will
insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment, and when
proper arrangements have been made by the Issuer with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of its
services until a Defeased Obligation shall have become due and payable. At such time as an Obligation
shall be deemed to be a Defeased Obligation hereunder, as aforesaid, such Obligation and the interest

7

Page 143 of 159



thereon shall no longer be secured by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of, the Pledged Revenues,
and such principal and interest shall be payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities.

(b) Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written direction of
the Issuer be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth,
and all income from such Defeasance Securities received by the Paying Agent/Registrar that is not required
for the payment of the Obligation and interest thereon, with respect to which such money has been so
deposited, shall be turned over to the Issuer, or deposited as directed in writing by the Issuer. Any Future
Escrow Agreement pursuant to which the money and/or Defeasance Securities are held for the payment of
a Defeased Obligation may contain provisions permitting the investment or reinvestment of such moneys
in Defeasance Securities or the substitution of other Defeasance Securities upon the satisfaction of the
requirements specified in subsection 7(a)(i) or (ii). All income from such Defeasance Securities received
by the Paying Agent/Registrar which is not required for the payment of the Defeased Obligation, with
respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be remitted to the Issuer or deposited as directed
in writing by the Issuer.

() The term “Defeasance Securities” means any securities and obligations now or hereafter
authorized by the law of the State of Texas that are eligible to refund, retire or otherwise discharge
obligations such as the Obligation.

(d) Until a Defeased Obligation shall have become due and payable, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Obligation the
same as if they had not been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper arrangements to provide and pay
for such services as required by this Resolution.

Section 10. DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED OBLIGATION.

(a) Replacement Obligation. In the event any outstanding Obligation is damaged, mutilated,
lost, stolen or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause to be printed, executed and delivered, a
new note of the same principal amount, maturity and interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen
or destroyed Obligation, in replacement for such Obligation in the manner hereinafter provided.

(b) Application for Replacement Obligation. Application for replacement of a damaged,
mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Obligation shall be made by the Registered Owner thereof to the Paying
Agent/Registrar. In every case of loss, theft or destruction of an Obligation, the Registered Owner applying
for a replacement note shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar such security or
indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or damage with respect
thereto. Also, in every case of loss, theft or destruction of an Obligation, the Registered Owner shall furnish
to the Issuer and to the Paying Agent/Registrar evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft or destruction
of such Obligation, as the case may be. In every case of damage or mutilation of an Obligation, the
Registered Owner shall surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation the Obligation so damaged
or mutilated.

(c) No Default Occurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the
event any such Obligation shall have matured, and no default has occurred that is then continuing in the
payment of the principal of, or interest on the Obligation, the Issuer may authorize the payment of the same
(without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated Obligation) instead of issuing a
replacement Obligation, provided security or indemnity is furnished as above provided in this Section.

(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Obligation. Prior to the issuance of any replacement note,
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the Registered Owner of such Obligation with all legal, printing,
8

Page 144 of 159



and other expenses in connection therewith. Every replacement note issued pursuant to the provisions of
this Section by virtue of the fact that any Obligation is lost, stolen or destroyed shall constitute an Obligation
of the Issuer whether or not the lost, stolen or destroyed Obligation shall be found at any time, or be
enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution.

(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Obligation. In accordance with Sec. 1206.022,
Government Code, this Section 10 of this Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such
replacement note without necessity of further action by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body
or person, and the duty of the replacement of such Obligation is hereby authorized and imposed upon the
Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such Obligation in
the form and manner and with the effect, as provided in Section 3 of this Resolution for an Obligation issued
in exchange for another Obligation.

Section 11. CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF OBLIGATION; BOND
COUNSEL'S OPINION; ENGAGEMENT OF BOND COUNSEL.

(a) The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer are hereby
authorized to have control of the Obligation initially issued and delivered hereunder and all necessary
records and proceedings pertaining to the Obligation pending its delivery and its investigation, examination,
and approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and its registration by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas. Upon registration of the Obligation, said Comptroller of Public Accounts
(or a deputy designated in writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s
Registration Certificate attached to such Obligation, and the seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed or
placed in facsimile on such Obligation. The approving legal opinion of the Issuer’s Bond Counsel may, at
the option of the Issuer, be printed on the Obligation issued and delivered under this Resolution, but neither
shall have any legal effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the Registered Owners
of the Obligation.

(b) The obligation of the initial purchaser to accept delivery of the Obligation is subject to the
initial purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Kelly Hart & Hallman LLP, bond
counsel to the Issuer, which opinion shall be dated as of and delivered on the date of initial delivery of the
Obligation to the Purchaser (as defined below). The engagement of such firm as bond counsel to the Issuer
in connection with issuance, sale and delivery of the Obligation is hereby approved and confirmed.

Section 12. COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON THE
OBLIGATION.

(a) Covenants. The Issuer covenants to take any action necessary to assure, or refrain from any
action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Obligation as an obligation described in section
103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the interest on which is not includable
in the “gross income” of the holder for purposes of federal income taxation. In furtherance therecof, the
Issuer covenants as follows:

(D to take any action to assure that no more than ten percent (10%) of the proceeds of
the Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited to a reserve fund,
if any) are used for any “private business use,” as defined in section 141(b)(6) of the Code
or, if more than ten percent (10%) of the proceeds or the projects financed therewith are so
used, such amounts, whether or not received by the Issuer, with respect to such private
business use, do not, under the terms of this Resolution or any underlying arrangement,
directly or indirectly, secure or provide for the payment of more than ten percent (10%) of
the debt service on the Obligation, in contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code;

9

Page 145 of 159



2) to take any action to assure that in the event that the “private business use”
described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the
Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund,
if any) then the amount in excess of five percent (5%) is used for a “private business use”
which is “related” and not “disproportionate,” within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of
the Code, to the governmental use;

3) to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of
$5,000,000, or five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Obligation (less amounts deposited
into a reserve fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to persons, other
than state or local governmental units, in contravention of section 141 (c) of the Code;

@) to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the Obligation
being treated as “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code;

(5) to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Obligation being
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code;

(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Obligation, directly or
indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to acquire
investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a
materially higher yield over the term of the Obligation, other than investment property
acquired with:

(1) proceeds of the Obligation invested for a reasonable temporary period of
three (3) years or less or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a period of
30 days or less, until such proceeds are needed for the purpose for which
the Obligation is issued,

(i1) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning of
section 1.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and

(iii) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement fund
to the extent such amounts do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the proceeds
of the Obligation;

@) to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Obligation or amounts treated
as proceeds of the Obligation, as may be necessary, so that the Obligation does not
otherwise contravene the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage)
and, to the extent applicable, section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings);

() to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year period
(beginning on the date of delivery of the Obligation) an amount that is at least equal to 90
percent of the “Excess Earnings,” within the meaning of section 148(f) of the Code and to
pay to the United States of America, not later than 60 days after the Obligation has been
paid in full, 100 percent of the amount then required to be paid as a result of Excess
Earnings under section 148(f) of the Code; and

)] to assure that the proceeds of the Obligation will be used for new money purposes.

10

Page 146 of 159



(b) Rebate Fund. In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (8), a “Rebate
Fund” is hereby established by the Issuer for the sole benefit of the United States of America, and such
fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other person, including without limitation the holders of the
Obligation. The Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of compliance with section 148 of
the Code.

(©) Proceeds. The Issuer understands that the term “proceeds” includes “disposition proceeds”
as defined in the Treasury Regulations. It is the understanding of the Issuer that the covenants contained
herein are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings promulgated by the
U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant thereto. In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter
promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code, as applicable to the Obligation, the Issuer
will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein to the extent that such failure to comply,
in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, will not adversely affect the exemption from federal
income taxation of interest on the Obligation under section 103 of the Code. In the event that regulations
or rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose additional requirements which are applicable to the
Obligation, the Issuer agrees to comply with the additional requirements to the extent necessary, in the
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, to preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of
interest on the Obligation under section 103 of the Code.

(d) Further Procedures. The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, and Secretary of the Board to execute any documents, certificates or reports
required by the Code and to make such elections, on behalf of the Issuer, which may be permitted by the
Code as are consistent with the purpose for the issuance of the Obligation

(e) Allocation Of and Limitation On, Expenditures for the Project. The Issuer covenants to
account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the Projects on its books
and records in accordance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code. The Issuer recognizes that
in order for the proceeds to be considered used for the reimbursement of costs, the proceeds must be
allocated to expenditures within 18 months of the later of the date that (1) the expenditure is made, or (2)
the Projects are completed; but in no event later than three years after the date on which the original
expenditure is paid. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Issuer recognizes that in order for proceeds to be
expended under the Internal Revenue Code, the sale proceeds or investment earnings must be expended no
more than 60 days after the earlier of (1) the fifth anniversary of the delivery of the Obligation, or (2) the
date the Obligation is retired. The Issuer agrees to obtain the advice of nationally-recognized bond counsel
if such expenditure fails to comply with the foregoing to assure that such expenditure will not adversely
affect the tax-exempt status of the Obligation. For purposes hereof, the issuer shall not be obligated to
comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the
excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.

) Disposition of Projects. The Issuer covenants that the property constituting the Projects
will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the Issuer of cash or other
compensation, unless any action taken in connection with such disposition will not adversely affect the tax-
exempt status of the Obligation. For purpose of the foregoing, the Issuer may rely on an opinion of
nationally-recognized bond counsel that the action taken in connection with such sale or other disposition
will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Obligation. For purposes of the foregoing, the portion
of the property comprising personal property and disposed in the ordinary course shall not be treated as a
transaction resulting in the receipt of cash or other compensation. For purposes hereof, the Issuer shall not
be obligated to comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not
adversely affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.

11

Page 147 of 159



Section 13.SALE OF OBLIGATION; FURTHER PROCEDURES.

(a) The Obligation is hereby sold and shall be delivered to (the “Purchaser”) for cash
for the par value thereof, pursuant to the purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated the date of
the final passage of this Resolution which the Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to execute and
deliver. The Obligation shall be initially registered in the name of the Purchaser. It is hereby officially
found, determined and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous reasonably available.

(b) The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Board shall be
and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do
and perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and on behalf of
the Issuer such documents, certificates and other instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be
necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Resolution, the Obligation, the
sale of the Obligation. In case any officer whose signature shall appear on any Obligation shall cease to be
such officer before the delivery of such Obligation, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient
for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. In addition, prior to
the initial delivery of the Obligation, the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary of the
Board, and Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to approve any technical changes or
corrections to this Resolution or to any of the instruments authorized and approved by this Resolution
necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more completely document the
transactions contemplated and approved by this Resolution and described in the private placement letter, or
(i1) obtain the approval of the Obligation by the Texas Attorney General's office.

Section 14. INVESTMENT AND SECURITY OF FUNDS.

(a) Interest earnings derived from the investment of proceeds from the sale of the Obligation
shall be used along with other Obligation proceeds for the Projects; provided that after completion of such
purpose, if any of such interest earnings remain on hand, such interest earnings shall be deposited in the
Bond Fund. It is further provided, however, that any interest earnings on note proceeds that are required to
be rebated to the United States of America pursuant to Section 12 hereof in order to prevent the Obligation
from being an arbitrage bond shall be so rebated and not considered as interest earnings for the purposes of
this Section.

(b) The Issuer may place proceeds of the Obligation (including investment earnings thereon)
and amounts deposited into the Bond Fund and in investments authorized by the Public Funds Investment
Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as amended; provided, however, that the Issuer hereby
covenants that the proceeds of the sale of the Obligation will be used as soon as practicable for the purposes
for which the Obligation is issued.

(©) All deposits authorized or required by this Resolution shall be secured to the fullest extent
required by law for the security of public funds.

Section 15. CONSTRUCTION FUND. The Issuer hereby creates and establishes and shall maintain on
the books of the Issuer a separate fund to be entitled the “Series 2025 Obligation Construction Fund”
(referred to herein as the “Construction Fund” or “Project Fund”) for use by the Issuer for payment of all
lawful costs associated with the acquisition and construction of the Projects as hereinbefore provided.
Proceeds of the Obligation, less amounts to be paid at closing for issuance costs, shall be deposited into the
Construction Fund. Upon payment of all such costs, any moneys remaining on deposit in said Fund shall
be transferred to the Bond Fund. Amounts so deposited to the Bond Fund shall be used in the manner
described in Section 8 of this Resolution. Proceeds of the Obligation may be invested pursuant to Section
14.

12

Page 148 of 159



Section 16. NO RULE 15¢2-12 UNDERTAKING. The Issuer has not made an undertaking in accordance
with Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission with respect to the Obligation. The Issuer
is not, therefore, obligated pursuant to the Rule to provide any ongoing disclosure relating to the Issuer or
the Obligation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer may agree to provide in the Purchase Agreement
to provide such disclosure to the Purchaser as it deems appropriate.

Section 17. METHOD OF AMENDMENT. The Issuer hereby reserves the right to amend this Resolution
subject to the following terms and conditions, to-wit:

(a) The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the Registered Owner, except as
otherwise required by paragraph (b) below, amend or supplement this Resolution to (i) cure any ambiguity,
defect or omission in this Resolution that does not materially adversely affect the interests of the Registered
Owner, (ii) grant additional rights or security for the benefit of the Registered Owner, (iii) add events of
default as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution and that shall not materially
adversely affect the interests of the Registered Owner, (v) qualify this Resolution under the Trust Indenture
Act of 1939, as amended, or corresponding provisions of federal laws from time to time in effect, or (iv)
make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under this Resolution as shall not be
materially inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution and that shall not, in the opinion of nationally-
recognized bond counsel, materially adversely affect the interests of the holders.

(b) Except as provided in paragraph (a) above, the Registered Owner shall have the right from
time to time to approve any amendment hereto that may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer;
provided, however, that without the consent of the Registered Owner, nothing herein contained shall permit
or be construed to permit amendment of the terms and conditions of this Resolution or the Obligation so as
to:

(1) Reduce the rate of interest borne by the Obligation;

2) Reduce the amount of the principal of payable on the Obligation;

3) Modify the terms of payment of principal or of interest on the Obligation or impose
any condition with respect to such payment; or

4 Change the requirement with respect to Registered Owner consent to such
amendment.

(©) If at any time the Issuer shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Issuer
shall send by U.S. mail to the Registered Owner of the Obligation a copy of the proposed amendment.

(d) Whenever at any time within one year from the date of mailing of such notice the Issuer
shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Registered Owner, which instrument or
instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment and which shall specifically consent to and approve such
amendment, the Issuer may adopt the amendment in substantially the same form.

(e) Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section,
this Resolution shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance with such amendatory
Resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations of the Issuer and the Registered Owner of the
Obligation shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced, subject in all respects to such
amendment.

) Any consent given by the Registered Owner of the Obligation pursuant to the provisions

of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of such consent and shall be
conclusive and binding upon all future Registered Owner of the Obligation during such period. Such

13

Page 149 of 159



consent may be revoked at any time after six months from the date of said consent by the Registered Owner
who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice with the Issuer.

(2) For the purposes of establishing ownership of the Obligation, the Issuer shall rely solely
upon the registration of the ownership of such Obligation on the Registration Books kept by the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

Section 18. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

(a) Events of Default. Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this
Resolution is hereby declared to be an Event of Default:

(1) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Obligation
when the same becomes due and payable; or

2) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement or
obligation of the Issuer, the failure to perform which materially, adversely affects the rights
of the Registered Owners of the Obligation, including, but not limited to, their prospect or
ability to be repaid in accordance with this Resolution, and the continuation thereof for a
period of 30 days after notice of such default is given by any Registered Owner to the
Issuer.

(b) Remedies for Default. Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then and in every case,
any Registered Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including, but not limited to, a trustee or
trustees therefor, may proceed against the Issuer for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of
the Registered Owners under this Resolution, by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in
equity or at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction, for any relief permitted by law, including the
specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Registered Owners hereunder or any combination
of such remedies.

(c) Remedies Not Exclusive.

(D No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and
shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the Obligation or now
or hereafter existing at law or in equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other
provision of this Resolution, the right to accelerate the debt evidenced by the Obligation
shall not be available as a remedy under this Resolution.

2) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other available remedy.

3) By accepting the delivery of an Obligation authorized under this Resolution, such
Registered Owner agrees that the certifications required to effectuate any covenants or
representations contained in this Resolution do not and shall never constitute or give rise
to a personal or pecuniary liability or charge against the officers, employees or trustees of
the Issuer or the Board.

Section 19.EFFECTIVE DATE. In accordance with the provisions of Section 1201.028 of the Texas
Government Code, this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Board.

14

Page 150 of 159



Section 20. SEVERABILITY. If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in this
Resolution, or application thereof to any persons or circumstances is held invalid or unconstitutional by a
court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this
Resolution, despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect.

(Execution Page Follows)

15

Page 151 of 159



DULY PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE by the Board of the Fort Worth Transportation
Authority, onthe  day of , 2025.

Chief  Executive  Officer, Fort Worth
Transportation Authority

Secretary of the Board, Fort Worth Transportation Authority
(SEAL)

{Signature Page to Resolution}

Page 152 of 159



EXHIBIT A
FORM OF OBLIGATION

The form of the Obligation, including the form of Paying Agent/Registrar's Authentication
Certificate, the form of Assignment and the form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas to be attached to the Obligation initially issued and delivered pursuant to
the Resolution to which this FORM OF OBLIGATION is attached, shall be, respectively, substantially as
follows, with such appropriate variations, omissions or insertions as are permitted or required by the
Resolution (including insurance legends in the event the Obligations, or any stated maturities thereof, are
insured).

(a) Form of Contractual Obligation.
NO. R- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA PRINCIPAL
STATE OF TEXAS AMOUNT
FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY S
PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATION
SERIES 2025
Interest Rate Delivery Date Maturity Date

% , 2025 , 20
REGISTERED OWNER:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above, the Fort Worth Transportation Authority(the
“Issuer”), being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to the Registered
Owner specified above, or registered assigns (hereinafter called the “Registered Owner”™), the principal
amount specified above, and to pay interest thereon, from the date of delivery set forth above, on the
balance of said principal amount from time to time remaining unpaid. This Obligation shall finally mature
on the maturity date set forth above, but shall be payable in installments on the dates and in the principal
installment amounts, and shall bear interest at the rate set forth above, calculated on the basis of basis of a
360-day year of twelve 30-day months, as set forth in the following schedule:

Payment Date Principal Amount

(G $)

A-1

Page 153 of 159



THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THIS OBLIGATION are payable in lawful money
of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The Issuer shall pay interest on
this Obligation on , 202 and on each and thereafter to the date of the final maturity
hereof. The last principal 1nstallment of this Obligation shall be paid to the Registered Owner hereof upon
presentation and surrender of this Obligation at final maturity, at the corporate trust office of , in

, Texas, which is the “Paying Agent/Registrar” for this Obligation. The payment of all other
principal installments of and interest on this Obligation shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the
Registered Owner hereof, without the requirement of presentation or surrender of this Obligation, on each
principal and interest payment date by check or draft, dated as of such principal and interest payment date,
drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required by the
Resolution (as defined below) to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as
hereinafter provided; and such check or draft shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States
mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such interest payment date, to the Registered Owner hereof, at its
address as it appeared at the close of business on the last business day of the month next preceding each
such date (the “Record Date”) on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as hereinafter
described. In addition, principal and interest may be paid by such other method, acceptable to the Paying
Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the Registered Owner.

THIS OBLIGATION is dated __ , 2025, is authorized in accordance with the Constitution and
laws of the State of Texas, and an authorizing resolution of the Issuer dated as of |, 2025 (the
“Resolution”), and is initially issued in the principal amount of $ for the purpose of paying the
costs associated with all or a portion of the Projects (as defined in the Resolution). Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Resolution. This Obligation is
not subject to prepayment or optional redemption prior to its the maturity date set forth above.

ANY ACCRUED INTEREST due at maturity of this Obligation prior to maturity as provided
herein shall be paid to the Registered Owner upon presentation and surrender of this Obligation for payment
at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer covenants with the
Registered Owner of this Obligation that on or before each principal payment date, interest payment date,
and accrued interest payment date for this Obligation it will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar,
from the “Bond Fund” created by the Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Obligation, when due.

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal or interest on this Obligation shall be a Saturday,
Sunday, a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal corporate
trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then
the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day that is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday
or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same
force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due.

THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR shall also record such information in the Registration
Books, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall also record in the Registration Books all payments of principal
installments on this Obligation when made on their respective due dates.

THIS OBLIGATION is issuable solely as a single fully registered Obligation, without interest
coupons, in the denomination of $ or the remaining principal amount of the outstanding Obligation
if an exchange of the Obligation is made after a reduction in the principal amount by a payment of a
scheduled installment of principal (the “Authorized Denomination”). This Obligation may be transferred
or exchanged in whole, but not in part, as provided in the Resolution, and only upon the Registration Books
kept for that purpose at the abovementioned office of the Paying Agent/Registrar upon surrender of the
Obligation together with a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange satisfactory to the
Paying Agent/Registrar and duly executed by the Registered Owner or his duly authorized attorney, and

A-2

Page 154 of 159



thereupon a new Obligation of the same maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be
issued by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Resolution,
and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed. The Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar may deem
and treat the person in whose name the Obligation is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose
of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal hereof and interest due hereon and for all other
purposes. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such transfer or exchange during
the period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of
business on the next following principal or interest payment date.

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Obligation is changed by the Issuer, resigns,
or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Resolution that it promptly will appoint
a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the
Registered Owners of the Obligation.

THIS OBLIGATION shall not become valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled
to any security or benefit under the Resolution until the Authentication Certificate shall have been executed
by the Paying Agent/Registrar or the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate hereon shall have been
executed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts.

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited and covenanted that this Obligation has been duly and
validly authorized, issued and delivered; that all acts, conditions and things required or proper to
be performed, exist and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance and delivery of this
Obligation have been performed, existed and been done in accordance with law; and that this
Obligation constitutes a special obligation of the Issuer, payable solely from and secured by a pledge
of the Pledged Revenues, all as provided in the Resolution. The Registered Owner hereof shall never
have the right to demand payment of this Obligation out of any property taxes raised or to be raised
by the Issuer.

THE ISSUER HAS RESERVED THE RIGHT to amend the Resolution as provided therein, and
under some (but not all) circumstances amendments thereto must be approved by the Registered Owners
of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Obligation.

BY BECOMING the Registered Owner of this Obligation, the Registered Owner thereby
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms and
provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in the official
minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this
Obligation and the Resolution constitute a contract between each Registered Owner hereof and the Issuer.

[Rest of Page Left Intentionally Blank]

A-3

Page 155 of 159



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Obligation to be signed with the manual or
facsimile signature of the Chief Executive Officer and countersigned with the manual or facsimile
signature of the Secretary of the Board of said Issuer, and has caused the official seal of the Issuer to be
duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Obligation.

FORT WORTH  TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY

By:

Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board
(SEAL)

[Rest of Page Left Intentionally Blank]

A4

Page 156 of 159



PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE (To be executed if this
Obligation is not accompanied by an executed Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas)

It is hereby certified that this Obligation has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution
described in the text of this Obligation; and that this Obligation has been issued in conversion or
replacement of, or in exchange for, a note, notes, or a portion of a note or notes of a series that originally
was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas.

Dated:

Paying Agent/Registrar

By:
Authorized Representative

[Rest of Page Left Intentionally Blank]

A-5

Page 157 of 159



(b) Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

(Please type or print clearly)

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto:

Transferee's Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number:

Transferee's name, and address, including zip code:

the within Obligation and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints

attorney, to register the transfer of the within Obligation
on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

NOTICE; Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an NOTICE: The signature above must correspond

eligible guarantor institution participating in a with the name of the Registered Owner as it pears

securities transfer association recognized signature upon the front of this Obligation in every

guarantee program. particular, without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatsoever.

[Rest of Page Left Intentionally Blank]

A-6

Page 158 of 159



(c) Form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts.

COMPTROLLER'S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: REGISTER
NO.

I hereby certify that this Contractual Obligation has been examined, certified as to validity and
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Contractual Obligation has been
registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

Witness my signature and seal this

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas

(COMPTROLLER'S SEAL)

A-7

Page 159 of 159



	05a2-Community Engagment Board report for August 2025.pdf
	Community Engagement�August 2025
	Slide Number 2
	CSS Rep Score Card
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Community Outreach and Events
	What we’ve been up to
	Travel Training Growth 
	Storytime �Train� 
	Story Time Train
	Upcoming Events

	Board Packet - August 18, 2025 w-o video- Revised.pdf
	00a-BOD Agenda August 18, 2025-FINAL
	00b-BA2025-42_ Proposed Service Changes for Fall 2025
	00c-BA2025-42_ Proposed Service Changes for Fall 2025 - Attachment
	Proposed Fall Service Change�Beginning September 28, 2025
	Methodology
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Service Change Summary
	Route 12: Major Service Change
	Route 12: Major Service Change
	Routes 21 & 22 Interline
	Service Change Summary cont.
	FY 26 Recommendations
	Slide Number 11

	00d-BA2025-42_ Proposed Service Changes for Fall 2025 - Attachment (2)
	00e-BA2025-42_ Proposed Service Changes for Fall 2025 - Attachment (3)
	00f-Board Meeting Minutes 6-16-25 FINAL
	01a1-Information Item_ TEXRail & TRE Ridership & On-Time Performance Update – July 2025
	01a2-TEXRail & TRE Ridership & On-Time Performance Update – July 2025 - Attachment
	TEXRail and TRE Ridership & On-Time Performance Update
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	01b1-Information Item_ DART's Lease Agreement with Metropolitan Council (Northstar) for Commuter Rail Equipment
	02a-Information Item_ 2026 FIFA World Cup Planning Overview
	02b1-Information Item_ Bus Operator Barrier Doors
	02b2-Bus Operator Barrier Doors - Attachment
	Bus Operator Barrier Doors
	Bus Operator Barrier Doors
	Bus Operator Barrier Doors

	03-Information Item_ General Planning Consultant (GPC) Update
	04a1-Information Item_ FY2025 Ridership Update & Strategy
	04a2-FY2025 Ridership Update & Strategy - Attachment
	FY25 Ridership & Strategy
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Building Momentum for the Future
	Looking Ahead

	05a1-Information Item_ Community Engagement Report
	05a2-Community Engagment Board report for August 2025
	Community Engagement�August 2025
	Slide Number 2
	CSS Rep Score Card
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Community Outreach and Events
	What we’ve been up to
	Travel Training Growth 
	Storytime �Train� 
	Story Time Train Read N’ Ride
	Upcoming Events

	06a1-Information Item_ Blue Line Launch Results
	06a2-Blue Line Launch Results - Attachment
	The Blue Line Launch Results
	SPECIAL EVENTS
	SPECIAL EVENTS
	SPECIAL EVENTS
	EARNED MEDIA
	EARNED MEDIA
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	SOCIAL MEDIA BUZZ
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	PAID MEDIA
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23

	07a1-Information Item_ Debt Offering Notes and Contractual Obligations
	07a2-Debt Offering Notes and Contractual Obligations - Attachment
	2025 Debt Offering
	Notes - Tax Exempt Series 2025
	Contractual Obligations (KOs) - Tax Exempt Series 2025
	Final Debt Schedule
	Questions and Answers

	07b-Information Item_ FY2026 Proposed Budget
	08-BA2025-36_Contract Modification for MasterMinds Leadership Training
	09a-BA2025-37_ Bus Operator Barrier Doors
	10a-BA2025-38_ Purchase of Fleet Air Conditioning Parts
	10b-BA2025-38_ Purchase of Fleet Air Conditioning Parts - Attachment
	10c-BA2025-38_ Purchase of Fleet Air Conditioning Parts - Attachment (2)
	11-BA2025-39_ Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Cost Reimbursement for Silver Line Positive Train Control (PTC) Services
	12-BA2025-40_ Regional Positive Train Control Hosting Service Contract Amendment
	13a-BA2025-41_ Fort Worth Independent School District & Trinity Metro Memorandum of Understanding (2)
	13b-BA2025-41_ Fort Worth Independent School District & Trinity Metro Memorandum of Understanding - Attachment
	Memorandum of Understanding
	between the Fort Worth Independent School District
	and Trinity Metro
	A.  Collaborative Goals/Purpose:
	B.  Organization Responsibilities/Obligations:
	C.  District Responsibilities/Obligations:

	14a-R2025-08 $28,105,000 of Notes Tax Exempt Series 2025
	14b-R2025-08Trinity Metro Resolution (Notes) (7.17) (1)
	Section 1. DEFINITIONS
	Section 2.  RECITALS, AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE OBLIGATION
	Section 3.   DESIGNATION, DATE, DENOMINATIONS, NUMBERS, AND MATURITIES AND INTEREST RATES OF OBLIGATION
	(a) Each note issued pursuant to this Resolution shall be designated: “Fort Worth TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, NOTE, SERIES 2025,” and initially there shall be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder one fully-registered note, without interest coupons, dat...

	Section 4. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE OBLIGATION.
	(a) Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer hereby appoints _______, to serve as paying agent and registrar for the Obligation (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”). The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer are authorized and...
	(b) Registration, Transfer and Exchange.  The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar books or records for the registration of the transfer and exchange of the Obligation (the “Registration Boo...
	(c) Authentication. Except as provided in subsection (i) of this Section, an authorized representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Obligation, date and manually sign said Obligation, and no such Obligation shal...
	(d) Payment of Principal and Interest. The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Obligation, all as provided in this Resolution. The Paying Agent/Registrar ...
	(e) Payment to Registered Owner. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the contrary, the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each Obligation is registered in the Re...
	(f) Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer covenants with the Registered Owner of the Obligation that at all times while the Obligation is outstanding the Issuer will provide a competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution or ...
	(g) Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer reserves the right to, and may, at its option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 45 days written notice to the Paying Agent/Registrar, to be effective not later than 30 days prior to...
	(h) General Characteristics of the Obligation. The Obligation (i) shall be issued in fully-registered form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Obligation to be payable only to the Registered Owner thereof, (ii) may an...
	(i) Delivery of Initial Obligation. On the closing date, one initial Obligation representing the entire principal amount of the Obligation, payable in stated installments to the order of the initial purchaser of the Obligation or its designee, execute...

	Section 5.   REDEMPTION
	(a) . [TBD].

	Section 6.   FORM OF OBLIGATION
	Section 7.   PLEDGE OF REVENUES AND FUNDS
	(a) Pledge of Revenues.
	(1) Pledge. the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that the Pledged Revenues are hereby irrevocably pledged and a lien thereon is hereby granted to the payment and security of the Obligations Similarly Secured including the establishment and maintenan...
	(2) Perfection. Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, applies to the issuance of the Obligations and the pledge of and lien on Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under this Resolution, and such pledge is therefore valid, effective, and perfected. I...
	(3) Special Obligations. The Obligation is a special obligation of the Issuer payable solely from the Pledged Revenues. The Registered Owner shall never have the right to demand payment out of any funds raised or to be raised by ad valorem taxation.

	(b) Revenue Fund. The Issuer shall maintain a fund known as the "Fort Worth Transportation Authority Revenue Fund" (the "Revenue Fund"). All Pledged Revenues shall be deposited to the credit of the Revenue Fund and shall be accounted for separate and ...
	First: To the payment of the amounts required to be deposited into the Bond Fund for the payment of Debt Service Requirements on the Obligations Similarly Secured as the same becomes due and payable;
	Second: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited into any reserve fund established to provide security for any Obligations Similarly Secured;
	Third: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited into any other fund or account required by a resolution authorizing the issuance of any Obligations Similarly Secured; and
	Fourth: To any fund or account held by the Issuer having a lien on the Pledged Revenues subordinate to the lien created herein.
	Any Pledged Revenues remaining in the Revenue Fund after satisfying the foregoing payments may be used for any lawful purpose of the Issuer.
	(c) Bond Fund. For the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Obligation, a special fund is hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the Issuer as a separate fund or account known as the “Fort Worth Transportation Auth...
	(d) Reserve Fund. The Issuer will not establish a debt service reserve fund for the Obligation but reserves the right to create and fund a Reserve Fund in connection with the issuance of any Additional Obligations.

	Section 8.   COVENANTS.
	(a) Additional Obligations. The Issuer reserves the right to issue Additional Obligations payable from and secured by a lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues on a parity with the Obligation, provided that: (1) The Issuer is not then in default of...
	The Issuer reserves the right to issue obligations secured by an inferior and subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues for any lawful purpose.
	(b) Special Covenants and Representations. The Issuer further warrants and covenants that: (a) Lawful Pledge. It has the lawful power to pledge the Pledged Revenues as provided herein. (b) No Inconsistent Liens. Other than for the payment of the Oblig...

	Section 9. DEFEASANCE OF OBLIGATION.
	(a) When no Obligations remain Outstanding, then the lien on and pledge of Pledged Revenues made under this Resolution as security for the Obligations and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the Issuer to the Holders of such series of ...
	(b) Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written direction of the Issuer be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from such Defeasance Securities re...
	(c) The term “Defeasance Securities” means any securities and obligations now or hereafter authorized by the law of the State of Texas that are eligible to refund, retire or otherwise discharge obligations such as the Obligation.
	(d) Until a Defeased Obligation shall have become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Obligation the same as if they had not been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper...

	Section 10.  DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED OBLIGATION.
	(a) Replacement Obligation. In the event any outstanding Obligation is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause to be printed, executed and delivered, a new note of the same principal amount, maturity and i...
	(b) Application for Replacement Obligation. Application for replacement of a damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Obligation shall be made by the Registered Owner thereof to the Paying Agent/Registrar. In every case of loss, theft or destruct...
	(c) No Default Occurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Obligation shall have matured, and no default has occurred that is then continuing in the payment of the principal of, or interest on the Obligati...
	(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Obligation. Prior to the issuance of any replacement note, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the Registered Owner of such Obligation with all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith. Every r...
	(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Obligation. In accordance with Sec. 1206.022, Government Code, this Section 10 of this Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such replacement note without necessity of further action by the...

	Section 11.  CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF OBLIGATION; BOND COUNSEL'S OPINION; ENGAGEMENT OF BOND COUNSEL.
	(a) The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer are hereby authorized to have control of the Obligation initially issued and delivered hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Obligation pe...
	(b) The obligation of the initial purchaser to accept delivery of the Obligation is subject to the initial purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Kelly Hart & Hallman LLP, bond counsel to the Issuer, which opinion shall be date...

	Section 12.  COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON THE OBLIGATION.
	(a) Covenants. The Issuer covenants to take any action necessary to assure, or refrain from any action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Obligation as an obligation described in section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ame...
	(1) to take any action to assure that no more than ten percent (10%) of the proceeds of the Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited to a reserve fund, if any) are used for any “private business use,” as defined in section...
	(2) to take any action to assure that in the event that the “private business use” described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve...
	(3) to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of $5,000,000, or five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Obligation (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans...
	(4) to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the Obligation being treated as “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code;
	(5) to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Obligation being “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code;
	(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Obligation, directly or indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to acquire investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which...
	(i) proceeds of the Obligation invested for a reasonable temporary period of three (3) years or less or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a period of 30 days or less, until such proceeds are needed for the purpose for which the Obligation is issued,
	(ii) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning of section 1.148-l(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and
	(iii) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement fund to the extent such amounts do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the proceeds of the Obligation;

	(7) to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Obligation or amounts treated as proceeds of the Obligation, as may be necessary, so that the Obligation does not otherwise contravene the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to ar...
	(8) to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Obligation) an amount that is at least equal to 90 percent of the “Excess Earnings,” within the meaning of section 148(f) o...
	(9) to assure that the proceeds of the Obligation will be used for new money purposes.

	(b) Rebate Fund. In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (8), a “Rebate Fund” is hereby established by the Issuer for the sole benefit of the United States of America, and such fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other pers...
	(c) Proceeds. The Issuer understands that the term “proceeds” includes “disposition proceeds” as defined in the Treasury Regulations. It is the understanding of the Issuer that the covenants contained herein are intended to assure compliance with the ...
	(d) Further Procedures. The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Secretary of the Board to execute any documents, certificates or reports required by the Code and to make such elections, on beh...
	(e) Allocation Of and Limitation On, Expenditures for the Project. The Issuer covenants to account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the Projects on its books and records in accordance with the requirements of...
	(f) Disposition of Projects. The Issuer covenants that the property constituting the Projects will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the Issuer of cash or other compensation, unless any action taken in conn...

	Section 13. SALE OF OBLIGATION; FURTHER PROCEDURES.
	(a) The Obligation is hereby sold and shall be delivered to _______ (the “Purchaser”) for cash for the par value thereof, pursuant to the purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated the date of the final passage of this Resolution which the Ch...
	(b) The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Board shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to execute, ...

	Section 14.  INVESTMENT AND SECURITY OF FUNDS.
	(a) Interest earnings derived from the investment of proceeds from the sale of the Obligation shall be used along with other Obligation proceeds for the Projects; provided that after completion of such purpose, if any of such interest earnings remain ...
	(b) The Issuer may place proceeds of the Obligation (including investment earnings thereon) and amounts deposited into the Bond Fund and in investments authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as amended; pro...
	(c) All deposits authorized or required by this Resolution shall be secured to the fullest extent required by law for the security of public funds.

	Section 15.  CONSTRUCTION FUND
	Section 16.  NO RULE 15c2-12 UNDERTAKING.
	Section 17.  METHOD OF AMENDMENT
	(a) The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the Registered Owner, except as otherwise required by paragraph (b) below, amend or supplement this Resolution to (i) cure any ambiguity, defect or omission in this Resolution that does not ...
	(b) Except as provided in paragraph (a) above, the Registered Owner shall have the right from time to time to approve any amendment hereto that may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer; provided, however, that without the consent of the Regi...
	(1) Reduce the rate of interest borne by the Obligation;
	(2) Reduce the amount of the principal of payable on the Obligation;
	(3) Modify the terms of payment of principal or of interest on the Obligation or impose any condition with respect to such payment; or
	(4) Change the requirement with respect to Registered Owner consent to such amendment.

	(c) If at any time the Issuer shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Issuer shall send by U.S. mail to the Registered Owner of the Obligation a copy of the proposed amendment.
	(d) Whenever at any time within one year from the date of mailing of such notice the Issuer shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Registered Owner, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment and which sh...
	(e) Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance with such amendatory Resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations...
	(f) Any consent given by the Registered Owner of the Obligation pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of such consent and shall be conclusive and binding upon all future Registered Own...
	(g) For the purposes of establishing ownership of the Obligation, the Issuer shall rely solely upon the registration of the ownership of such Obligation on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar.

	Section 18.  DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	(a) Events of Default. Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Resolution is hereby declared to be an Event of Default:
	(1) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Obligation when the same becomes due and payable; or
	(2) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement or obligation of the Issuer, the failure to perform which materially, adversely affects the rights of the Registered Owners of the Obligation, including, but not limited to,...

	(b) Remedies for Default. Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then and in every case, any Registered Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including, but not limited to, a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed against the Issuer f...
	(c) Remedies Not Exclusive.
	(1) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the Obligation...
	(2) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a waiver of any other available remedy.
	(3) By accepting the delivery of an Obligation authorized under this Resolution, such Registered Owner agrees that the certifications required to effectuate any covenants or representations contained in this Resolution do not and shall never constitut...


	Section 19. EFFECTIVE DATE
	Section 20.   SEVERABILITY
	(a) Form of Note.
	(b) Form of Assignment.
	(c) Form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts.


	15a-R2025-09 $12,050,000 of Contractual Obligations Taxe Exempt Series 2025
	15b-R2025-09 Trinity Metro Resolution (KO) (7.17) (1)
	Section 1. DEFINITIONS
	Section 2.  RECITALS, AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE OBLIGATION
	Section 3.   DESIGNATION, DATE, DENOMINATIONS, NUMBERS, AND MATURITIES AND INTEREST RATES OF OBLIGATION
	(a) Each note issued pursuant to this Resolution shall be designated: “Fort Worth TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION, SERIES 2025,” and initially there shall be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder one fully-regi...

	Section 4. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE OBLIGATION.
	(a) Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar.  The Issuer hereby appoints _______, to serve as paying agent and registrar for the Obligation (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”). The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer are authorized and...
	(b) Registration, Transfer and Exchange.  The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar books or records for the registration of the transfer and exchange of the Obligation (the “Registration Boo...
	(c) Authentication. Except as provided in subsection (i) of this Section, an authorized representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Obligation, date and manually sign said Obligation, and no such Obligation shal...
	(d) Payment of Principal and Interest. The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Obligation, all as provided in this Resolution. The Paying Agent/Registrar ...
	(e) Payment to Registered Owner. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the contrary, the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each Obligation is registered in the Re...
	(f) Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer covenants with the Registered Owner of the Obligation that at all times while the Obligation is outstanding the Issuer will provide a competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution or ...
	(g) Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer reserves the right to, and may, at its option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 45 days written notice to the Paying Agent/Registrar, to be effective not later than 30 days prior to...
	(h) General Characteristics of the Obligation. The Obligation (i) shall be issued in fully-registered form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Obligation to be payable only to the Registered Owner thereof, (ii) may an...
	(i) Delivery of Initial Obligation. On the closing date, one initial Obligation representing the entire principal amount of the Obligation, payable in stated installments to the order of the initial purchaser of the Obligation or its designee, execute...

	Section 5.   REDEMPTION
	(a) . [TBD].

	Section 6.   FORM OF OBLIGATION
	Section 7.   PLEDGE OF REVENUES AND FUNDS
	(a) Pledge of Revenues.
	(1) Pledge. the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that the Pledged Revenues are hereby irrevocably pledged and a lien thereon is hereby granted to the payment and security of the Obligations Similarly Secured including the establishment and maintenan...
	(2) Perfection. Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, applies to the issuance of the Obligations and the pledge of and lien on Pledged Revenues granted by the Issuer under this Resolution, and such pledge is therefore valid, effective, and perfected. I...
	(3) Special Obligations. The Obligation is a special obligation of the Issuer payable solely from the Pledged Revenues. The Registered Owner shall never have the right to demand payment out of any funds raised or to be raised by ad valorem taxation.

	(b) Revenue Fund. The Issuer shall maintain a fund known as the "Fort Worth Transportation Authority Revenue Fund" (the "Revenue Fund"). All Pledged Revenues shall be deposited to the credit of the Revenue Fund and shall be accounted for separate and ...
	First: To the payment of the amounts required to be deposited into the Bond Fund for the payment of Debt Service Requirements on the Obligations Similarly Secured as the same becomes due and payable;
	Second: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited into any reserve fund established to provide security for any Obligations Similarly Secured;
	Third: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited into any other fund or account required by a resolution authorizing the issuance of any Obligations Similarly Secured; and
	Fourth: To any fund or account held by the Issuer having a lien on the Pledged Revenues subordinate to the lien created herein.
	Any Pledged Revenues remaining in the Revenue Fund after satisfying the foregoing payments may be used for any lawful purpose of the Issuer.
	(c) Bond Fund. For the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Obligation, a special fund is hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the Issuer as a separate fund or account known as the “Fort Worth Transportation Auth...
	(d) Reserve Fund. The Issuer will not establish a debt service reserve fund for the Obligation but reserves the right to create and fund a Reserve Fund in connection with the issuance of any Additional Obligations.

	Section 8.   COVENANTS.
	(a) Additional Obligations. The Issuer reserves the right to issue Additional Obligations payable from and secured by a lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues on a parity with the Obligation, provided that: (1) The Issuer is not then in default of...
	The Issuer reserves the right to issue obligations secured by an inferior and subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues for any lawful purpose.
	(b) Special Covenants and Representations. The Issuer further warrants and covenants that: (a) Lawful Pledge. It has the lawful power to pledge the Pledged Revenues as provided herein. (b) No Inconsistent Liens. Other than for the payment of the Oblig...

	Section 9. DEFEASANCE OF OBLIGATION.
	(a) When no Obligations remain Outstanding, then the lien on and pledge of Pledged Revenues made under this Resolution as security for the Obligations and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the Issuer to the Holders of such series of ...
	(b) Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written direction of the Issuer be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from such Defeasance Securities re...
	(c) The term “Defeasance Securities” means any securities and obligations now or hereafter authorized by the law of the State of Texas that are eligible to refund, retire or otherwise discharge obligations such as the Obligation.
	(d) Until a Defeased Obligation shall have become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Obligation the same as if they had not been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper...

	Section 10.  DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED OBLIGATION.
	(a) Replacement Obligation. In the event any outstanding Obligation is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause to be printed, executed and delivered, a new note of the same principal amount, maturity and i...
	(b) Application for Replacement Obligation. Application for replacement of a damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Obligation shall be made by the Registered Owner thereof to the Paying Agent/Registrar. In every case of loss, theft or destruct...
	(c) No Default Occurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Obligation shall have matured, and no default has occurred that is then continuing in the payment of the principal of, or interest on the Obligati...
	(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Obligation. Prior to the issuance of any replacement note, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the Registered Owner of such Obligation with all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith. Every r...
	(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Obligation. In accordance with Sec. 1206.022, Government Code, this Section 10 of this Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such replacement note without necessity of further action by the...

	Section 11.  CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF OBLIGATION; BOND COUNSEL'S OPINION; ENGAGEMENT OF BOND COUNSEL.
	(a) The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer are hereby authorized to have control of the Obligation initially issued and delivered hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Obligation pe...
	(b) The obligation of the initial purchaser to accept delivery of the Obligation is subject to the initial purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Kelly Hart & Hallman LLP, bond counsel to the Issuer, which opinion shall be date...

	Section 12.  COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON THE OBLIGATION.
	(a) Covenants. The Issuer covenants to take any action necessary to assure, or refrain from any action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Obligation as an obligation described in section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ame...
	(1) to take any action to assure that no more than ten percent (10%) of the proceeds of the Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited to a reserve fund, if any) are used for any “private business use,” as defined in section...
	(2) to take any action to assure that in the event that the “private business use” described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve...
	(3) to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of $5,000,000, or five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Obligation (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans...
	(4) to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the Obligation being treated as “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code;
	(5) to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Obligation being “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code;
	(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Obligation, directly or indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to acquire investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which...
	(i) proceeds of the Obligation invested for a reasonable temporary period of three (3) years or less or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a period of 30 days or less, until such proceeds are needed for the purpose for which the Obligation is issued,
	(ii) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning of section 1.148-l(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and
	(iii) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement fund to the extent such amounts do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the proceeds of the Obligation;

	(7) to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Obligation or amounts treated as proceeds of the Obligation, as may be necessary, so that the Obligation does not otherwise contravene the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to ar...
	(8) to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Obligation) an amount that is at least equal to 90 percent of the “Excess Earnings,” within the meaning of section 148(f) o...
	(9) to assure that the proceeds of the Obligation will be used for new money purposes.

	(b) Rebate Fund. In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (8), a “Rebate Fund” is hereby established by the Issuer for the sole benefit of the United States of America, and such fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other pers...
	(c) Proceeds. The Issuer understands that the term “proceeds” includes “disposition proceeds” as defined in the Treasury Regulations. It is the understanding of the Issuer that the covenants contained herein are intended to assure compliance with the ...
	(d) Further Procedures. The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Secretary of the Board to execute any documents, certificates or reports required by the Code and to make such elections, on beh...
	(e) Allocation Of and Limitation On, Expenditures for the Project. The Issuer covenants to account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the Projects on its books and records in accordance with the requirements of...
	(f) Disposition of Projects. The Issuer covenants that the property constituting the Projects will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the Issuer of cash or other compensation, unless any action taken in conn...

	Section 13. SALE OF OBLIGATION; FURTHER PROCEDURES.
	(a) The Obligation is hereby sold and shall be delivered to _______ (the “Purchaser”) for cash for the par value thereof, pursuant to the purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated the date of the final passage of this Resolution which the Ch...
	(b) The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Board shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to execute, ...

	Section 14.  INVESTMENT AND SECURITY OF FUNDS.
	(a) Interest earnings derived from the investment of proceeds from the sale of the Obligation shall be used along with other Obligation proceeds for the Projects; provided that after completion of such purpose, if any of such interest earnings remain ...
	(b) The Issuer may place proceeds of the Obligation (including investment earnings thereon) and amounts deposited into the Bond Fund and in investments authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as amended; pro...
	(c) All deposits authorized or required by this Resolution shall be secured to the fullest extent required by law for the security of public funds.

	Section 15.  CONSTRUCTION FUND
	Section 16.  NO RULE 15c2-12 UNDERTAKING.
	Section 17.  METHOD OF AMENDMENT
	(a) The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the Registered Owner, except as otherwise required by paragraph (b) below, amend or supplement this Resolution to (i) cure any ambiguity, defect or omission in this Resolution that does not ...
	(b) Except as provided in paragraph (a) above, the Registered Owner shall have the right from time to time to approve any amendment hereto that may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer; provided, however, that without the consent of the Regi...
	(1) Reduce the rate of interest borne by the Obligation;
	(2) Reduce the amount of the principal of payable on the Obligation;
	(3) Modify the terms of payment of principal or of interest on the Obligation or impose any condition with respect to such payment; or
	(4) Change the requirement with respect to Registered Owner consent to such amendment.

	(c) If at any time the Issuer shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Issuer shall send by U.S. mail to the Registered Owner of the Obligation a copy of the proposed amendment.
	(d) Whenever at any time within one year from the date of mailing of such notice the Issuer shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Registered Owner, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment and which sh...
	(e) Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance with such amendatory Resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations...
	(f) Any consent given by the Registered Owner of the Obligation pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of such consent and shall be conclusive and binding upon all future Registered Own...
	(g) For the purposes of establishing ownership of the Obligation, the Issuer shall rely solely upon the registration of the ownership of such Obligation on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar.

	Section 18.  DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	(a) Events of Default. Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Resolution is hereby declared to be an Event of Default:
	(1) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Obligation when the same becomes due and payable; or
	(2) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement or obligation of the Issuer, the failure to perform which materially, adversely affects the rights of the Registered Owners of the Obligation, including, but not limited to,...

	(b) Remedies for Default. Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then and in every case, any Registered Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including, but not limited to, a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed against the Issuer f...
	(c) Remedies Not Exclusive.
	(1) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the Obligation...
	(2) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a waiver of any other available remedy.
	(3) By accepting the delivery of an Obligation authorized under this Resolution, such Registered Owner agrees that the certifications required to effectuate any covenants or representations contained in this Resolution do not and shall never constitut...


	Section 19. EFFECTIVE DATE
	Section 20.   SEVERABILITY
	(a) Form of Contractual Obligation.
	(b) Form of Assignment.
	(c) Form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts.






